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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014
Or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-36033
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Cayman Islands 98-1226628
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Ugland House, South Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islanc
KY1-1104

(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area d®5@:808-6000

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTIQR(b) OF THE ACT:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange On Which Registert
Ordinary Share $0.00001 Par Va NASDAQ Global Marke

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTIQ@R(g) OF THE ACTNONE



Indicate by check mark if the registranaiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ribeof the Securities Act. YeEl No
Indicate by check mark if the registremnot required to file reports pursuant to SectiBror Section 15(d) of the Act. Ydd No

Indicate by check mark whether the regidt(1) has filed all reports required to be fimdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exche
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastégs. Yeslxl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regidthas submitted electronically and posted ocdtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @untsio Rule 205 of Regulation S-T (8 232.405 of tthapter) during the preceding
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegit was required to submit and post such filés}. No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK (§ 229.405) is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrakiiewledge, in definitive proxy or information statents incorporated by reference in Part Il of
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10BK.

Indicate by check mark whether registiarat large accelerated filer, an accelerated ditex non-accelerated filer. See definition of
"accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRide 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check One):

Large accelerated fileEl Accelerated filerd Non-accelerated filef] Smaller reporting companiz
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan'

Indicate by check mark whether the regigtis a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-thefExchange Act). Yefl No [

The aggregate market value of the votimgj @on-voting common equity held by non-affiliatéshe registrant based upon the closing
price on the NASDAQ Global Market on June 30, 2064 $565,284,301.

On February 28, 2015, there were 33,80Lof2he registrant's ordinary shares outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Specified portions of the registrant'smigfe Proxy Statement to be issued in conjunctioth the registrant's 2015 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, which is expected to be filed nefldtan 120 days after the registrant's fiscal gyeded December 31, 2014, are incorporate
reference into Part 1l of this Annual Report. Egtas expressly incorporated by reference, thetregit's Proxy Statement shall not be deeme
to be a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Special Note regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements within the meaning of Section&the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchacpef 1934, as amended. Such forward-lookingestants involve substantial risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. All statementsisAnnual Report on Form 10-K, other than statemefithistorical facts, including
statements regarding our strategy, future operatjdature financial position, future revenues, paigd costs, prospects, plans, intentions,
expectations and objectives could be forward-loglstatements. The words "aim," "anticipates," "bedis," "could," "designed," "developed,"
"drive," "estimates," "expects,” "goal," "intendsrhay," "mission," "opportunities,” "plans," "pot8al," "projects," "pursuing,” "represents,"
"suggest," "will," "would" and similar expressiofiscluding the negatives thereof) are intendeddentify forward-looking statements,
although not all forward-looking statements conttiirse identifying words. We may not actually aghighe plans, intentions, expectations or
objectives disclosed in our forward-looking statetseand the assumptions underlying our forward-lnglstatements may prove incorrect.
Therefore, you should not place undue reliance unfarward-looking statements. Actual results oemts could differ materially from the
plans, intentions, expectations and objectiveslaied in the forwar-looking statements that we make. Factors that @iewe could cause
actual results or events to differ materially fraur forward-looking statements include, but are lvoited to, those discussed below in "Risk
Factors" in Item 1A, "Management's Discussion amdlgsis of Financial Condition and Results of Opimas" in Item 7 and elsewhere in tl
Annual Report on Form -K. Our forward-looking statements in this Annua&ipg@rt on Form 10-K are based on current expectatiand we
do not assume any obligation to update any forwanoking statements.

PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

The mission of Theravance Biopharma, ItiEhéravance Biopharma", the "Company"”, or "we" atiter similar pronouns) is to create
value from a unique and diverse set of assetspproaed product; a development pipeline of mid- e-stage assets; and a productive
research platform designed for long-term growth.

Our pipeline of internally discovered protluandidates includes potential best-in-class dppiies in underserved markets in the acute
care setting, representing multiple opportunit@svialue creation. VIBATIV® (telavancin), our firsbommercial product, is a once-daily dual-
mechanism antibiotic approved in the United States Europe for certain difficult-to-treat infectmnTD-4208 is an investigational lorgting
muscarinic antagonist (LAMA) being developed a®teptial once-daily, nebulized treatment for cheombstructive pulmonary disease
(COPD). Axelopran (TD-1211) is an investigationatgntial once-daily, oral treatment for opioid-ieéd constipation (OIC). Our earlier-stage
clinical assets represent novel approaches fonfiatly treating diseases of the lung and gastesitibal tract and infectious disease. In
addition, we have an economic interest in futungnpents that may be made by GlaxoSmithKline plc (KG$ursuant to its agreements with
Theravance, Inc. ("Theravance") relating to certhing development programs, including the combamatif fluticasone furoate, umeclidiniu
and vilanterol (or the "Closed Triple").

With our successful drug discovery and tlgwment track record, commercial infrastructurgpezienced management team and efficient
corporate structure, we believe that we are weditipned to create value for our shareholders aakiena difference in the lives of patients.

On June 1, 2014, Theravance separategté@sstage respiratory assets partnered with GSK fiwbiopharmaceutical operations by
transferring its discovery, development and comiaBzation operations (the "Biopharmaceutical Besisi') and contributing $393.0 million
cash, cash equivalents
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and marketable securities into its then wholly-od/sabsidiary Theravance Biopharma. On June 2, Zh&davance made a pro rata dividend
distribution to its stockholders of record on M&y; 2014 of one ordinary share of Theravance Biaphdor every three and one half shares o
Theravance common stock outstanding on the recated (the "Spin-Off"). The Spin-Off resulted in Theance Biopharma operating as an
independent, publicly-traded company. Prior to JAn2014, Theravance operated the Biopharmace®icsihess.

The Spin-Off was effected pursuant to ag®agion and Distribution Agreement between Theragand Theravance Biopharma (the
"Separation and Distribution Agreement"), which\pdes, among other things, for the principal cogtertransactions required to effect the
Spin-Off and certain other agreements governingaiance's relationship with Theravance Biopharmner #fie Spin-Off.

Theravance Biopharma was incorporatedénGayman Islands in July 2013 under the name Thar@/Biopharma, Inc. Our corporate
address in the Cayman Islands is is P.O. Box 3@®&and House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islandsthe principal office of our
wholly-owned U.S. operating subsidiary Theravan@pBarma US, Inc., is 901 Gateway Boulevard, S&a&h Francisco, California 94080.

2014 Highlights

In 2014 we accomplished a number of kepemate goals. In June 2014, we announced the ctioplef the separation of the
Biopharmaceutical Business from Theravance. Wesbelthis transaction allows us to maximize the qtaévalue of our discovery,
development, and commercial assets, and createseagfficient corporate structure. In addition, ashieved our objectives supporting the
initial commercial plan for the reintroduction ofBATIV to the U.S. market by building an experiedcgales force targeting a small numbe
geographic territories, thus establishing a fouiotiafior a commercial infrastructure focused ondbate care market. We announced positive
top-line results from a Phase 2b dose-ranging stidyp-4208 for the treatment of COPD, followed dy end-of-Phase 2 meeting with the
FDA in December 2014 to discuss the design of these 3 registrational program. We also made meaniadgvancements in our research
development pipeline which includes mid- and ldtegs assets across three primary therapeutic atisasses of the lung and gastrointestinal
tract and infectious disease.

Our Programs

The table below summarizes the status phpproved product and our most advanced productidates for internal development or co-
development. Our research and development actatie concentrated primarily on three therapeudiass—diseases of the lung and
gastrointestinal tract and infectious disease—amadcommercial infrastructure is focused on the @catre setting. The table also includes the
status of the respiratory programs in which we t@veconomic interest and are being developed B¢ @8suant to agreements between
Theravance and GSK, and which we refer to as tfgK'‘@artnered Respiratory Programs”. We have ancgoimninterest in these programs
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through our interest in Theravance Respiratory CaomgpLLC ("TRC"), a limited liability company maned by Theravance.

THERAPEUTIC AREA COMMERCIAL LATE -STAGE MID -STAGE
Infectious Disease / VIBATIV® TD-6450 (HCV)
Other (telavancin) TD-1792, TD-1607
cSSSI Telavancin (MRSA)
HABP/VABP (Bacteremia TD-9855 (Fatigue
Lung Disease TD-4208 (COPD) MABA (COPD)*
Closed Triple (COPD) MABA-ICS
t (COPD, Asthma)
Gastrointestinal Disease Axelopran (OIC)
Axelopran / Opioid Velusetrag (GP)
FDC TD-8954
(OIC/Pain) (ICU IV prokinetic)

Key: c¢SSSI: complicated skin and skin structafections; COPD: chronic obstructive pulmonaryedise; FDC: fixed-dose
combination; GP: gastroparesis; HABP/VABP: hospatediuired and ventilatassociated bacterial pneumonia; HCV: hepati
virus; ICU: intensive care unit; IV: intravenous ABA: bifunctional muscarinic antagonist-befagonist; MRSA: methicillin-

resistantStaphylococcus aureg®IC: opioid-induced constipation
In the table above:
t Denotes GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs
"Late-stage" includes approved products and ags@tsase 3 development or Phase 3-ready
"Mid -stage" includes assets between Phase 1 and Ph
Program Highlights
VIBATIV® (telavancin)

VIBATIV is a bactericidal, once-daily injedle antibiotic to treat patients with serioufe-threatening infections due &aphylococcus
aureusand other Gram-positive bacteria, including metfimeresistant (MRSA) strains. VIBATIV is approved the U.S. and Canada for the
treatment of adult patients with complicated skid akin structure infections (cSSSI) caused byeptdsie Gram-positive bacteria. VIBATIV
is also approved in the U.S. for the treatmentdoiltapatients with hospital-acquired and ventileassociated bacterial pneumonia
(HABP/VABP) caused by susceptible isolatesStdphylococcus aurewghen alternative treatments are not suitable. VIBAIE approved in
the European Union for the treatment of adults witkocomial pneumonia, including ventilator-assedgneumonia, known or suspected to
be caused by MRSA when other alternatives areuitgtse.

Commercial Program Expansion

In 2014, we implemented a phased launettegjy for VIBATIV in the U.S. that focused on a dhmamber of targeted geographic
territories across the country. We have since exgamour sales force and medical affairs presentehode additional territories in the U.S.
with the goal of strengthening our commercial iafracture comprised of experienced sales reprasegand a significant medical
information component focused on the acute car&etar

Telavancin Observational Use Registry (TOUR)

Initiated in February 2015, the 1,000-patiEOUR observational use registry study is desigoneassess the manner in which VIBATIV is
used by healthcare practitioners to treat pati@ytsroadly collecting and examining data rela¥IBATIV treatment patterns, as well as
clinical and safety outcomes in the real world,aira to create an expansive knowledge base to duidee development and optimal use of
drug.
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Phase 3 Registrational Study in StaphylococcususuiBacteremi:

As part of our effort to explore additiosaittings in which VIBATIV may offer patients th@eutic benefit, in February 2015, we initiated
a Phase 3 registrational study for the treatmepatiénts withStaphylococcus auretmmcteremia. The 250-patient registrational study is
multicenter, randomized, open-label study designeslaluate the non-inferiority of telavancin iratingStaphylococcus auretlmcteremia as
compared to standard therapy. Key secondary outcoeasures of the study include an assessment diithéon of bacteremia post-
randomization and the incidence of development efastatic complications, as compared to standaichply.

Long-Acting Muscarinic Antagonist (LAMA)—TD-4208

TD-4208 is an investigational, long-actmgscarinic antagonist (LAMA) in development for theatment of COPD. We believe that TD-
4208 may become a valuable addition to the COP&rtrent regimen and that it represents a significantmercial opportunity. Our market
research indicates approximately 9% of the tre@@&D patients in the U.S. either need or prefeulisdd delivery for maintenance therapy.
LAMAs are a cornerstone of maintenance therapyCIoPD, but existing LAMAs are only available in haettl devices that may not be
suitable for every patient. TD-4208 has the po&di be a best-in-class once-daily single-ageodpet for COPD patients who require, or
prefer, nebulized therapy. The therapeutic praffl& D-4208, together with its physical characteristicggest that this LAMA could serve a
foundation for combination products and for delivar metered dose inhaler and dry powder inhaledpcts.

Phase 3 Registrational Study in COI

In December 2014, following the announcenoéipositive top-line results of our Phase 2b pang, we conducted an end-of-Phase 2
meeting with the FDA to discuss the design of thade 3 registrational program. We are progressing 08 into a Phase 3 registrational
program that will include two replicate three-moaefficacy studies and a single twelve-month sadétgly. Based on our discussion with the
FDA, the studies will include approximately 2,20dtipnts. The studies will test two doses: 88 mat) Bfb mcg administered once-daily. We
expect to initiate the Phase 3 program in 2015.

Mylan Collaboration

In January 2015, Mylan Inc., which is nowudosidiary of Mylan N.V. ("Mylan"), and we estalfled a strategic collaboration for the
development and, subject to FDA approval, commézaigon of TD-4208. Partnering with a world leadiemebulized respiratory therapies
enables us to expand the breadth of our TD-4208ldpment program and extend our commercial reaghrizbthe acute care setting where
we currently market VIBATIV. Funding of the Phaseegjistrational program by Mylan strengthens oyniteposition and enhances our
financial flexibility to advance other high-valuggpline assets alongside TD-4208.

Under the terms of the agreement, Mylanwadvill co-develop nebulized TD-4208 for COPD aniller respiratory diseases. We will
lead the U.S. registrational development prograchMylan will be responsible for reimbursement of oasts for that program up until the
approval of the first new drug application, aftdrigh costs will be shared. If a product developedar the collaboration is approved in the
U.S., Mylan will lead commercialization and we widitain the right to co-promote the product inth&. under a profit-sharing arrangement
(65% Mylan/35% Theravance Biopharma). Outside tt. (excluding China), Mylan will be responsible é®velopment and
commercialization and will pay us a tiered royaltynet sales at percentage royalty rates rangamg fow double-digits to mideens. Althoug
China is not included in the ex-US territory oultigMylan does have a right of first negotiatiorttwiespect to the development and
commercialization of nebulized TD-4208 in China.
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Under the agreement, Mylan will pay usmitidl payment of $15.0 million in cash in the sedajuarter of 2015. Also, pursuant to an
ordinary share purchase agreement entered intararady 30, 2015, Mylan made a $30.0 million eqintgestment in us, buying 1,585,790
ordinary shares from us in early February 2015 gmieate placement transaction at a price of apprately $18.918 per share, which
represented a 10% premium over the volume weiginedage price per share of our ordinary sharethéfive trading days ending on
January 30, 2015. We are eligible to receive frogiad potential development and sales milestone paystotaling $220.0 million in the
aggregate, with $175.0 million associated with TE& monotherapy and $45.0 million for future poi@mtombination products.

We retain worldwide rights to TD-4208 delied through other dosage forms, such as a malessdinhaler or dry powder inhaler
(MDI/DPI), while Mylan has certain rights of firsiegotiation with respect to our development androencialization of TD-4208 delivered
other than via a nebulized inhalation product.

Oral Peripherally-Acting Mu Opioid Receptor Antagist—Axelopran (TD-1211)

Axelopran is an investigational, once-dailyal peripherally active mu opioid receptor awigigt for opioid-induced constipation (OIC).
The axelopran Phase 2 program demonstrated aallinmoeaningful treatment effect in OIC patientsngared to placebo. The goal for this
program is to demonstrate the ability to normalizevel function without impacting analgesia and ioya a variety of GI symptoms associatec
with constipation, which could provide axeloprarimé competitive advantage in the OIC market if destrated in Phase 3 studies and
approved by regulatory authorities. We have deazlag patient reported outcomes tool designed teunegatient symptoms which would be
used in a Phase 3 registrational program and paligrgenerate data that could differentiate thedoict from the competition. We are currently
refining our development and commercial strategyafelopran.

Oral Peripherally-Acting Mu Opioid Receptor Antagist—Axelopran Fixed Dose Combination (TD-1211)

In December 2014, we completed a Phasedy $0 determine the relative bioavailability of y{ontin® (oxycodone) and axelopran after
oral administration as a fixed dose combination@yelative to the individual components administetogether. The study examined a spray
coat application of axelopran to an opioid, OxyQuontb determine the effect of axelopran on Oxy@oekposure. The study compared
exposure of OxyContin alone, axelopran alone, Oxyidcand axelopran administered as two separatetsaland OxyContin sprageated witl
axelopran in a FDC. Study results demonstratedatkelbpran does not significantly alter systemipasure to OxyContin when delivered as a
FDC relative to when co-administered as individahlets. A FDC of axelopran and an opioid couldspre an important market opportunity,
as it has the potential to provide pain relief withconstipation in a single abuse-deterrent pilldatients using opioids on a chronic basis.

Velusetrag

Velusetrag is an oral, investigational ncedd developed for gastrointestinal motility disersl It is a highly selective agonist with high
intrinsic activity at the human 5-HT4 receptor. ¥&ttrag is being developed in collaboration witfaAVassermann S.p.A. ("Alfa
Wassermann") in a two-part Phase 2 program tdtiestfficacy, safety and tolerability of velusetiadhe treatment of patients with
gastroparesis. Positive top-line results from thteal Phase 2 proof-of-concept study under thigraship, which evaluated gastric emptying,
safety and tolerability of multiple doses of veliag, were announced in April 2014. Based on theselts, we have agreed with Alfa
Wassermann to advance velusetrag into a Phase@p §tursuant to our agreement with Alfa Wassermtnanfirst Phase 2 study was, and the
bulk of the Phase 2b study will be, funded by ANassermann.
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Economic Interest in GSFPartnered Respiratory Programs

We are entitled to receive an 85% econantarest in any future payments that may be madé 8¢ (pursuant to its agreements with
Theravance) relating to the Closed Triple prograuh the MABA program, each of which are describethore detail below. We are entitled
this economic interest through our equity ownershipRC. Our economic interest will not include gmayments associated with RELVAR®
ELLIPTA®/BREO® ELLIPTA®, ANORO® ELLIPTA® or vilanteol monotherapy. The following information regarglithe Closed Triple
and the MABA program is based solely upon publalgilable information and may not reflect the nresent developments under the
programs.

"Closed Triple" or FF/UMEC/VI (fluticasone furoateheclidinium bromide/vilanterol)

The Closed Triple program seeks to protideactivity of an inhaled corticosteroid (FF) ptus bronchodilators (UMEC, a LAMA, and
VI, a longacting beta2 agonist, or LABA) in a single delivelgvice. If the Closed Triple is successfully depeld and commercialized, we i
entitled to receive an 85% economic interest inrtyalties payable by GSK to TRC on worldwide redes, which royalties are upward-tiering
from 6.5% to 10%. In July 2014, Theravance and @8Kounced the initiation of a large, global Phapeogram for the Closed Triple in
patients with COPD. In February 2015, Theravanck@8K announced the start of a second global Phataly to evaluate the effects of the
Closed Triple in patients with COPD.

Inhaled Bifunctional Muscarinic Antagon-Beta2 Agonist (MABA)

GSK961081 ('081) is an investigationalgramolecule bifunctional bronchodilator with battuscarinic antagonist and beta2 receptor
agonist (MABA) activity that was discovered by usem we were part of Theravance. In August 2014ra\tsnce reported that preclinical
Phase 3-enabling studies and a Phase 1 study eatthiz volunteers of '081/FF are ongoing to expite@otential as a once-daily medicine
delivered in GSK's ELLIPTA® inhaler.

If a single-agent MABA medicine containi®@1 is successfully developed and commercializedare entitled to receive an 85%
economic interest in the royalties payable by GERKRC on worldwide net sales, which royalties rahgaveen 10% and 20% of annual glc
net sales up to $3.5 billion, and 7.5% for all aadrglobal net sales above $3.5 billion. If a MAB/Aedicine containing '081 is commercialized
only as a combination product, such as '081/FFtdialty rate is 70% of the rate applicable to salkthe single-agent MABA medicine. If a
MABA medicine containing '081 is successfully dedd and commercialized in multiple regions ofweld, GSK will pay TRC contingent
milestone payments of up to $125.0 million for rgée-agent medicine and up to $250.0 million fothba single-agent and a combination
medicine, and in each case we would be entitlgddeive an 85% economic interest in any such patanen

Theravance Respiratory Company, LLC

Prior to the Spi®ff, Theravance assigned to TRC, a Delaware limidulity company formed and controlled by Therage, its strateg
alliance agreement with GSK and all of its rightsl abligations under its LABA collaboration agreermwith GSK other than with respect to
RELVAR® ELLIPTA®/BREO® ELLIPTA®, ANORO® ELLIPTA® ard vilanterol monotherapy. Our equity interest ind'R the
mechanism by which we are entitled to the 85% egoodnterest in any future payments made by GSKeutide strategic alliance agreement
and under the portion of the collaboration agredrassigned to TRC. The drug programs assigned @ ifiBude the Closed Triple and the
MABA program, as monotherapy and in combinatiorhvather therapeutically active components, sudmnashaled corticosteroid (ICS), as
well as any other product or combination of produbat may be discovered and developed in thedutnder these GSK Agreements.

8
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Our Strategy

Our mission is to create value from a dieeand unique set of assets: an approved prodpigtene of mid- and late-stage assets, and a
productive research platform designed for long-tgrowth. With our successful drug discovery andaliggment track record, commercial
infrastructure, experienced management team araieeff corporate structure, we believe that wevea positioned to create value for our
shareholders and make a difference in the livgmténts.

We follow these core guiding principlesoir mission to drive value creation:

. Focus on insight and innovation;

. Outsource non-core activities;

. Create and foster an integrated environment; and
. Aggressively manage uncertainty.

Our research and development activitiecaneentrated primarily on three therapeutic arediseases of the lung and gastrointestinal
tract and infectious disease—and we have estallisltmmercial infrastructure focused on the acate setting. We manage our pipeline
with the goal of optimizing program value and adltion of resources. We employ multiple strateggescbmmercialization of our products.
Our approach may involve retaining all product tighnd marketing a product independently in the Uh®dominantly in the acute care
setting, or we may partner a product to extendcourmercial reach beyond the acute care settirexgand our geographic reach, and/or to
manage the financial risk associated with the @nogrAlternatively, our strategy may be to monetizeivest an asset that we designate as
outside our core business, where we believe thgranois optimized by leveraging partner capabditidd removing or limiting our research
and development costs.

Manufacturing

Although we have limited ineuse active pharmaceutical ingredient ("API") prattbn capabilities, we rely primarily on a numloéthird
parties, including contract manufacturing orgarga and our collaborative partners, to produceaative pharmaceutical ingredient and drug
product.

We believe that we have in-house expettiseanage a network of third-party manufacturers. Wlieve that we will be able to continue
to negotiate third-party manufacturing arrangementsommercially reasonable terms and that it mali be necessary for us to obtain internal
manufacturing capacity in order to develop or comuiadize our products. However, if we are unablelbtain contract manufacturing or obt
such manufacturing on commercially reasonable teom§ manufacturing is interrupted at one of suppliers, whether due to regulatory or
other reasons, we may not be able to develop on@mialize our products as planned.

We have a single source of supply of tel@irm API and another, separate single source gilgwgd VIBATIV drug product. If, for any
reason, either the single-source third-party mastufar of telavancin API or of VIBATIV drug produig unable or unwilling to perform, or if
its performance does not meet regulatory requirgésnémcluding maintaining cGMP compliance, we may Ime able to locate alternative
manufacturers, enter into acceptable agreemernttstigim or obtain sufficient quantities of API anifhed drug product in a timely manner.
Any inability to acquire sufficient quantities ofPA or finished drug product in a timely manner froorrent or future sources would adversely
affect the commercialization of VIBATIV and coulduse the price of our securities to fall.

9
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Government Regulation

The development and commercialization dATIV and our product candidates by us and ouratmilation partners and our ongoing
research are subject to extensive regulation beigwrental authorities in the United States andratbentries. Before marketing in the United
States, any medicine must undergo rigorous preelistudies and clinical studies and an extensygealatory approval process implementec
the FDA under the Federal Food, Drug, and CosndaticOutside the United States, the ability to nedk product depends upon receiving a
marketing authorization from the appropriate retpriaauthorities. The requirements governing thedet of clinical studies, marketing
authorization, pricing and reimbursement vary widebm country to country. In any country, howewde commercialization of medicines is
permitted only if the appropriate regulatory auttyois satisfied that we have presented adequatieree of the safety, quality and efficacy of
our medicines.

Before commencing clinical studies in husianthe United States, we must submit to the FRAn&estigational New Drug application
that includes, among other things, the resultse€lmical studies. If the FDA accepts the Investignal New Drug submission, clinical studies
are usually conducted in three phases and underdv@ssight. These phases generally include theviatig:

Phase 1. The product candidate is introduced into hgaftiliman volunteers and is tested for safety, dulseaince and
pharmacokinetics.

Phase 2. The product candidate is introduced into atiehipatient population to assess the efficacy efittug in specific, targeted
indications, assess dosage tolerance and optirsabdoand identify possible adverse effects aretysabks.

Phase 3. If a compound is found to be potentially effeetand to have an acceptable safety profile irsBt2aevaluations, the clinical
study will be expanded to further demonstrate ctihefficacy, optimal dosage and safety within apamded patient population.

The results of product development, précdihstudies and clinical studies must be submiiteitie FDA as part of a new drug application,
or NDA. The NDA also must contain extensive mantufang information. NDAs for new chemical entitiage subject to performance goals
defined in the Prescription Drug User Fee Act ("HE&U) which suggests a goal for FDA action within gionths of the 60-day filing date for
applications that are granted priority review afdrionths of the 60-day filing date for applicatidhat receive standard review. For a product
candidate no active ingredient of which has beewipusly approved by the FDA, the FDA must eittefer the product candidate to an
advisory committee for review or provide in theiaatlietter on the application for the product caladé a summary of the reasons why the
product candidate was not referred to an advisomyraittee prior to approval. In addition, under 29 Food and Drug Administration
Amendments Act, the FDA has authority to requirersission of a formal Risk Evaluation and Managen@trategy ("REMS") to ensure safe
use of the product. At the end of the review pertbd FDA communicates an approval of the NDA sués a complete response listing the
application's deficiencies.

Once approved, the FDA may withdraw thedpat approval if compliance with pre- and post-nedirkg regulatory standards is not
maintained or if safety or quality issues are idett after the product reaches the marketplacaditition, the FDA may require post-
marketing studies, referred to as Phase 4 studiesonitor the effect of approved products, and tmait further marketing of the product
based on the results of these post-marketing stu@ifee FDA has broad postarket regulatory and enforcement powers, includiregability tc
suspend or delay issuance of approvals, seize pteduithdraw approvals, enjoin violations, anditage criminal prosecution.
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If regulatory approval for a medicine ig¢ahed, the clearance to market the product wililéed to those diseases and conditions for
which the medicine is effective, as demonstratedutgh clinical studies and included in the medistabeling. Even if this regulatory appro
is obtained, a marketed medicine, its manufactamerits manufacturing facilities are subject totoaral review and periodic inspections by
FDA. The FDA ensures the quality of approved mexdisiby carefully monitoring manufacturers' compt@awith its cGMP regulations. The
cGMP regulations for drugs contain minimum requieats for the methods, facilities, and controls ugsedanufacturing, processing, and
packaging of a medicine. The regulations are irédrtd make sure that a medicine is safe for uskthat it has the ingredients and strength it
claims to have. Discovery of previously unknownlgemns with a medicine, manufacturer or facility ntagult in restrictions on the medicine
or manufacturer, including costly recalls or withahal of the medicine from the market.

We and our collaboration partners are sidgect to various laws and regulations regardahgtatory practices, the experimental use of
animals and the use and disposal of hazardoustentply hazardous substances in connection witiresearch. In each of these areas, as
above, the FDA and other regulatory authoritiesehawad regulatory and enforcement powers, inctuttie ability to suspend or delay
issuance of approvals, seize products, withdrawamas, enjoin violations, and institute criminabpecution, any one or more of which could
have a material adverse effect upon our businesmdial condition and results of operations.

Outside the United States our ability taketour products will also depend on receiving kating authorizations from the appropriate
regulatory authorities. Risks similar to those agsed with FDA approval described above exist whith regulatory approval processes in 0
countries.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

We will be able to protect our technologyni unauthorized use by third parties only to tkiert that our technology is covered by valid
and enforceable patents or is effectively maintia® trade secrets. Our success in the futurelepiénd in part on obtaining patent protection
for our product candidates. Accordingly, patentd ather proprietary rights are essential elemehtaipbusiness. Our policy is to seek in the
United States and selected foreign countries pat@té¢ction for novel technologies and compositiohmatter that are commercially import.
to the development of our business. For proprietanw-how that is not patentable, processes fockvpatents are difficult to enforce and any
other elements of our drug discovery process thatlve proprietary know-how and technology thatdas covered by patent applications, we
rely on trade secret protection and confidentiaigyeements to protect our interests. We requiiief aur employees, consultants and advisors
to enter into confidentiality agreements. Whelis itecessary to share our proprietary informatiodata with outside parties, our policy is to
make available only that information and data regfito accomplish the desired purpose and onlyuyaniso a duty of confidentiality on the
part of those parties.

As of December 31, 2014, we or one of oholy-owned subsidiaries owned 385 issued UnitedeStpatents and 1,362 granted foreign
patents, as well as additional pending United Stp#tent applications and foreign patent applioatidhe claims in these various patents and
patent applications are directed to compositionmatter, including claims covering product candidaiead compounds and key intermediate:
pharmaceutical compositions, methods of use anckegses for making our compounds along with metbbdssign, synthesis, selection and
use relevant to multivalency in general and toresearch and development programs in particulgratticular, our wholly-owned subsidiary
Theravance Biopharma Antibiotics IP, LLC owns tbidwing U.S. patents which are listed in the FBpproved Drug Products with
Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluatiof@range Book) for telavancin: U.S. Patent No. 6,638 B2, expiring on September 11, 2023; U.S. Ri
No. 6,858,584 B2, expiring on August 24, 2022; UP&tent No. 6,872,701 B2, expiring on June 5, 20QR$; Patent No. 7,008,923 E
expiring on May 6, 2021; U.S. Patent No. 7,208,B2]1 expiring on May 1, 2021; U.S. Patent No. 7,891,B2, expiring on May 1, 2021; U.
Patent No. 7,531,623 B2, expiring on January 172QRS. Patent No. 7,544,364 B2, expiring on Magd21; U.S. Patent No. 7,700,550 B2,
expiring on May 1, 2021; U.S. Patent No. 8,101,B25expiring on May 1, 2021; and U.S. Patent N@58,580 B2, expiring on May 1, 2021.
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United States issued patents and foreigenagenerally expire 20 years after filing. Tla¢ept rights relating to VIBATIV® (telavancin)
currently consist of United States patents thatrexpetween 2019 and 2027, additional pending driates patent applications and
counterpart patents and patent applications innaben of jurisdictions, including Europe. Nevertteslgissued patents can be challenged,
narrowed, invalidated or circumvented, which cdirfdt our ability to stop competitors from markegisimilar products and threaten our ab
to commercialize our product candidates. Our pgieaition, similar to other companies in our inaysis generally uncertain and involves
complex legal and factual questions. To maintainpraprietary position we will need to obtain etige claims and enforce these claims once
granted. It is possible that, before any of oudpiais can be commercialized, any related patenterpiye or remain in force only for a short
period following commercialization, thereby redugimny advantage of the patent. Also, we do not kwiwather any of our patent applications
will result in any issued patents or, if issuedgttter the scope of the issued claims will be sigfficto protect our proprietary position.

Theravance entered into a License AgreemvéhtJanssen Pharmaceutica ("Janssen™) pursuavitiod it licensed rights under certain
patents owned by Janssen covering an excipientingbd formulation of telavancin. This license egmnent was transferred to us as a result ¢
the Spin-Off. We believe that the general and faiarterms of the agreement with Janssen are andowurse terms. Pursuant to the terms of
this license agreement, we will be obligated to masalties to Janssen based on any commercial SBMIBATIV® (telavancin). The license
terminable by us upon prior written notice to Jamssr upon an uncured breach or a liquidation esahe of the parties.

Competition

Our mission is to create value from a dieesind unique set of assets: an approved prodpigtelne of mid- and late-stage assets, and a
productive research platform designed for long-tgrowth. Our marketed product and our researchdawelopment programs target three
therapeutic areas—infectious disease and dise&$ies loing and gastrointestinal tract—and our comuiaginfrastructure is focused on the
acute care setting. We expect that any mediciresnth commercialize with our collaborative partr@r®n our own will compete with existil
and future market-leading medicines.

Many of our competitors have substantighgater financial, technical and personnel resautitan we have. In addition, many of these
competitors have significantly greater commeraifilastructures than we have. Our ability to competecessfully will depend largely on our
ability to leverage our experience in drug discgvand development to:

. discover and develop medicines that are superiothter products in the market;

. attract qualified scientific, product development@ommercial personnel;

. obtain patent and/or other proprietary protectimndur medicines and technologies;

. obtain required regulatory approvals; and

. successfully collaborate with pharmaceutical congmim the discovery, development and commerciédinaof new medicines.

VIBATIV® (telavancin). VIBATIV competes with vancomycin, a generic dithhat is manufactured by a variety of companissyell as
other drugs marketed to treat complicated skinskil structure infections and hospital-acquired esatilator-associated bacterial pneumonia
caused by Gram-positive bacteria. Currently marketeducts include but are not limited to Cubici(@ptomycin) and Sivextro® (tedizolid)
marketed by Merck & Co., Inc.; Zyvox® (linezolid)arketed by Pfizer; Teflaro® (ceftaroline) and Dalga™ (dalbavancin) marketed by
Actavis; and Orbactiv™ (oritavancin) marketed byeTedicines Company. To compete effectively withsia medicines, and in particular
with the
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relatively inexpensive generic option of vancomyeue will need to demonstrate to physicians thasgell on experience, clinical data, side-
effect profiles and other factors, VIBATIV is a &ble alternative to vancomycin and other existingubsequently-developed anti-infective
drugs in certain clinical situations.

TD-4208 long-acting muscarinic antagonlsAllA).  If successfully developed and approved asiteednce-daily nebulized LAMA,
TD-4208 would be expected to compete predominamitly short-acting nebulized bronchodilators usdd 8 times per day and has the
potential to be a first line prescription or compkmnt to single agent nebulized long-acting betanesfjgLABA) products used two times per
day.

In addition, as the principles of multivatenedicine design become more widely known andeapgted based on patent and scientific
publications and regulatory filings, we expect filedd to become highly competitive. Pharmaceutaahpanies, biotechnology companies ana
academic and research institutions may seek tda@gpeoduct candidates based upon the principldenying our multivalent technologies.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 287 emglsyef which 187 were engaged primarily in researahdevelopment activities. Some of
our employees continue to provide services to Maree pursuant to agreements between our comp#étoas. of our employees are
represented by a labor union. We consider our eysploelations to be good.

Available Information

Our Internet addressvisvw.theravance.comOur investor relations website is locatedhtfp://investor.theravance.comiVe make
available free of charge on our investor relatimedsite under "SEC Filings" our Annual Reports omnfr 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, our diregtand officers' Section 16 Reports and any amentisrto those reports as soon as
reasonably practicable after filing or furnishingck materials to the U.S. Securities and Excharger@ission ("SEC"). The information foul
on our website is not part of this or any otheloréthat we file with or furnish to the SEC. Thesace Biopharma and the Theravance
Biopharma logo are registered trademarks of theaMaace Biopharma group of companies. Trademaiddehames or service marks of othel
companies appearing in this report are the propertiyeir respective owners.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
RISKS RELATING TO THE COMPANY
We anticipate that we will incur losses for the &seeable future. We may never achieve or sustaofifability.

First as Theravance, Inc. ("Theravancei)l since June 2, 2014 as Theravance Biopharmaawelieen engaged in discovery and
development of compounds and product candidates sind-1997. We may never generate sufficient regdrom the sale of medicines or
royalties on sales by our partners or via our @gein Theravance Respiratory Company, LLC ("TRiG"achieve profitability. During the yet
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we re@jhizses of $237.0 million, $156.3 million and&#illion, respectively, which are
reflected in the Shareholders' Equity and Paremy@my Deficit on our consolidated balance sheetsr&flect cumulative net loss incurred
and retained after June 2, 2014, the effective dfatiee Spin-Off, as accumulated deficit on oursalidated balance sheets. We expect to
continue to incur net losses over the next seweals as we continue our drug discovery effortsiaaalr significant preclinical and clinical
development costs related to our current produntlicates and commercialization and developmensaesiting
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to VIBATIV® (telavancin). In particular, to the estit we advance our product candidates into andigitréater stage clinical studies without a
partner, such as axelopran (TD-1211) in our Pergdhdu Opioid Receptor Antagonist program for ogidmduced constipation, we will incur
substantial expenses. We are also making additiomestments in telavancin, our approved antibidtmr example, in February 2015 we
announced initiation of a Phase 3 registrationalysfor bacteremia and initiation of a patient sdgi study. In addition, we have increased,
may continue to increase, the number of sales septatives and medical science liaisons in the slifporting physician education on the
proper usage of VIBATIV. We are incurring all oktlsosts and expenses associated with the comnizatiath of VIBATIV in the U.S.,
including the creation of an independent salesmarketing organization with appropriate technioglertise, supporting infrastructure and
distribution capabilities, expansion of medicabaf presence, manufacturing and third party vefatgstics and consultant support, and post-
marketing studies. Our commitment of resourcesIBAT 1V, to the continued development of our existiproduct candidates and to our
discovery programs will require significant additéd funding. Our operating expenses also will iaseeif:

. our earlier stage potential products move intorlstage clinical development, which is generallm@e expensive stage of
development;

. additional preclinical product candidates alected for clinical development;

. we pursue clinical development of our poterpiaducts in new indications;

. we increase the number of patents we are prtisgaor otherwise expend additional resources damgprosecution or defense;
and

. we acquire additional technologies, product canéi&lgroducts or businesses.

Other than potential revenues from VIBATBUr only approved medicine, and potential contmgeayments under collaboration
agreements, we do not expect to generate salesueséom our programs for the foreseeable futbirece we or our collaborators or licensee:
may not successfully develop additional produdiéaim required regulatory approvals, manufactuoelpcts at an acceptable cost or with
appropriate quality, or successfully market suadpcts with desired margins, our expenses mayrooatio exceed any revenues we may
receive.

In the absence of substantial licensingtiogent payments or other revenues from thirdypeotlaborators, royalties on sales of products
licensed under our intellectual property rightsufa revenues from our products in developmentloercssources of revenues, we will continue
to incur operating losses and will require addiilocapital to fully execute our business stratddye likelihood of reaching, and time required
to reach, sustained profitability are highly unagrt As a result, we expect to continue to incurssantial losses for the foreseeable future. We
are uncertain when or if we will ever be able thiaee or sustain profitability. Failure to beconmelaemain profitable would adversely affect
the price of our securities and our ability to eaisipital and continue operations.

If additional capital is not available, we may have curtail or cease operations or we could be fedcto share our rights to commerciali:
our product candidates with third parties on terrttgat may not be favorable to us.

Based on our current operating plans amahitial forecasts, we believe that our cash, cgslvalents and marketable securities will be
sufficient to meet our anticipated operating ndedsit least the next twelve months. If our currepérating plans or financial forecasts chal
we may require additional funding sooner in therfaf public or private equity offerings, debt fircamgs or additional collaborations and
licensing arrangements. For example, if we choggdgress axelopran (TD-1211) in our Peripheral®fioid Receptor Antagonist program
for opioid-induced constipation into later-stage&lepment on our own, our capital needs would iaseesubstantially. We also are making
additional investments in telavancin, our approaetibiotic, which will increase our operating
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expenses. For example, in February 2015 we annduniti@ation of a Phase 3 registrational studybacteremia and initiation of a patient
registry study. In addition, we have increased, mag continue to increase, the number of salegseptatives and medical science liaisons ir
the U.S. supporting physician education on the @rogage of VIBATIV.

Although we expect that we will have suffitt cash to fund our operations and working chpéquirements for at least the next twelve
months based on current operating plans and finhfurecasts, we may need to raise additional abjpithe future to, among other things:

. fund our discovery efforts and research and lkbgwveent programs;

. progress mid-to-late stage product candidateslater stage development, if warranted;
. respond to competitive pressures; and

. acquire complementary businesses or technologies

Our future capital needs depend on manpfacincluding:

. the scope, duration and expenditures associatédowitdiscovery efforts and research and developpregrams;

. continued scientific progress in these programs;

. the extent to which we encounter technical obssacl@ur research and development programs;

. the outcome of potential licensing or partnerirepsactions, if any;

. competing technological developments;

. the extent of our proprietary patent positiomur product candidates;

. our facilities expenses, which will vary deperglbn the time and terms of any facility leaseulisase we may enter into;
. potential litigation and other contingenciesgan

. the regulatory approval process for our prodactdidates.

We may seek to raise additional capitatmain future funding through public or private ggwfferings, debt financings or additional
collaborations and licensing arrangements. We noapea able to obtain additional financing on tefengrable to us, if at all. General market
conditions may make it very difficult for us to &dancing from the capital markets. We may beurezg to relinquish rights to our
technologies or product candidates, or grant liesrm terms that are not favorable to us, in caleaise additional funds through
collaborations or licensing arrangements. If adéegjfiands are not available, we may have to sequerezdinical and clinical studies as
opposed to conducting them concomitantly in ordezanserve resources, or delay, reduce or elimorateor more of our research or
development programs and reduce overall overhepenses. If we are unable to raise additional clapitabtain future funding in sufficient
amounts or on terms acceptable to us, we may loawveke reductions in our workforce and may be pr@dafrom continuing our discovery
and development efforts and exploiting other caspmppportunities. This would likely harm our buesis, prospects and financial condition
cause the price of our securities to fall.

We may seek to obtain future financing through tiesuance of debt or equity, which may have an adeeeffect on our shareholders or
may otherwise adversely affect our business.

If we raise funds through the issuanceatiftdconvertible debt or equity, any debt secwitiepreferred shares issued will have rights,
preferences and privileges senior to those of lsldeour ordinary shares in the event of liquidatiln such event, there is a possibility that
once all senior
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claims are settled, there may be no assets rengaimipay out to the holders of ordinary sharesaddition, if we raise funds through the
issuance of additional equity, whether through atevplacements or public offerings, such an isstiarauld dilute ownership of our current
shareholders that do not participate in the isselalhor example, in connection with entering intwodaboration agreement with Mylan for the
development and commercialization of a nebulizethfdation of our long-acting muscarinic antagoistMA) TD-4208 in February 2015,
Mylan made a $30 million equity investment in uspawychasing 1,585,790 newly issued ordinary shavkeih issuance resulted in dilution of
ownership to our shareholders. In addition, if weksto raise funds and this becomes known publics/market price of our shares could
decline upon the expectation of dilution, regarslleswhether dilution actually occurs. If we areahle to obtain any needed additional fund
we may be required to reduce the scope of, defagiiminate some or all of, our planned researelvetbpment and commercialization
activities or to license to third parties the rigth commercialize products or technologies thatweeld otherwise seek to commercialize
ourselves or on terms that are less attractive tt@nmight otherwise be, any of which could matériharm our business.

In addition, the terms of debt securitiemyralso impose restrictions on our operations, whiey include limiting our ability to incur
additional indebtedness, pay dividends on or rdmsge our share capital, or make certain acquisitwrinvestments. In addition, we may be
subject to covenants requiring us to satisfy ceriaiancial tests and ratios, and our ability thsfa such covenants may be affected by events
outside of our control.

We do not control TRC and, in particular, have normtrol over or access to non-public information abbthe respiratory programs that
Theravance partnered with GSK and assigned to TR@onnection with the Spin-Off (the "GSK-Partnereldespiratory Programs").

Theravance has assigned to TRC its st@atdlijince agreement with GSK and all of its rigétsl obligations under its LABA
collaboration agreement other than with respeREQVAR® ELLIPTA®/BREO® ELLIPTA®, ANORO® ELLIPTA® ard vilanterol
monotherapy. Our equity interest in TRC entitlesauan 85% economic interest in any future paymerade by GSK under the strategic
alliance agreement and under the portion of thkalootation agreement assigned to TRC (the "GSK &gents”). These other drug programs
include the Closed Triple combination of fluticasdoroate (FF)/umeclidinium (UMEC)/vilanterol (V{IICS/LAMA/LABA) and the MABA
program, as monotherapy and in combination witleiotherapeutically active components, such aslaasled corticosteroid (ICS), and any
other product or combination of products that maydtscovered and developed in the future undeGBK Agreements. Our economic interest
does not include any payments by GSK associatddRELVAR® ELLIPTA®/BREO® ELLIPTA®, ANORO® ELLIPTA®or vilanterol
monotherapy. Theravance controls TRC and, excemteidain limited consent rights, we have no righparticipate in the business and affairs
of TRC. Theravance has the exclusive right to apbRC's manager who, among other things, is resplnfor the day-to-day management
of the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs and esesrthe rights relating to the GSK-Partnered Ragply Programs. As a result, we have
no rights to participate in or access to non-puipliormation about the development and commeraébn of the GSK-Partnered Respiratory
Programs and no right to enforce rights under t8& @greements assigned to TRC. Moreover, we haveyrofithe same risks with respect to
our and TRC's dependence on GSK as we have wilecet our dependence on our own partners.
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If the GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs in which we haveuwbstantial economic interest, including the Clos&dple program and
MABA program, encounter delays, do not demonstratdety and efficacy, are terminated, or if thereeaainy adverse developments
perceived adverse developments with respect tethesgrams, our business will be harmed, and thé&prof our securities could fall

We have no access to confidential infororategarding the progress of, or plans for, the &8iknered Respiratory Programs, including
the Closed Triple program and the MABA program, amdhave little, if any, ability to influence theggress of those programs because our
interest in these programs is only through our enan interest in TRC, which is controlled by Thesage. However, if any of the GSK-
Partnered Respiratory Programs assigned to TRQichwve have a substantial economic interest, dinluthe Closed Triple program and
MABA program, encounter delays, do not demonssafety and efficacy, are terminated, or if theeary adverse developments or perce
adverse developments with respect to such programsyusiness will be harmed, and the price ofsawurities could fall. Examples of such
adverse developments include, but are not limived t

. GSK deciding to delay or halt development of ahthe GSK-Partnered Respiratory Programs assigm&&RC in which we
have a substantial economic interest, includingQtosed Triple, GSK961081 ('081), the lead compouartie MABA program,
or '081/FF;

. the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") andéher regulatory authorities determining that ahyhe studies under

these programs do not demonstrate adequate safetffoacy, or that additional non-clinical or diial studies are required with
respect to such programs;

. safety, efficacy or other concerns arising fromickl or non-clinical studies in these programs; or

. any particular FDA requirements or changes in FDAcy or guidance regarding these programs.

Without a commercialization partner for VIBATIV irthe U.S. we will bear the full cost of developirtgtcapability to market, sell and
distribute the product.

We evaluate commercial strategy on a proddy@roduct basis either to engage pharmaceuiicalher healthcare companies with an
existing sales and marketing organization andidigion system to market, sell and distribute owdpicts or to commercialize a product
ourselves. However, we may not be able to estatiiisée sales and distribution relationships ongtetéde terms, or at all, or may encounter
difficulties in commercializing a product ourselv&®r any of our product candidates that receigalegory approval in the future and are not
covered by our current collaboration agreementsyilleeed a partner in order to commercialize spotducts unless we establish indepen
sales, marketing and distribution capabilities veiipropriate technical expertise and supportingsgtfucture. VIBATIV was returned to
Theravance by Astellas Pharma Inc. ("Astellas"grBlvance's former VIBATIV collaboration partner January 2012, and Astellas is entitled
to a ten-year, 2% royalty on future net sales BATIV. On August 14, 2013, Theravance announcedé¢hgroduction of VIBATIV to the
U.S. market with the commencement of shipmentstimowrholesaler channel and we have increasednagdontinue to increase, our small
sales force and medical affairs presence in the Th8 risks of commercializing VIBATIV in the U.®ithout a partner include:

. costs and expenses associated with creatingd@péndent sales and marketing organization wipnogyiate technical expertise
and supporting infrastructure and distribution dalitg, including third party vendor logistics am@nsultant support, which
costs and expenses could,
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depending on the scope and method of the markeffod, exceed any product revenue from VIBATIV &mveral years;

. our unproven ability to retain adequate numbemsfigictive sales and marketing personnel;

. our unproven ability to retain medical sciencesliais in the U.S. supporting physician educatiothemproper usage of
VIBATIV;

. the unproven ability of sales personnel to obtaiteas to or educate adequate numbers of physiieng prescribing VIBATI\

in appropriate clinical situations;

. the lack of complementary products to be offdrgdales personnel, which may put us at a conneetiisadvantage relative to
companies with more extensive product lines; and

. bearing the full costs of further development ddtancin.

If we are not successful in building aremtal sales and marketing organization with appat@technical expertise and supporting
infrastructure and distribution capability, we wilhve difficulty commercializing VIBATIV in the U.Swhich would adversely affect our
business and financial condition and the priceusfsecurities could fall.

With regard to all of our programs, any delay in eanencing or completing clinical studies for producandidates and any adverse results
from clinical or non-clinical studies or regulatory obstacles produardidates may face, would harm our business and phiee of our
securities could fall

Each of our product candidates must undergensive non-clinical and clinical studies a®adition to regulatory approval. Non-clinical
and clinical studies are expensive, take many yieacemplete and study results may lead to delaysrther studies or decisions to terminate
programs. The commencement and completion of elisittdies for our product candidates may be ddlayel programs may be terminated
due to many factors, including, but not limited to:

. lack of effectiveness of product candidates dudiigjcal studies (for example, as Theravance erpeed when TD-9855 did
not meet the primary efficacy endpoints in the RHastudy in adult patients with Attention-Defikfyperactivity Disorder);

. adverse events, safety issues or side effectsnglat the product candidates or their formulafimio medicines;
. inability to raise additional capital in sufficieaimounts to continue our development programs, lwhiie very expensive;
. our inability to enter into partnering arrangememeisting to the development and commercializatibaur programs and

product candidates;
. the need to sequence clinical studies as opposeshducting them concomitantly in order to camseaesources;

. our inability or the inability of our collabomats or licensees to manufacture or obtain frondtparties materials sufficient for
use in non-clinical and clinical studies;

. governmental or regulatory delays and changesgulasory requirements, policy and guidelines;

. failure of our partners to advance our product @atds through clinical development;

. delays in patient enrollment and variability in th@nber and types of patients available for clingtadies;

. difficulty in maintaining contact with patients afttreatment, resulting in incomplete data;

. varying regulatory requirements or interpretasiof data among the FDA and foreign regulatorpatities; and

. a regional disturbance where we or our collatdegartners are enrolling patients in clinicéls, such as a pandemic, terrorist

activities or war, political unrest or a naturataiter.
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If our product candidates that we develop on ourmar with collaborative partners are not approveg kegulatory authorities, including th
FDA, we will be unable to commercialize them.

The FDA must approve any new medicine leefocan be marketed and sold in the U.S. We nmastige the FDA and similar foreign
regulatory authorities with data from preclinicabaclinical studies that demonstrate that our pcodandidates are safe and effective for a
defined indication before they can be approvedfonmercial distribution. We will not obtain this@pval for a product candidate unless and
until the FDA approves a new drug application, @A The processes by which regulatory approvalsoatained from the FDA to market a
sell a new product are complex, require a numbgeafs and involve the expenditure of substangisburces. In order to market our medicine
in foreign jurisdictions, we must obtain separ&gulatory approvals in each country. The approvatgdure varies among countries and can
involve additional testing, and the time requiredbtain approval may differ from that requiredbtiain FDA approval. Approval by the FDA
does not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiegher countries, and approval by one foreigrutatpry authority does not ensure approval
by regulatory authorities in other foreign courgr@ by the FDA. Conversely, failure to obtain apyai in one or more jurisdictions may make
approval in other jurisdictions more difficult.

Clinical studies involving our product céatetes may reveal that those candidates are ineffeénferior to existing approved medicines,
unacceptably toxic, or that they have other unaetd side effects. In addition, the results otcpinécal studies do not necessarily predict
clinical success, and larger and later-stage @irstudies may not produce the same results dsrestge clinical studies.

Frequently, product candidates that hawsvehpromising results in early preclinical or ctial studies have subsequently suffered
significant setbacks or failed in later clinicalrarn-clinical studies. In addition, clinical andmolinical studies of potential products often
reveal that it is not possible or practical to aau development efforts for these product candgldf these studies are substantially delaye
fail to prove the safety and effectiveness of aadpct candidates in development, we may not receigulatory approval of any of these
product candidates. Further, the implementationes§ laws and regulations, and revisions to FDAicdihtrial design guidance have increasec
uncertainty regarding the approvability of new druin addition, over the past decade, the FDA immdmented additional requirements for
approval of new drugs, including advisory committeeetings for new chemical entities, and forma egaluation and mitigation strategy at
the FDA's discretion. These laws, regulations, ialtkl requirements and changes in interpretatandccause non-approval or further delays
in the FDA's review and approval of our and outatmdrative partner's product candidates, which daonihterially harm our business and
financial condition and the price of our securittesild fall.

We rely on a single manufacturer for the Active Ptmaaceutical Ingredient ("API") for telavancin and aseparate, single manufacturer for
VIBATIV drug product supply. Our business will beanmed if either of these single-source manufactusere not able to satisfy demand
and alternative sources are not available.

We have a single source of supply of ARItétavancin and another, separate single soursapyly of VIBATIV drug product. If, for an
reason, either single-source third party manufactaf telavancin API or of VIBATIV drug product isable or unwilling to perform, or if its
performance does not meet regulatory requiremertisiding maintaining current Good Manufacturingéice ("cGMP") compliance, we m
not be able to locate alternative manufacturergrento acceptable agreements with them or olstaificient quantities of API or finished drug
product in a timely manner. Any inability to acaqusufficient quantities of API or finished drug gzt in a timely manner from current or
future sources would adversely affect the commezeidon of VIBATIV and our obligations to our paktrs and the price of our securities
could fall.

Theravance's previous VIBATIV commercialiaa partner failed to maintain a reliable souréemig product supply which resulted in
critical product shortages and, eventually, suspernsf
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commercialization for well over a year. In May 20Theravance entered into an agreement with Ho¥goddwide, Inc. ("Hospira") to supp
VIBATIV drug product. In June 2013, the FDA apprdvdospira as a VIBATIV drug product manufacturergd dhis agreement with Hospira
has been assigned to us. Although we believe thapirh will be a reliable supplier of VIBATIV drygroduct, if it cannot perform or if its
performance does not meet regulatory requiremertisiding maintaining cGMP compliance, and if connoi@ manufacture of VIBATIV

drug product cannot be arranged elsewhere on dytiasis, the commercialization of VIBATIV will bedversely affected. In addition, in
February 2015 it was announced that Pfizer plasetpire Hospira later this year and we cannotipre&chether the acquisition will lead to
changes in Hospira's operations which may advemsgact our single source of supply for VIBATIV drproduct. Given the time required to
locate and qualify another acceptable drug prochastufacturer, any supply delay, suspension or tieaday Hospira (whether or not resulting
for or related to the proposed acquisition by Rjizeould adversely affect the commercializatioVdBATIV and our obligations to our
partners and the price of our securities could fall

We rely on a single source of supply for a numbéronrr product candidates, and our business will barmed if any of these single-source
manufacturers are not able to satisfy demand anteahative sources are not available.

We have limited in-house production captéd for preclinical and clinical study purposaad depend primarily on a number of third-
party APl and drug product manufacturers. We mayhawe long-term agreements with these third paeie our agreements with these
parties may be terminable at will by either pattmy time. If, for any reason, these third paréiesunable or unwilling to perform, or if their
performance does not meet regulatory requiremes@snay not be able to locate alternative manufacsuor enter into acceptable agreements
with them. Any inability to acquire sufficient quiities of APl and drug product in a timely mannemf these third parties could delay
preclinical and clinical studies and prevent usrfrdeveloping our product candidates in a cost-gffeenanner or on a timely basis. In
addition, manufacturers of our APl and drug produretsubject to the FDA's cGMP regulations andlainfioreign standards and we do not
have control over compliance with these regulationsur manufacturers.

Our manufacturing strategy presents thieiohg additional risks:

. because of the complex nature of many of ourpmmads, our manufacturers may not be able to ssftdlysmanufacture our
APIs and/or drug products in a cost effective antifoely manner and changing manufacturers forAfis or drug products
could involve lengthy technology transfer, validatiand regulatory qualification activities for thew manufacturer;

. the processes required to manufacture certainrofBls and drug products are specialized and adailanly from a limited
number of third-party manufacturers;

. some of the manufacturing processes for our ARtsdrug products have not been scaled to quemtigeded for continued
clinical studies or commercial sales, and delayscale-up to commercial quantities could delayicdihstudies, regulatory
submissions and commercialization of our produntiatates; and

. because some of the third-party manufacturersogegdd outside of the U.S., there may be diffieslin importing our APIs and

drug products or their components into the U.S eesult of, among other things, FDA import inspeet, incomplete or
inaccurate import documentation or defective pairigag
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Even if our product candidates receive regulatorgmoval, as VIBATIV has, commercialization of sugitoducts may be adversely affect
by regulatory actions and oversight.

Even if we receive regulatory approvaldor product candidates, this approval may inclimé@dtions on the indicated uses for which we
can market our medicines or the patient populatiah may utilize our medicines, which may limit timarket for our medicines or put us at a
competitive disadvantage relative to alternativerdpies. For example, the U.S. labeling for VIBATd¥htains a number of boxed warnings.
Products with boxed warnings are subject to mostrintive advertising regulations than productshaitt such warnings. In addition, the
VIBATIV labeling for hospital-acquired and ventitatassociated pneumonia ("HABP/VABP") in the U.8d the European Union specifies
that VIBATIV should be reserved for use when alégive treatments are not suitable. These restnistinake it more difficult to market
VIBATIV. With VIBATIV approved in certain countriesnve are subject to continuing regulatory obligasiosuch as safety reporting
requirements and additional post-marketing oblayej including regulatory oversight of promotiordanarketing.

In addition, the manufacturing, labelingckaging, adverse event reporting, advertisingnpteon and recordkeeping for the approved
product remain subject to extensive and ongoingleggry requirements. If we become aware of preslipunknown problems with an
approved product in the U.S. or overseas or araohinanufacturers' facilities, a regulatory autlyganay impose restrictions on the product,
the contract manufacturers or on us, including iréggius to reformulate the product, conduct addidl clinical studies, change the labeling of
the product, withdraw the product from the marketeguire the contract manufacturer to implememingfes to its facilities.

We are also subject to regulation by regionational, state and local agencies, includimgRepartment of Justice, the Federal Trade
Commission, the Office of Inspector General ofth8. Department of Health and Human Services aner segulatory bodies with respect to
VIBATIV, as well as governmental authorities in fleoforeign countries in which any of our produaididates are approved for
commercialization. The Federal Food, Drug, and Gatgnict, the Public Health Service Act and othextdral and state statutes and regula
govern to varying degrees the research, developmemtufacturing and commercial activities relatiogrescription pharmaceutical products,
including non-clinical and clinical testing, appedyvproduction, labeling, sale, distribution, impaxport, postnarket surveillance, advertisir
dissemination of information and promotion. If weamy third parties that provide these servicesifoare unable to comply, we may be sul
to regulatory or civil actions or penalties thatiltbsignificantly and adversely affect our busindssy failure to maintain regulatory approval
will limit our ability to commercialize our producandidates, which would materially and adverséfigcaour business and financial condition
and the price of our securities could fall.

The risks identified in this risk factotatng to regulatory actions and oversight by agesin the U.S. and throughout the world also
apply to the commercialization of any partnereddpigis by our collaboration partners, and such etgny actions and oversight may limit our
collaboration partners' ability to commercializelsyproducts, which could materially and adverségch our business and financial condition,
which may cause the price of our securities to fall

VIBATIV may not be accepted by physicians, patiertsrd party payors, or the medical community iregeral.

The commercial success of VIBATIV depengsiuits acceptance by physicians, patients, thartypayors and the medical communit
general. VIBATIV may not be sufficiently accepteg these parties. VIBATIV competes with vancomyarrelatively inexpensive generic
drug that is manufactured by a variety of comparaesl a number of existing antibacterials manufactand marketed by major
pharmaceutical companies and others, and may cemageinst new antibacterials that are not yet emtarket. If we are unable to
demonstrate to physicians that, based on
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experience, clinical data, side-effect profiles atiter factors, VIBATIV for the treatment of comgdied skin and skin structure infections
(cSSsSl) and HABP/VABP caused by susceptible Grasitipe bacteria in adult patients is a suitableralative to vancomycin and other
antibacterial drugs in certain clinical situatiom® may never generate meaningful revenue from MIBAwhich could cause the price of our
securities to fall. The degree of market acceptaiddBATIV depends on a number of factors, inclogli but not limited to:

. the demonstration of the clinical efficacy amdety of VIBATIV;
. the experiences of physicians, patients and pgayith the use of VIBATIV;
. potential negative perceptions of physicians relateproduct shortages and regional supply outdgealted

commercialization of VIBATIV, stemming from the mafacturing issues at the previous drug product kaipp

. potential negative perceptions of physicians relétethe European Commission's previous suspeasiorarketing
authorization for VIBATIV (which suspension wagdifl in March 2014) because the prior VIBATIV comuialization partner
single-source VIBATIV drug product supplier did noeet the cGMP requirements for the manufactuMIBATIV;

. any adverse developments or perceived adveksdapenents with respect to whether Pfizer's plaraeglisition of Hospira
later this year will lead to changes in Hospirgerations which may adversely impact our singles®of supply for VIBATIV
drug product;

. the advantages and disadvantages of VIBATIV comptralternative therapies;

. our ability to educate the medical community altbetappropriate circumstances for use of VIBATIV;
. the reimbursement policies of government anditharty payors; and

. the market price of VIBATIV relative to compegitherapies.

If our partners do not satisfy their obligations wer our agreements with them, or if they terminadar partnerships with them, we may n
be able to develop or commercialize our partneredduct candidates as planned.

In October 2012, Theravance entered intexatusive development and commercialization ageggwith Alfa Wassermann S.p.A. ("A
Wassermann") for velusetrag, our lead compounterbtHT4 program, covering the European Union, Rughina, Mexico and certain other
countries, and Theravance entered into a reseatietboration and license agreement with Merck szadver, develop and commercialize nc
small molecule therapeutics for the treatment oficaascular disease on an exclusive, worldwidésb&s March 2013, Theravance entered
into a commercialization agreement with Clinigero@y plc ("Clinigen") for VIBATIV in the European Uion and certain other European
countries (including Switzerland and Norway). Impection with these agreements, Theravance gramtixse parties certain rights regarding
the use of its patents and technology with resggettte compounds in our development programs, diictudevelopment and marketing rights.
In September 2013, Merck terminated its researthlmration and license agreement with Theravahhbe.Alfa Wassermann and Clinigen
agreements were assigned to us in the Spin-Off AlflaeWassermann agreement provides research araagenent funding for the program
under license, and if it decides not to progreeditensed program, we may not be able to deval@pmmercialize the program on our owr
January 2015, we entered into a collaboration ageeé with Mylan for the development and commerzéation of a nebulized formulation of
our LAMA TD-4208. Under the terms of the agreemerd,and Mylan will co-develop nebulized TD-4208 @®PD and other respiratory
diseases.
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Our partners might not fulfill all of thedbligations under these agreements, and, in oecta@iumstances, they may terminate our
partnership with them as Astellas did to Theravanclanuary 2012 with its VIBATIV agreement and\erck did to Theravance in Septem
2013 with the cardiovascular disease collaboratioeither event, we may be unable to assume thelolement and commercialization of the
product candidates covered by the agreements er id alternative arrangements with a third péstgevelop and commercialize such
product candidates. If a partner elected to proritetewn products and product candidates in praferdo those licensed from us, the
development and commercialization of product caaugisl covered by the agreements could be delayetnoinated, and future payments to us
could be delayed, reduced or eliminated and ounbas and financial condition could be materiattgd adversely affected. Accordingly, our
ability to receive any revenue from the productdidates covered by these agreements is dependéme efforts of our partners. If a partner
terminates or breaches its agreements with usrwithefails to complete its obligations in a timehanner or alleges that we have breache
contractual obligations under these agreementgitheces of successfully developing or commerdaiproduct candidates under the
collaboration could be materially and adverselgetéd. We could also become involved in disputél apartner, which could lead to delays
in or termination of our development and commeizédion programs and time-consuming and expengigation or arbitration.

Because GSK is a strategic partner of Theravancstrategic partner of TRC and a significant sharelder of us, it may take actions that i
certain cases are materially harmful to both our dimess and to our other shareholders.

Based on our review of publicly availablefs as of February 17, 2015, GSK beneficiallynea approximately 24.5% of our outstanc
ordinary shares. GSK is also a strategic partn@htravance with rights and obligations under tisK@greements that may cause GSK's
interests to differ from the interests of us andather shareholders. In particular, upon the r@guy approval of the Closed Triple or a
MABAV/ICS in either the U.S. or the European Uni@5K's diligent efforts obligations under the GSKrégments with regard to
commercialization matters will have the objectiféarusing on the best interests of patients angimiaing the net value of the overall
portfolio of products under the GSK Agreementsldwing such regulatory approval, GSK's commercéatlon efforts will be guided by a
portfolio approach across products in which we havéndirect interest through TRC and products liicly we have no interest. Accordingly,
GSK's commercialization efforts may have the eftdaeducing the value of our interest in TRC. Rartnore, GSK has a substantial
respiratory product portfolio in addition to theoducts covered by the GSK Agreements. GSK may medq@ratory product portfolio decisic
or statements about its portfolio which may bemnay be perceived to be, harmful to the respirapoogducts partnered with Theravance and
TRC. For example, GSK could promote its own respisaproducts and/or delay or terminate the devalemp or commercialization of the
respiratory programs covered by the GSK Agreemdiiss, given the potential future royalty payme@®SK may be obligated to pay under
GSK Agreements, GSK may seek to acquire us or exguir interests in TRC in order to effectivelyued those payment obligations, though
the actions GSK may take to acquire us are limitedier our governance agreement with GSK whichexilire on December 31, 2017 (the
"Governance Agreement"). The timing of when GSK reagk to acquire us could potentially be when $éisesses information regarding the
status of drug programs covered by the GSK Agregsribat has not been publicly disclosed and iottegrwise known to us. As a result of
these differing interests, GSK may take actionsitiaelieves are in its best interest but whiclgiminot be in the best interests of either us or
our other shareholders. In addition, GSK could aksek to challenge our or Theravance's post-Splimafrations as violating or allowing it to
terminate the GSK Agreements, including by violgtihe confidentiality provisions of those agreermemtthe master agreement between (
Theravance and us entered into in connection WilSpin-Off, or otherwise violating its legal righiwhile we believe our operations fully
comply with the GSK Agreements, the master agre¢isuah
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applicable law, there can be no assurance thatrWwaearavance will prevail against any such claim&3$K. Moreover, regardless of the merit
of any claims by GSK, we may incur significant cast diversion of resources in defending themdufiteon, any other action or inaction by
either GSK or Theravance that results in a matdiggdute, allegation of breach, litigation, arliiva, or significant disagreement between tt
parties may be interpreted negatively by the maskély our investors, could harm our business aue the price of our securities to fall.
Examples of these kinds of issues include but atdimited to non-performance of contractual obfigas and allegations of non-performance,
disagreements over the relative marketing and sdfeds for Theravance's partnered products ahdraSK respiratory products, disputes
over public statements, and similar matters. Iregainany uncertainty about the respiratory prograartnered with GSK, the enforceability of
the GSK Agreements or the relationship/partnerbbigveen Theravance and GSK could result in sigaificeduction in the market price of
our securities and other material harm to our kBssin

Agreements entered into with or for the benefit@EK in connection with the Sp-Off may significantly restrict our business andfairs.

On March 3, 2014, in connection with théenSpff, we, Theravance and GSK entered into a nurobagreements that may significantly
restrict our business and affairs. In particulag, Wheravance and GSK entered into a three-wayemagteement (the "Master Agreement")
that, among other things, requires GSK's consemiake any changes to (A) the Separation and Digioib Agreement, Transition Services
Agreement, Employee Matters Agreement and Tax Mafigreement that would, individually or in the aggate, reasonably be expected to
adversely affect GSK in any material respect ortfi8) TRC Limited Liability Company Agreement, whicbnsent is not to be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed, provided that GB&y withhold, condition or delay such consentsrsble discretion with respect to certain
sections of the TRC Limited Liability Company Agmeent and any changes to the governance structdrBGf the confidentiality restrictions,
the consent rights, and the transfer restrictiarthé TRC Limited Liability Company Agreement. Tkiaster Agreement also limits the periods
of time that Theravance employees may provide sesvio us pursuant to the transition services aggaebetween Theravance and us. We
GSK also entered into (i) the Governance Agreerttett among other things, provides share purchightsito GSK and exempts GSK from
triggering our Rights Agreement until December&117, (ii) a registration rights agreement thaegiGSK certain registration rights with
respect to our ordinary shares held by GSK angdafiiiextension agreement that extends to us cedsirictive covenants similar to those
applicable to Theravance under the GSK Agreem@&histe can be no assurance that these restrictifimrsotvmaterially harm our business,
particularly given that GSK's interests may noabgned with the interests of our business or dhepshareholders.

If we are unable to enter into future collaboratioarrangements or if any such collaborations withitt parties are unsuccessful, we will t
unable to fully develop and commercialize all of oproduct candidates and our business will be acsedy affected.

Theravance's collaborations with Alfa Wassnn for velusetrag, with Clinigen for VIBATIV fdhe European Union, and with other
companies for regional development and commereititin of VIBATIV were assigned to us in connectigith the SpinOff. Also, through ou
interest in TRC we may participate economicallyrreravance's collaborations with GSK with respe¢he GSK-Partnered Respiratory
Programs. In addition, in January 2015 we entartma collaboration agreement with Mylan for theelepment and commercialization of a
nebulized formulation of TD-4208, our LAMA compourdditional collaborations will be needed to fuater-stage development of our
product candidates that have not been licenseattlaborator, such as axelopran (TD-1211) for mpinduced constipation, TD-9855 for
fatigue/pain, and TD-6450 for hepatitis C, or fdegitory that is not covered by existing colla@ibons, and to commercialize these product
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candidates if approved by the necessary regulatattyorities. In some instances, we may seek additihird parties with which to pursue
collaboration arrangements for the developmentcamimercialization of our development programs amdHe future commercialization of
VIBATIV in regions where it is not currently partregl. Collaborations with third parties regardingsé programs or our other programs may
require us to relinquish material rights, includiegenue from commercialization of our medicinetpoassume material ongoing developmen
obligations that we would have to fund. These daltation arrangements are complex and time-congyutoinegotiate, and if we are unable to
reach agreements with third-party collaboratorsnves fail to meet our business objectives and mamtial condition may be adversely
affected. We face significant competition in segkihird-party collaborators. We may be unable nal fihird parties to pursue product
collaborations on a timely basis or on acceptaias$. Furthermore, for any collaboration, we malyt@oable to control the amount of time
and resources that our partners devote to our ptadundidates and our partners may choose to fiwmalternative programs. Our inability to
successfully collaborate with third parties wouldriease our development costs and would limitikedithood of successful commercialization
of our product candidates and the price of our is&es could fall.

We depend on third parties in the conduct of oumital studies for our product candidates.

We depend on independent clinical invesbigga contract research organizations and othed-fharty service providers in the conduct of
our non-clinical and clinical studies for our pretlcandidates. We rely heavily on these partiegxecution of our non-clinical and clinical
studies, and control only certain aspects of thefiivities. Nevertheless, we are responsible fsugng that our clinical studies are conducte
accordance with good clinical practices ("GCPs'Y) ather regulations as required by the FDA andidoreegulatory authorities, and the
applicable protocol. Failure by these parties tmply with applicable regulations, GCPs and protsdolconducting studies of our product
candidates can result in a delay in our developmpedgrams or non-approval of our product candidbtesegulatory authorities.

The FDA enforces GCPs and other regulatibraugh periodic inspections of trial sponsorgjichl research organizations ("CROs"),
principal investigators and trial sites. If we oyaf the third parties on which we have relie¢témduct our clinical studies are determined to
have failed to comply with GCPs, the study protamohpplicable regulations, the clinical data gatest in our studies may be deemed
unreliable. This could result in na@pproval of our product candidates by the FDA, erovthe FDA may decide to conduct additional auali
require additional clinical studies, which wouldaleour development programs, could result in digant additional costs and the price of our
securities could fall.

We face substantial competition from companies witiore resources and experience than we have, whmiy result in others discovering,
developing, receiving approval for or commerciatigi products before or more successfully than we do.

Our ability to succeed in the future depead our ability to demonstrate and maintain a aatitipe advantage with respect to our
approach to the discovery and development of meekciOur objective is to discover, develop and censialize new small molecule
medicines with superior efficacy, convenience,rabdity and/or safety using our proprietary ingighchemistry, biology and multivalency,
where applicable. We expect that any medicinesviieatommercialize with our collaborative partneit @mpete with existing or future
market-leading medicines.

Many of our potential competitors have $absally greater financial, technical and persdmasources than we have. In addition, mar
these competitors have significantly greater conciaér
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infrastructures than we have. Our ability to coremiccessfully will depend largely on our abiliyiéverage our experience in drug discovery
and development to:

. discover and develop medicines that are superiothter products in the market;

. attract and retain qualified personnel;

. obtain patent and/or other proprietary protectimndur medicines and technologies;

. obtain required regulatory approvals; and

. successfully collaborate with pharmaceutical panies in the discovery, development and commézatadn of new medicines.

Pharmaceutical companies, including comgzamiith which we collaborate, may invest heavilytickly discover and develop or in-
license novel compounds that could make our prodaistiidates obsolete. Accordingly, our competitoay succeed in obtaining patent
protection, receiving FDA approval or discoveridgyeloping and commercializing medicines beforedaeOther companies are engaged in
the discovery of medicines that would compete whithproduct candidates that we are developing.

Any new medicine that competes with a gierar proprietary market leading medicine must destiate compelling advantages in
efficacy, convenience, tolerability and/or safetyrder to overcome severe price competition ancbbpemercially successful. VIBATIV must
demonstrate these advantages in certain circunegaas it competes with vancomycin, a relativebxpensive generic drug that is
manufactured by a number of companies, and a nuaflexisting antibacterial drugs marketed by majod other pharmaceutical companies.
If we are not able to compete effectively againsta@urrent and future competitors, our businesbnail grow, our financial condition and
operations will suffer and the price of our secesitcould fall.

As the principles of multivalency becomermwidely known, we expect to face increasing catitipa from companies and other
organizations that pursue the same or similar aggbres. Novel therapies, such as gene therapyemtie# vaccines for infectious diseases,
emerge that will make both conventional and mulémmedicine discovery efforts obsolete or legnpetitive.

Certain of our directors and officers may have aalwr potential conflicts of interest because ofelih equity ownership in Theravance,
which actual or potential conflicts may harm our lsiness, prospects and financial condition and retsual the diversion of corporate
opportunities to Theravance.

Certain of our directors and all of our extive officers hold shares of Theravance's comstook or rights to acquire such shares, and
these holdings may be significant for some of thedi&iduals compared to their total assets. Thisership of Theravance common stock by
our officers and most of our directors may creatanay create the appearance of, conflicts of @stewvhen these directors and officers are
faced with decisions that could have different iicgtions for Theravance and for us. For exampléemg@l or actual conflicts could arise
relating to: our relationship with Theravance, iithg Theravance's and our respective rights aligations under agreements entered into in
connection with the Spi®ff; Theravance's management of TRC, particularheig that we and Theravance have different econambécests it
TRC; and corporate opportunities that may be abklto both companies in the future. Although wd &heravance have implemented
policies and procedures to identify and properlgirads such potential and actual conflicts of irgerthere can be no assurance that such
conflicts of interest will not harm our businesggpects and financial condition and result indhversion of corporate opportunities to
Theravance.
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If we lose key management or scientific personral if we fail to retain our key employees, our abji to discover and develop our prodt
candidates will be impaired.

We are highly dependent on principal memioérour management team and scientific staff,ianrticular, our Chief Executive Officer,
Rick E Winningham, to operate our business. Mr. Wfigham has significant pharmaceutical industryegigmce. The loss of
Mr. Winningham's services could impair our abilidydiscover, develop and market new medicines.

The Spin-Off represented a significant aigational change and our employees may have cesiedrout our prospects as a stand-alone
company, including our ability to successfully cgterthe new entity over the long-term, and ouritgttib maintain our independence after the
Spin-Off. If we are not successful in assuring emnployees of our prospects as an independent companemployees may seek other
employment, which could materially adversely affect business. If we fail to retain our qualifieerponnel or replace them when they leave,
we may be unable to continue our discovery, devatat and commercialization activities, which maysmthe price of our securities to fall.

In addition, our U.S. operating subsidiaffgcility and most of its employees are locateddrthern California, headquarters to many o
biotechnology and biopharmaceutical companies aayracademic and research institutions. As a resartpetition for certain skilled
personnel in our market is intense. None of ourlegges have employment commitments for any fixetdbpleof time and they all may leave
our employment at will. If we fail to retain our gfified personnel or replace them when they leaxemay be unable to continue our
development and commercialization activities aredghice of our securities could fall.

Our business and operations would suffer in the avef system failures.

Although we have security measures in plageinternal computer systems and those of ouDE€Bnd other service providers are
vulnerable to damage from computer viruses, unaizthad access, natural disasters, terrorism, wateledommunication and electrical
failures. Any material system failure, accidensecurity breach could result in a material disauptio our business. For example, the loss of
clinical trial data from completed or ongoing ctial trials of our product candidates could resuliélays in our regulatory approval efforts anc
significantly increase our costs to recover or oepice the data. If a disruption or security breashlts in a loss of or damage to our data or
regulatory applications, or inadvertent discloseireonfidential or proprietary information, we cduhcur liability, the further development of
our product candidates could be delayed and tlee pffiour securities could fall.

Our U.S. operating subsidiary's facility is locatatbar known earthquake fault zones, and the occurce of an earthquake, extremist attack
or other catastrophic disaster could cause damageur facilities and equipment, which could requires to cease or curtail operations.

Our U.S. operating subsidiary's facilitydsated in the San Francisco Bay Area near knaavthguake fault zones and therefore will be
vulnerable to damage from earthquakes. In Octo8898,1a major earthquake struck this area and casigeificant property damage and a
number of fatalities. We are also vulnerable to dgenfrom other types of disasters, including powss, attacks from extremist organizations,
fire, floods, communications failures and similaents. If any disaster were to occur, our abilityperate our business could be seriously
impaired. In addition, the unique nature of ouersh activities and of much of our equipment canéke it difficult for us to recover from
this type of disaster. We may not have adequateanse to cover our losses resulting from disasteather similar significant business
interruptions and we do not plan to purchase astthiiinsurance to cover such losses due to theofoditaining such coverage. Any signific
losses that are not
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recoverable under our insurance policies coulaasly impair our business and financial conditiwhjch could cause the price of our
securities to fall.

We are an "emerging growth company" and we canna bertain if the reduced disclosure requirementgépable to emerging growth
companies will make our ordinary shares less attiige to investors.

We are an "emerging growth company" unbderJumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 201thedOBS Act. Emerging growth
companies can delay adopting new or revised act@ustandards until such time as those standanly &pprivate companies. We plan to
avail ourselves of this exemption from new or rediaccounting standards and, therefore, we malgenstibject to the same new or revised
accounting standards as other public companiesathatot emerging growth companies.

For as long as we continue to be an emengiowth company, we also intend to take advantdg@ertain other exemptions from various
reporting requirements that are applicable to oftuddlic companies including, but not limited todueed disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports@oaty statements, exemptions from the requiremefi®lding a nonbinding advisory
shareholder vote on executive compensation andjalaen parachute payments not previously approxesinption from the requirement of
auditor attestation in the assessment of our iatemontrol over financial reporting and exemptiooni any requirement that may be adopted b
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board rdgsy mandatory audit firm rotation or a supplenterihe auditor's report providing
additional information about the audit and the ficial statements (auditor discussion and analyBrgrefore, the information that we intenc
provide shareholders will be different than whaavsilable with respect to some other public comgmniVe cannot predict if investors will
find our ordinary shares less attractive becauseelyeon these exemptions. If some investors fiadardinary shares less attractive as a resul
there may be a less active trading market for odinary shares and our share price may be moréileola

We were an emerging growth company foof2014 and will remain an emerging growth compangl the earliest of (i) the end of the
fiscal year in which the market value of our ordinghares that is held by non-affiliates exceed¥$illion as of the end of the second fiscal
quarter and we have been subject to public compgpyrting obligations for at least twelve calenaemths as of the end of the fiscal year,
(i) the end of the fiscal year in which we haveat@nnual gross revenues of $1 billion or morardusuch fiscal year, (iii) the date on which
we issue more than $1 billion in non-convertibldtda a three-year period or (iv) December 31, 2@48 end of the fiscal year following the
fifth anniversary of the date of the first saleoof ordinary shares pursuant to an effective reggish statement filed under the Securities Act.

We and our shareholders may not realize the potehtienefits from the Spin-Off.

On June 2, 2014, the Spin-Off of the Conygfaom Theravance was completed via a pro rataddivil distribution to Theravance
stockholders of record of one of our ordinary shdoe every three and one half shares of Theravaorenon stock outstanding on the May
2014 record date. We and our shareholders mayeabre the potential benefits that we expected foamSpin-Off from Theravance. By
separating from Theravance, there is a risk thatompany may be more susceptible to market fluicing and other adverse events than we
would have been were we still a part of Theravahcaddition, we have incurred and will continudriour significant costs, including those
described elsewhere herein, which may exceed ¢innages. As a separate company, we will not recpotential royalty revenue derived from
certain of Theravance's late-stage partnered aspyjrassets (the "Royalty Business").
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Our historical financial information prior to the in-Off may not reflect what our financial positionresults of operations or cash flows
would have been as a stand-alone company duringpkeods presented and is not necessarily indicatdf our future financial position,
future results of operations or future cash flow

Our historical financial information prity the Spin-Off does not necessarily reflect whatfenancial position, results of operations or
cash flows would have been as a stand-alone conthamyg the periods presented and is not necegsadiicative of our future financial
position, future results of operations or futursltélows. This is primarily a result of the followg factors:

. prior to the Spin-Off, our business was operdedheravance as part of its broader corporatarorgtion rather than as a stand
alone company, and our business was able to leedragravance's financial resources and creditwarts;

. prior to the Spin-Off, certain general administratfunctions were performed by Theravance for tralmined entity. Our
historical consolidated financial statements refdlocations of costs for services shared withraliance. These allocations n
differ from the costs we will incur for these se®$ as an independent company;

. our cost of capital will likely be higher thaméravance's cost of capital prior to the Spin-@xfil

. following the Spin-Off, we are now responsibte the additional costs associated with being dependent, public company,
including costs related to corporate governanceliatetl and registered securities.

Our accounting and other management syséemahsesources may not be adequately prepareddbtheefinancial reporting and other
requirements to which we became subject followhey$pin-Off. If we are unable to achieve and maine&fective internal controls, our
business, financial position and results of opereticould be adversely affected.

As a result of the Spin-Off, we are subjecdthe reporting and other obligations under tkeHange Act, including the requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Wwhidl require annual management assessments @ftbetiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting. When and if we becoméaage accelerated filer" or an "accelerated fiemtl are no longer an "emerging growth
company," each as defined in the Exchange Actiraependent registered public accounting firm Wélrequired to attest to the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reportingadse reporting and other obligations will placengigant demands on our management and
administrative and operational resources, includiocpunting resources.

To comply with these requirements, we apdite that we may need to upgrade our systemsydimgj information technology, implement
additional financial and management controls, riépgisystems and procedures and hire additional legcounting and/or finance staff. If we
are unable to upgrade our financial and manageotertols, reporting systems, information technolagg procedures in a timely and
effective fashion, our ability to comply with oun&ncial reporting requirements and other rules déipaly to reporting companies could be
impaired. In addition, if in the future we are uleato conclude that our internal control over fin@h reporting is effective (or if the auditors
unable to express an opinion on the effectivenéssiinternal controls), we could lose investonfidence in the accuracy and completeness
of our financial reports.

Our management will be responsible fortdgthing and maintaining adequate internal condkar financial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our intecoatrol over financial reporting is a processigesd to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StaAay.failure to achieve and maintain

29




Table of Contents
effective internal controls could have an adveffeceon our business, financial position and ressaf operations.

We have only been operating as a stand-alone erdiftice June 2, 2014 and therefore we have a limibéstory operating as an independent
company upon which you can evaluate us.

We have only been operating as a stanceaotity since June 2, 2014 and therefore we hdimgited operating history as an independen
company upon which you can evaluate us. While eaphHarmaceutical business has constituted a sutatpart of the historic operations of
Theravance, we did not operate as a stand-alonpamonwithout the Royalty Business until the Spid-@& a new independent company, our
ability to satisfy our obligations and achieve jadfility will be primarily dependent upon the fuéuperformance of our biopharmaceutical
business, and we will not be able to rely uponréwenues, capital resources and cash flows of dyalB Business remaining with
Theravance. In addition, we will need certain tithmis services from Theravance to be able to opevat business and we will be required to
deliver a significant number of services to Therameaduring a transition period.

We may be treated as a U.S. corporation for U.Slefial income tax purposes.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, aa@tion generally is considered tax resident éenglace of its incorporation. Because
Theravance Biopharma is incorporated under Cayslands law, it should be a non-U.S. corporationeurkis general rule. Section 7874 of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended@bae"), however, contains rules that may resudt foreign corporation being treated as a
U.S. corporation for U.S. federal income tax pugsd he application of these rules is complex amdktis little guidance regarding certain
aspects of their application.

Under Section 7874 of the Code, a corponatreated or organized outside the U.S. will bated as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal
tax purposes, when (i) the foreign corporationatlyeor indirectly acquires substantially all oktproperties held directly or indirectly by a U
corporation, (ii) the former shareholders of thquaed U.S. corporation hold at least 80% of theear value of the shares of the foreign
acquiring corporation by reason of holding stockhi@ U.S. acquired corporation, and (iii) the fgrecorporation's "expanded affiliated group"
does not have "substantial business activitiegfiénforeign corporation's country of incorporatretative to its expanded affiliated group's
worldwide activities. For this purpose, "expand&diated group" generally means the foreign cogt@n and all subsidiaries in which the
foreign corporation, directly or indirectly, ownne than 50% of the stock by vote and value, andswntial business activities" generally
means at least 25% of employees (by number and @usagion), assets and gross income of our expaftikated group are based, located
and derived, respectively, in the country of inaygtion.

We do not expect to be treated as a U.Pocation under Section 7874 of the Code, becawsdoanot believe that the assets contributec
to us by Theravance constituted "substantially @lithe properties of Theravance (as determinebadh a gross and net fair market value
basis). However, the IRS may disagree with our kemien on this point and assert that, in its vidve, assets contributed to us by Theravance
did constitute "substantially all" of the propestief Theravance. In addition, there could be lagji#¢ proposals to expand the scope of U.S.
corporate tax residence and there could be chaodgssction 7874 of the Code or the Treasury Reguisipromulgated thereunder that could
result in Theravance Biopharma being treated asSa ¢drporation.

If it were determined that we should betee as a U.S. corporation for U.S. federal inctemepurposes, we could be liable for substa
additional U.S. federal income tax on our post-Spfhtaxable income. In addition, payments of desmds to non-U.S. holders may be subject
to U.S. withholding tax.
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We believe that our company (and one of our subaiis) is a passive foreign investment company,RFIC," for 2014, which may have
adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences ta hio&lers.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, weegadly would be classified as a PFIC for any tdaalear if either (i) 75% or more of our grc
income (including gross income of certain 25%-orr@aowned corporate subsidiaries) is "passive in¢dae defined for such purposes) or
(ii) the average percentage of our assets (inctuthie assets of certain 25%-or-more-owned corparaisidiaries) that produce passive incom
or that are held for the production of passive ineas at least 50%. In addition, whether our corgpaitl be a PFIC for any taxable year
depends on our assets and income over the couesebfsuch taxable year and, as a result, canmoebeted with certainty until after the end
of the year.

Based upon our assets and income duringaise of 2014, we believe that our company iEI&€Ror the 2014 taxable year and may
continue to be a PFIC in subsequent years. Iniaddive believe that one of our company's whollyred subsidiaries, Theravance Biopharm:
R&D, Inc. is also a PFIC for the 2014 taxable yé&ar. any taxable year (or portion thereof) in whichr company is a PFIC that is included in
the holding period of a U.S. holder, the U.S. hoideenerally subject to additional U.S. fedenaldme taxes plus an interest charge with
respect to certain distributions from TheravanagpBarma or gain recognized on a sale of TheravBiagharma shares. Similar rules would
apply with respect to distributions from or gaieagnized on an indirect sale of Theravance BiophdR&D, Inc. U.S. holders of our ordinary
shares may wish to file an election to be treatedvening an interest in a "qualified electing fuftQEF") or to "mark-to-market" their
ordinary shares to avoid the otherwise-applicafitierest charge consequences of PFIC treatmentegtiect to our ordinary shares. U.S.
holders of our ordinary shares should consult tteeiradvisers regarding the potential PFIC, QEFraadk-to-market treatment of their
interests in our ordinary shares, as well as tipdiGgiion of the PFIC rules with respect to theidirect interests in Theravance Biopharma
R&D, Inc.

If we are required to indemnify Theravance, or ifenare not able to collect on indemnification rightsom Theravance, our busines
prospects and financial condition may be harme

We agreed to indemnify Theravance from afiter the Spin-Off with respect to (i) all debispiilities and obligations transferred to us in
connection with the Spin-Off (including our failut@ pay, perform or otherwise promptly dischargg such debts, liabilities or obligations
after the Spin-Off), (ii) any misstatement or orfassof a material fact resulting in a misleadingtetent in our Information Statement
distributed to Theravance stockholders in conneatigh the Spin-Off and (iii) any breach by us eftain agreements entered into with
Theravance in connection with the Spin-Off (nam#ig, Separation and Distribution Agreement, then3iteon Services Agreement, the
Employee Matters Agreement, the Tax Matters Agregnand the Facility Sublease Agreement). We at@aware of any existing
indemnification obligations at this time, but amch indemnification obligations that may arise coik significant. Under the terms of the
Separation and Distribution Agreement, Theravaggeead to indemnify us from and after the Spin-Othwespect to (i) all debts, liabilities
and obligations retained by Theravance after the-&ff (including its failure to pay, perform ortwrwise promptly discharge any such debts.
liabilities or obligations after the Spin-Off) aig) any breach by Theravance of the Separationzisttibution Agreement, the Transition
Services Agreement, the Employee Matters AgreentiemfTax Matters Agreement, and the Facility Suddeagreement. Our and Theravan
ability to satisfy these indemnities, if called mpo do so, will depend upon our and Theravancélsd financial strength. If we are required to
indemnify Theravance, or if we are not able toexllon indemnification rights from Theravance, business prospects and financial conditior
may be harmed.
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RISKS RELATED TO LEGAL AND REGULATORY UNCERTAINTY

If our efforts to protect the proprietary nature dhe intellectual property related to our technolieg are not adequate, we may not be abl
compete effectively in our market.

We rely upon a combination of patents, p#gplications, trade secret protection and cemntfiglity agreements to protect the intellectual
property related to our technologies. Any involuptdisclosure to or misappropriation by third pestof this proprietary information could
enable competitors to quickly duplicate or surpasstechnological achievements, thus eroding oorpmditive position in our market. The
status of patents in the biotechnology and pharotaz field involves complex legal and scientifjuestions and is very uncertain. As of
December 31, 2014, we or one of our wholly-owndukgliaries owned 385 issued United States patewtd 862 granted foreign patents, as
well as additional pending United States and fargigtent applications. Our patent applications beghallenged or fail to result in issued
patents and our existing or future patents maytealidated or be too narrow to prevent third parfrem developing or designing around these
patents. If the sufficiency of the breadth or sgtlrof protection provided by our patents with exsto a product candidate is threatened, it
could dissuade companies from collaborating withoudevelop, and threaten our ability to commeiziglthe product candidate. Further, if we
encounter delays in our clinical trials or in obtag regulatory approval of our product candidaties,patent lives of the related product
candidates would be reduced.

In addition, we rely on trade secret protecand confidentiality agreements to protect pietpry know-how that is not patentable, for
processes for which patents are difficult to endamad for any other elements of our drug discoae development processes that involve
proprietary know-how, information and technologgttis not covered by patent applications. Althoughrequire our employees, consultants,
advisors and any third parties who have accesarntproprietary know-how, information and technoldgyenter into confidentiality
agreements, we cannot be certain that this know-idarmation and technology will not be disclosedhat competitors will not otherwise
gain access to our trade secrets or independesnyiab substantially equivalent information anchtéques. Further, the laws of some foreign
countries do not protect proprietary rights to shene extent as the laws of the United States.r@sudt, we may encounter significant proble
in protecting and defending our intellectual praypdoth in the United States and abroad. If weusr@ble to prevent material disclosure of the
intellectual property related to our technologi@shird parties, we will not be able to establishibestablished, maintain a competitive
advantage in our market, which could materiallyeadely affect our business, financial condition aggllts of operations, which could cause
the price of our securities to fall.

Litigation or third-party claims of intellectual property infringementould require us to divert resources and may praver delay our drug
discovery and development efforts.

Our commercial success depends in parsa@and our partners not infringing the patents aognetary rights of third parties. Third
parties may assert that we or our partners arg ul@ir proprietary rights without authorizatiorhére are third party patents that may cover
materials or methods for treatment related to eadpct candidates. At present, we are not awaesypfpatent claims with merit that would
adversely and materially affect our ability to deyeour product candidates, but nevertheless tissipitity of third party allegations cannot be
ruled out. In addition, third parties may obtainguds in the future and claim that use of our tedbgies infringes upon these patents.
Furthermore, parties making claims against us opatners may obtain injunctive or other equitabkléf, which could effectively block our
ability to further develop and commercialize onarmre of our product candidates. Defense of thisms, regardless of their merit, would
involve substantial litigation expense and wouldatsibstantial diversion of employee resources fsanbusiness.
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In the event of a successful claim of imfjiément against us, we may have to pay substaatiahges, obtain one or more licenses from
third parties or pay royalties. In addition, evarnthe absence of litigation, we may need to odteénses from third parties to advance our
research or allow commercialization of our proctantididates, and we have done so from time to tifeemay fail to obtain any of these
licenses at a reasonable cost or on reasonabls,térat all. In that event, we would be unabldudher develop and commercialize one or
more of our product candidates, which could harmbusiness significantly. In addition, in the fieuwe could be required to initiate litigation
to enforce our proprietary rights against infringgrby third parties. Prosecution of these claionsrforce our rights against others would
involve substantial litigation expenses and digatistantial employee resources from our businas fail to effectively enforce our
proprietary rights against others, our busineskhgilharmed and the price of our securities caoalld f

If the efforts of our partners or future partnersotprotect the proprietary nature of the intellectuproperty related to collaboration assets ¢
not adequate, the future commercialization of anyedicines resulting from collaborations could be dgkd or prevented, which would
materially harm our business and could cause thédgerof our securities to fall.

The risks identified in the two precediigkrfactors may also apply to the intellectual gnayp protection efforts of our partners or future
partners and to GSK with respect to the GSK-Pagth&espiratory Programs in which we hold an economérest. To the extent the
intellectual property protection of any partnersdeds are successfully challenged or encountefgansbwith the United States Patent and
Trademark Office or other comparable agencies titrout the world, the future commercialization afgh potential medicines could be
delayed or prevented. Any challenge to the int&li@icproperty protection of a late-stage developnasset, particularly those of the GSK-
Partnered Respiratory Programs in which we holda@momic interest, could harm our business andecdugsprice of our securities to fall.

Product liability lawsuits could divert our resoues, result in substantial liabilities and reducedltommercial potential of our medicine

The risk that we may be sued on produbilitg claims is inherent in the development andhooercialization of pharmaceutical products
and have likely increased with the commercial reahtiction of VIBATIV. Side effects of, or manufacing defects in, products that we or our
partners develop or commercialize could resulhindeterioration of a patient's condition, injuryesen death. Once a product is approved for
sale and commercialized, the likelihood of prodiadiility lawsuits tends to increase. Claims maybbeught by individuals seeking relief for
themselves or by individuals or groups seekingpreésent a class. Also, changes in laws outsidd tBeare expanding our potential liability
for injuries that occur during clinical trials. Téelawsuits may divert our management from pursaimgousiness strategy and may be cost
defend. In addition, if we are held liable in arfytfiese lawsuits, we may incur substantial liale#itand may be forced to limit or forgo further
commercialization of the applicable products.

Although we maintain general liability apbduct liability insurance, this insurance may fuilly cover potential liabilities and we cannot
be sure that our insurer will not disclaim coveragdo a future claim. In addition, inability totalm or maintain sufficient insurance coverage
at an acceptable cost or to otherwise protect agpotential product liability claims could prevemtinhibit the commercial production and <
of our products, which could adversely affect ousibhess. The cost of defending any product lighbliiigation or other proceeding, even if
resolved in our favor, could be substantial andettainties resulting from the initiation and congition of product liability litigation or other
proceedings could have a material adverse effecuombility to compete in the marketplace. Prodiadiility claims could also harm our
reputation, which may adversely affect our andgarntners' ability to commercialize our productscassfully and the price of our securities
could fall.
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Government restrictions on pricing and reimbursenteas well as other healthcare payor casintainment initiatives, may negatively imps
our ability to generate revenues.

The continuing efforts of the governmensurance companies, managed care organizationstlaedpayors of health care costs to cor
or reduce costs of health care may adversely affeetor more of the following:

. our or our collaborators' ability to set a price oedieve is fair for our products, if approved,;
. our ability to generate revenues and achieve ptufity; and
. the availability of capital.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Caceand other potential legislative or regulatocfiens regarding healthcare and insurance
matters, along with the trend toward managed healthin the United States, could influence the Ipase of healthcare products and reduce
demand and prices for our products, if approveds €buld harm our or our collaborators' abilityni@rket our potential medicines and gene
revenues. Cost containment measures that heatpegors and providers are instituting and thecefiéthe Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act and further agency regulations that &edylito emerge in connection with the passageisfabt could significantly reduce potential
revenues from the sale of any product candidatesoapd in the future. In addition, in certain f@meimarkets, the pricing of prescription drugs
is subject to government control and reimbursem@yt in some cases be unavailable. We believe ti@ng pressures at the state and federa
level, as well as internationally, will continuecamay increase, which may make it difficult fortassell our potential medicines that may be
approved in the future at a price acceptable torusir collaborators and which may cause the pfaur securities to fall.

If we use hazardous and biological materials in eanmer that causes injury or violates applicable lawe may be liable for damage

Our research and development activitiesliras/the controlled use of potentially hazardousssances, including chemical, biological and
radioactive materials. In addition, our operatipnsduce hazardous waste products. Federal, stdtleal laws and regulations govern the 1|
manufacture, storage, handling and disposal ofrdama materials. We may incur significant additior@sts to comply with these and other
applicable laws in the future. Also, even if we ereompliance with applicable laws, we cannot ctatgly eliminate the risk of contamination
or injury resulting from hazardous materials andmagy incur liability as a result of any such conigation or injury. In the event of an
accident, we could be held liable for damages aafeed with fines, and the liability could excemdt resources. We do not have any insur
for liabilities arising from hazardous material@ripliance with applicable environmental laws argltations is expensive, and current or
future environmental regulations may impair ouessh, development and production efforts, whiallddarm our business, which could
cause the price of our securities to fall.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR ORDINARY SHARES

The market price for our shares has and may conteto fluctuate widely, and may result in substantiasses for purchasers of our
ordinary shares.

Our ordinary shares began trading on Ju2®B4, and the market price for our shares hasraydcontinue to fluctuate widely, and may
result in substantial losses for purchasers obodinary shares. To date, there is limited se@sitinalyst coverage of our company. Limited
securities analyst coverage of our company andeshatikely to reduce demand for our shares frotemtial investors, which likely will
reduce the market price for our shares.
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Market prices for securities of biotechrpl@nd biopharmaceutical companies have been higtiéitile, and we expect such volatility to
continue for the foreseeable future, so that inaest in our ordinary shares involves substantsil. iBy separating from Theravance, there is :
risk that our company may be more susceptible tketdluctuations and other adverse events thawadd have been were we still a part of
Theravance. Additionally, the stock market fromeito time has experienced significant price andiwa fluctuations unrelated to the
operating performance of particular companies. Atlse trading price of shares of newly public comipa distributed in spin-off transactions,
as our shares have been distributed, can ofteetyevelatile and subject to sharp declines, paldity shortly following the Spin-Off. The
following are some of the factors that may havegaiicant effect on the market price of our ordinahares:

. any adverse developments or results or perceiveersel developments or results with respect to tB-Bartnered Respiratory
Programs, including, without limitation, any delaggdevelopment in these programs, any haltingevietbpment in these
programs, any difficulties or delays encounterethwegard to the FDA or other regulatory authosifie these programs, or any
indication from clinical or non-clinical studiesaththe compounds in such programs are not safffica@ous;

. any further adverse developments or perceived adwigvelopments with respect to the commerciatinaif VIBATIV,
including whether Pfizer's planned acquisition afsHira later this year will lead to changes in H@sp operations which may
adversely impact our single source of supply fdBATIV drug product;

. any announcements of developments with, or comtsrigy, the FDA or other regulatory authoritieshaiéspect to products we
or our partners have under development or have eoniatized;

. any adverse developments or agreements or percadwanise developments or agreements with respéut teelationship of
Theravance or TRC, on the one hand, and GSK, oattte hand, including any such developments ogeagents resulting fro
or relating to the Spin-Off;

. any adverse developments or perceived adversdapenents with respect to our relationship witly ahour research,
development or commercialization partners, inclgdimithout limitation, disagreements that may akisewveen us and any of
those partners, including any such developmentsdtieg from or relating to the Spin-Off;

. any adverse developments or perceived adverseapemehts in our programs with respect to partnesiifigrts or otherwise;
. announcements of patent issuances or denials,dlegfical innovations or new commercial productsulsyor our competitors;
. publicity regarding actual or potential studguks or the outcome of regulatory review relatingproducts under development

by us, our partners or our competitors;

. regulatory developments in the United Statesfarelgn countries;

. announcements of equity or debt financings;

. economic and other external factors beyond ourrobnt

. loss of key personnel;

. relative illiquidity in the public market for ourdinary shares related to the concentration of oship;
. developments or disputes as to patent or otherietapy rights;
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. approval or introduction of competing products &xhnologies;

. results of clinical trials;

. failures or unexpected delays in timelines for potential products in development, including théagting of regulatory
approvals;

. delays in manufacturing adversely affectingicihor commercial operations;

. fluctuations in our operating results;

. market reaction to announcements by other bimtelogy or pharmaceutical companies;

. initiation, termination or modification of agmeents with our collaborators or disputes or disagrents with collaborators;

. litigation or the threat of litigation;

. public concern as to the safety of drugs develdpeds; and

. comments and expectations of results made by $esuanalysts or investors.

If any of these factors causes us to farheet the expectations of securities analystswasitors, or if adverse conditions prevail or are
perceived to prevail with respect to our busintss price of the ordinary shares would likely deignificantly. A significant drop in the price
of a company's securities often leads to the fibhgecurities class action litigation against¢benpany. This type of litigation against us could
result in substantial costs and a diversion of rganmeent's attention and resources.

Concentration of ownership will limit your abilityo influence corporate matters.

Based on our review of publicly availabla§s as of February 17, 2015, GSK beneficiallynea approximately 24.5% of our outstanc
ordinary shares and our directors, executive affiemd investors affiliated with these individuaéneficially owned approximately 3.2% of
outstanding ordinary shares. Based on our reviepubficly available filings as of February 17, 20d%r two largest shareholders other than
GSK collectively owned approximately 23.9% of outsianding ordinary shares. These shareholder&&#dcould control the outcome of
actions taken by us that require shareholder agprocluding a transaction in which shareholdeightireceive a premium over the prevailing
market price for their shares.

Certain provisions in our constitutional documentsay discourage our acquisition by a third party, igh could limit your opportunity to
sell shares at a premiun

Our constitutional documents include primris that could limit the ability of others to adggucontrol of us, modify our structure or cause
us to engage in change-of-control transaction$udieg, among other things, provisions that:

. requir_e s_upermajority shareholder voting to @ffeertain amendments to our amended and restatatbrandum and articles of
association;

. establish a classified board of directors;

. restrict our shareholders from calling meetingaating by written consent in lieu of a meeting;

. limit the ability of our shareholders to proposé@rs at duly convened meetings; and

. authorize our board of directors, without actiondoy shareholders, to issue preferred shares atiticadhl ordinary shares.
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These provisions could have the effectagfrtving you of an opportunity to sell your ordipahares at a premium over prevailing market
prices by discouraging third parties from seekim@aquire control of us in a tender offer or simitansaction.

Our shareholders may face difficulties in protectirtheir interests because we are incorporated un@ayman Islands law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by anerded and restated memorandum and articles afiasea, by the Companies Law (2013
Revision) (as amended) of the Cayman Islands ariddogommon law of the Cayman Islands. The rightsuo shareholders and the fiduciary
responsibilities of our directors under the lawshef Cayman Islands are different from those ustiutes or judicial precedent in existence ir
jurisdictions in the U.S. Therefore, you may hawaendifficulty in protecting your interests than wd shareholders of a corporati
incorporated in a jurisdiction in the U.S., dudtte different nature of Cayman Islands law in #risa.

Shareholders of Cayman Islands exemptegaaias such as our company have no general rightesr Cayman Islands law to inspect
corporate records and accounts or to obtain cayfiksts of shareholders. Our directors have dismneunder our amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association to determirether or not, and under what conditions, oupcomate records may be inspected by oul
shareholders, but are not obliged to make themablaito our shareholders. This may make it moifécdlt for you to obtain the information
needed to establish any facts necessary for atelidex motion or to solicit proxies from other shlamlders in connection with a proxy contest.

Our Cayman Islands counsel, Maples andeCaisl not aware of any reported class action lgglgren brought in a Cayman Islands court.
Derivative actions have been brought in the Caytskamds courts, and the Cayman Islands courts tanirmed the availability for such
actions. In most cases, the company will be the@rplaintiff in any claim based on a breach ofydawed to it, and a claim against (for
example) the company's officers or directors uguaky not be brought by a shareholder. Howeverdas English authorities, which would
in all likelihood be of persuasive authority anddpgplied by a court in the Cayman Islands, exceptto the foregoing principle apply in
circumstances in which:

. a company is acting, or proposing to act, illegaliypeyond the scope of its authority;

. the act complained of, although not beyond the sadfthe authority, could be effected if duly authed by more than the
number of votes which have actually been obtained;

. those who control the company are perpetratingaautf on the minority."

A shareholder may have a direct right of actionirmgiahe company where the individual rights ot thlzareholder have been infringed or are
about to be infringed.

There is uncertainty as to shareholders' ability émforce certain foreign civil liabilities in the @yman Islands.

We are incorporated as an exempted comimaited by shares with limited liability under thews of the Cayman Islands. A material
portion of our assets are located outside of theedrBtates. As a result, it may be difficult farshareholders to enforce judgments against L
or judgments obtained in U.S. courts predicatechupe civil liability provisions of the federal agities laws of the United States or any state
of the United States.

We have been advised by our Cayman Islkgds counsel, Maples and Calder, that the codrtiseoCayman Islands are unlikely (i) to
recognize or enforce against Theravance Biophaumagnjents of courts of the United States predicapexh the civil liability provisions of the
securities laws of the United States or any Staid;(ii) in original actions brought in the Caynialands, to impose
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liabilities against Theravance Biopharma predicafeon the civil liability provisions of the seciieis laws of the United States or any State, ol
the grounds that such provisions are penal in satdowever, in the case of laws that are not penaature, although there is no statutory
enforcement in the Cayman Islands of judgmentsiédain the United States, the courts of the Caymkamds will recognize and enforce a
foreign money judgment of a foreign court of congmefurisdiction without retrial on the merits bdsen the principle that a judgment of a
competent foreign court imposes upon the judgmehtat an obligation to pay the sum for which judgirigas been given provided certain
conditions are met. For a foreign judgment to bereed in the Cayman Islands, such judgment muféinbéand conclusive and for a
liquidated sum, and must not be in respect of taxesfine or penalty, inconsistent with a Caymslands' judgment in respect of the same
matter, impeachable on the grounds of fraud oriebthin a manner, and or be of a kind the enforegraewhich is, contrary to natural justice
or the public policy of the Cayman Islands (awastlpunitive or multiple damages may well be heldéocontrary to public policy). A Caym
Islands' court may stay enforcement proceedingsriturrent proceedings are being brought elsewhideGrand Court of the Cayman Isla
may stay proceedings if concurrent proceeding®eirgg brought elsewhere, which would delay proaeggland make it more difficult for our
shareholders to bring action against us.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal physical properties consist 80,000 square feet of office and laboratory sgaased in two buildings in South San
Francisco, CA. The lease expires in May 2020 andnag extend the terms for two additional figear periods. We believe our current spau
sufficient for our needs. The current annual reesglense under these leases is $6.6 million. Asrgéor performance of certain obligations
under the facility operating leases for our priatiphysical properties we are required to haveanitial institution issue letters of credit in the
aggregate of approximately $0.8 million, which vaé collateralized with the financial institutiop &n equal amount of restricted cash.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not a party to any material legatpedings.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUIT Y, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our ordinary shares have traded on The NAQlobal Market under the symbol "TBPH" since J@n2014. Prior to this date, there
was no public market for our ordinary shares. TdilWing table sets forth the high and low closprices of our ordinary shares on a per shar
basis for the periods indicated and as reportethenNASDAQ Global Market:

Calendar Quarter High Low
2014

Fourth Quarte $ 24.0¢ $ 13.17
Third Quartel $ 34.01 $ 23.01
Second Quarte $ 3567 $ 14.7¢

As of February 28, 2015, there were 126eati@ders of record of our ordinary shares. As mafnyur ordinary shares are held by brokers
and other institutions on behalf of shareholdeesane unable to estimate the total number of sbidets represented by these record holders

Dividend Policy

We currently intend to retain any futurengéags to finance our research and developmenttsffd/e have never declared or paid cash
dividends on our ordinary shares and do not interdkclare or pay cash dividends on our ordinagyeshin the foreseeable future.

Equity Compensation Plai

The following table provides certain infation with respect to all of our equity compensatians in effect as of December 31, 2014:

Number of securities
remaining available

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holde
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde

Total

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options,
warrants and rights

for future issuance
under equity
compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))

CY

(b)

(©)

3,857,620 $ 25.0( 1,570,94(1)
104,800 $ 14.9( 645,20(
3,962,422 $ 24.7: 2,216,14

Q) Includes 857,142 ordinary shares available undeEoployee Stock Purchase Pl

Upon the completion of the Spin-Off, we lad equity compensation plans—our 2013 Equity iniee Plan (the "2013 EIP") and our
2013 Employee Share Purchase Plan (the "2013 ESPRder the 2013 EIP and 2013 ESPP, we are auditbtizissue 5,428,571 ordinary
shares and 857,142 ordinary shares. In October, 204 4dopted the 2014 New Employee Equity Incerfilam (the "2014 NEEIP"). We are
authorized to issue 750,000 ordinary shares utde?2®14 NEEIP.

The 2013 EIP provides for the issuanceéhafe-based awards, including restricted sharesictesl share units, options, share appreciatio
rights ("SARs") and other equity-based awards,uioemployees, officers, directors and consultakssof January 1 of each year, commencing

on
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January 1, 2015 and ending on (and including) J3nLic2023, the aggregate number of ordinary shthsmay be issued under the 2013 EIP
shall automatically increase by a number equahédaast of 5% of the total number of ordinary skayutstanding on December 31 of the prio
year, 3,428,571 ordinary shares, or a number dharg shares determined by our board of directdpgions may be granted with an exerc
price not less than the fair market value of théiraary shares on the grant date. Under the terrosiro2013 EIP, options granted to employees
generally have a maximum term of 10 years andwest a four-year period from the date of grant; 269t at the end of one year, and 75%
vest monthly over the remaining three years. We grant options with different vesting terms frommdi to time. Unless an employee's
termination of service is due to disability or deatpon termination of service, any unexercisedegesptions will generally be forfeited at the
end of three months or the expiration of the opti@hichever is earlier.

Under the 2013 ESPP, our officers and eyg@e may purchase ordinary shares through payrdlictions at a price equal to 85% of the
lower of the fair market value of the ordinary ghat the beginning of the offering period or aténe of each applicable purchase period. #
January 1 of each year, commencing on Januarylh 20d ending on (and including) January 1, 2083 aggregate number of ordinary sh.
that may be issued under the 2013 ESPP shall atitathaincrease by a number equal to the leadi%fof the total number of ordinary shares
outstanding on December 31 of the prior year, 28 gkdinary shares or a number of ordinary shaeésrohined by our board of directors. The
ESPP generally provides for consecutive and ovpitgpoffering periods of 24 months in duration,wétach offering period generally
composed of four consecutive six-month purchasegerThe purchase periods end on either May T¥oeember 15. ESPP contributions are
limited to a maximum of 15% of an employee's eligibompensation.

Our 2013 ESPP also includes a featureptttatides for the existing offering period to teriai@ and for participants in that offering period
to automatically be enrolled in a new offering pdrivhen the fair market value of an ordinary slerie beginning of a subsequent offering
period falls below the fair market value of an oty share on the first day of such offering period

The 2014 NEEIP provides for the issuancghafre-based awards, including restricted shagesjated share units, non-qualified options
and SARs, to our employees. Options may be gramitidan exercise price not less than the fair mavkéue of the ordinary shares on the
grant date. Under the terms of our 2014 NEEIP omgtigranted to employees generally have a maxireurm of 10 years and vest over a four-
year period from the date of grant; 25% vest aethe of one year, and 75% vest monthly over theaneimg three years. We may grant opti
with different vesting terms from time to time. @ab an employee's termination of service is dwlstbility or death, upon termination of
service, any unexercised vested options will gdiyelba forfeited at the end of three months orékpiration of the option, whichever is earli

Additional information regarding share-bdisempensation is included in Note 1, "Descriptiéi®perations and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies," and Note 6, "Share-Based Camsption," to the consolidated financial statemaptsearing in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Share Performance Graph

The graph set forth below compares the dative total shareholder return on our ordinaryrekdor the period commencing on June 3,
2014, the date on which our ordinary shares begainig on The NASDAQ Global Market, through Decembg 2014, with the cumulative
total return of (i) the NASDAQ Composite Index) tihe NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Index and (iii) the N&¥8Q Biotechnology Index over the
same period. This graph assumes the investmeritGff.80 on June 3, 2014 in each of (1) our ordisagres, (2) the NASDAQ Composite
Index, (3) the NASDAQ
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Pharmaceutical Index and (4) the NASDAQ Biotechgglldex, and assumes the reinvestment of dividehday, although dividends have
never been declared on our ordinary shares.

The comparisons shown in the graph bel@ibased upon historical data. We caution that tice performance shown in the graph be
is not necessarily indicative of, nor is it intedde forecast, the potential future performancewfordinary shares. Information used in the
graph was obtained from Research Data Group, dreource believed to be reliable, but we are regarsible for any errors or omissions in
such information.

Notwithstanding anything to the contraryfeeth in any of our previous or future filings der the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ot
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendatintight incorporate this Annual Report on FormKL6r future filings made by us under
those statutes, this Performance Graph sectiohratidbe deemed filed with the United States Séiesrand Exchange Commission and shall
not be deemed incorporated by reference into alyasie prior filings or into any future filings matly us under those statutes.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Theravance Biopharma, Inc., the NASDAQ Corntpdadex, the NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Index, andNi#SDAQ Biotechnology
Index

COMPARISON OF 7 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Theravance Biopharma, Inc., the NASDAQ Coritpdadex,
the NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Index and the NASDAQ 8abinology Index
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* $100 invested on 6/3/14 in stock or 5/31/14 in iydecluding reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal yeading December 31.

* $100 invested on June 3, 2014 in stock or indecduding reinvestment of dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated summary finartzisd below should be read in conjunction with Raitem 7, "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cytiems" and Part Il, Item 8, "Financial Statememtd Supplementary Data", in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

The following table sets forth certain suamphistorical financial information as of and &ach of the years in the five-year period endec
December 31, 2014, which have been derived fron{ipaudited consolidated financial statementsfd3axember 31, 2014, and 2013 and for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 20d&) are included in this Annual Report, (ii) aeditcombined financial statements as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for the year endedrbber 31, 2011, which are not included in thiswat Report, and (iii) unaudited
combined financial statements as of December 310 2@d for the year ended December 31, 2010, wdriemot included in this Annual
Report. In our opinion, the summary historical finel information derived from our unaudited condgarfinancial statements is presented on
basis consistent with the information in our autlitensolidated financial statements. The summatptical financial information may not be
indicative of the results of operations or finahgiasition that we would have obtained if we hadrban independent company during the
periods presented or of our future performancenda@dependent company.

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share date

CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS DATA

Product sale $ 441t $ — $ — $ — $ —
Revenue from collaborative
arrangements(? 7,27( 22€ 130,14! 14,85« 14,39°
Costs and expense
Cost of goods sold(z 4,05¢ — — — —
Research and developm 168,52. 120,57¢ 113,99! 98,85( 70,81¢
Selling, general and
administrative 71,64 35,93! 25,72t 25,33¢ 23,32:
Total costs and expenses 244,22 156,51( 139,72( 124,18¢ 94,14(
Loss from operation (232,53) (156,289 (9,579  (109,33) (79,749
Interest and other incon 1,86t — — — —
Provision for income taxe 6,36 — — — —
Net loss $ (237,03) $ (156,28) $ (9,57 $ (109,33) $ (79,749
Basic and diluted net loss per
share $ (7.4¢) $ (499 $ (030 $ (34H $ (2.5)
Shares used to compute basic i
diluted net loss per share( 31,75¢ 31,74 31,74: 31,74 31,74:
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As of December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEETS DATA
Cash, cash equivalents and

marketable securities(! $ 306,01( $ — — $ — $ —
Working capital 234,11 (22,747  (11,83) (33,56%) (21,58¢)
Total asset 337,77 25,17" 20,96: 13,82 16,90:
Long-term liabilities(6) 6,72¢ 5,35¢ 5,28( 118,66:¢ 129,46:
Accumulated defici (139,33) — — — —
Parent company defic — (17,039 (6,990 (140,729  (139,53)
Total shareholders' equity and
parent company defic $ 289,78 $ (17,03H) $ (6,990 $ (140,729 $ (139,53)
Q) In 2012, there was an acceleration of defereednue of $125.8 million from our global collabtion agreement with

)

®3)

(4)

®)
(6)

Astellas Pharma Inc. ("Astellas") for the develomin@nd commercialization of VIBATIV, which resultédm the
termination of the Astellas agreement in Januaty220

In 2014, cost of goods sold includes a charge & #tllion for the write-down of VIBATIV inventorgue to the dating
of the product. We continue to hold this inventtoysale as of December 31, 2014.

The following table discloses the allocation ofrglt-based compensation expense included in total opgrexpenses

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Research and

developmen $ 21,19 $ 1544 $ 13,19: $ 12,69¢ $ 10,09:
Selling, general and

administrative 22,04 7,032 8,131 8,76 7,51F
Total share-based

compensatiol $ 43,23 $ 22,47¢ $ 21,32 $ 21,460 $ 17,60¢

Prior to the Spin-Off in June 2014, we operatedaxs of Theravance and not as a separate entitg.rAsult, the
calculation of basic and diluted net loss per shasimes that the 32,260,105 ordinary shares issudtkravance
stockholders in connection with the Spin-Off, léss number of ordinary shares subject to forfejturere outstanding
from the beginning of all periods presented.

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities med allocated to us prior to the Spin-Off.

Long-term liabilities include the lor-term portion of deferred revenue as follo

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Deferred revenu $ 71z $ 58t $ 20€ $ 112,84 $ 125,81¢
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&i& intended to facilitate an understanding of business and results of operations. Thi
discussion and analysis should be read in conjometith our consolidated financial statements asig® included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The information contained in this dissioa and analysis or set forth elsewhere in thisush Report on Form 10-K, including
information with respect to our plans and stratfEgyour business, our operating expenses, andefytayments under our collaboration
agreements, includes forwalabking statements within the meaning of SectioA &7 the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, ardi@e21E
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenflech statements are based upon current expectdtianinvolve risks and uncertainties.
You should review the section entitled "Risk Fastan Item 1A of Part | above for a discussionraportant factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from the results déised in or implied by the forward-looking statenrgenbntained in the following discussion and
analysis. See the section entitled "Special NogalRing Forward Looking Statements” above for niofermation.

Management Overview

Our mission is to create value from a urignd diverse set of assets: an approved proddetzedopment pipeline of mid- and late-stage
assets; and a productive research platform desigmédng-term growth.

Our pipeline of internally discovered protluandidates includes potential best-in-class dppiies in underserved markets in the acute
care setting, representing multiple opportunit@svialue creation. VIBATIV® (telavancin), our firsbommercial product, is a once-daily dual-
mechanism antibiotic approved in the United State$ Europe for certain difficult-to-treat infectmnTD-4208 is an investigational lorgting
muscarinic antagonist (LAMA) being developed a®teptial once-daily, nebulized treatment for CORRelopran (TD-1211) is an
investigational potential once-daily, oral treattnfem opioid-induced constipation (OIC). Our eargage clinical assets represent novel
approaches for potentially treating diseases ofuithg and gastrointestinal tract and infectiougds®. In addition, we have an economic int
in future payments that may be made by GlaxoSmittaplc ("GSK") pursuant to its agreements with fEHvance, Inc. (“Theravance") relati
to certain drug programs, including the combinatibfiuticasone furoate, umeclidinium, and vilamtefor the "Closed Triple").

In 2014, our net loss was $237.0 milliom,jracrease of $80.7 million from $156.3 million2013. Our research and development expe
were $168.5 million in 2014, an increase of $47iBion from $120.6 million in 2013, primarily du®texternal costs for progression of our
clinical programs. Our selling, general and adntiaié/e expenses were $71.6 million in 2014, amaéase of $35.7 million from $35.9 million
in 2013, primarily due to VIBATIV commercializaticand achievement of performance conditions undeciaplong-term retention and
incentive awards granted to certain employees il 2CQash, cash equivalents, and marketable sesyritkcluding restricted cash, totaled
$306.0 million on December 31, 2014, primarily eeting the contribution of $393.0 million from The&ance in connection with the Spin-Off
(as defined below) less cash used in operations.

The Separation of Theravance Biopharma from Theravace

On June 1, 2014, Theravance separategté@sstage respiratory assets partnered with GSK fiwbiopharmaceutical operations by
transferring its discovery, development and comiaBzation operations (the "Biopharmaceutical Besisi') and contributing $393.0 million
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securitiestsnthen wholly-owned subsidiary Theravance Biepna. On June 2, 2014 Theravance
made a pro rata dividend distribution to its staillers of record on May 15, 2014
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of one ordinary share of Theravance Biopharmaveryethree and one half shares of Theravance consteok outstanding on the record date
(the "Spin-Off"). The Spin-Off resulted in TheraxaBiopharma operating as an independent, pulttiayed company. Prior to June 2, 2014,
Theravance operated the Biopharmaceutical Business.

The Spin-Off was effected pursuant to ag®agion and Distribution Agreement between Theragand Theravance Biopharma (the
"Separation and Distribution Agreement"), which\pdes, among other things, for the principal cogtertransactions required to effect the
Spin-Off and certain other agreements governingarance's relationship with Theravance Biopharmner #fie Spin-Off.

Basis of Presentation

For the periods prior to June 2, 2014 dhresolidated financial statements have been prdpesiag Theravance's historical cost basis of
the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenst®ofarious activities that comprise the Biopharewtical Business as a component of
Theravance and reflect the results of operationantial condition and cash flows of the Biopharmaical Business as a component of
Theravance. The statements of operations inclugerese allocations for general corporate overheactifuns historically shared with
Theravance, including finance, legal, human ressjrimformation technology and other administrafivections, which include the costs of
salaries, benefits and other related costs, asaselbnsulting and other professional services.ré/appropriate, these allocations were made
on a specific identification basis. Otherwise, éxpenses related to services provided to the Biopheeutical Business by Theravance were
allocated to Theravance Biopharma based on thtévesjaercentages, as compared to Theravance'slmibaresses, of headcount or square
footage usage.

The costs historically allocated to us hefavance for the services it has shared with ysmoaibe indicative of the costs we have
incurred or will incur for these services followittge Spin-Off.

Program Highlights
VIBATIV® (telavancin)

VIBATIV is a bactericidal, once-daily injedle antibiotic to treat patients with serioue-threatening infections due &aphylococcus
aureusand other Gram-positive bacteria, including metfimeresistant (MRSA) strains. VIBATIV is approved the U.S. and Canada for the
treatment of adult patients with complicated skid akin structure infections (cSSSI) caused byeptdtie Gram-positive bacteria. VIBATIV
is also approved in the U.S. for the treatmentdofitgpatients with hospital-acquired and ventileassociated bacterial pneumonia
(HABP/VABP) caused by susceptible isolatesStdphylococcus aurewghen alternative treatments are not suitable. VIBAIE approved in
the European Union for the treatment of adults witkocomial pneumonia, including ventilator-assedgpneumonia, known or suspected to
be caused by MRSA when other alternatives areuitgtse.

Commercial Program Expansion

In 2014, we implemented a phased launettegjy for VIBATIV in the U.S. that focused on a dhmamber of targeted geographic
territories across the country. We have since exgamour sales force and medical affairs presentehbode additional territories in the U.S.
with the goal of strengthening our commercial isfracture comprised of experienced sales reprasggand a significant medical
information component focused on the acute car&etar

45




Table of Contents
Telavancin Observational Use Registry (TOUR)

Initiated in February 2015, the 1,000-patiEOUR observational use registry study is degigoeassess the manner in which VIBATIV is
used by healthcare practitioners to treat pati@ydroadly collecting and examining data rela¥IBATIV treatment patterns, as well as
clinical and safety outcomes in the real world,aira to create an expansive knowledge base to duidee development and optimal use of
drug.

Phase 3 Registrational Study in StaphylococcususuBacteremii

As part of our effort to explore additiorsaittings in which VIBATIV may offer patients th@eutic benefit, in February 2015, we initiated
a Phase 3 registrational study for the treatmepttients withStaphylococcus auretmcteremia. The 250-patient registrational study is
multicenter, randomized, open-label study designeslaluate the non-inferiority of telavancin iratingStaphylococcus auretlmcteremia as
compared to standard therapy. Key secondary outcoeasures of the study include an assessment diithéon of bacteremia post-
randomization and the incidence of development @fastatic complications, as compared to stand@ehply.

Long-Acting Muscarinic Antagonist (LAMA)—TD-4208

TD-4208 is an investigational, long-actmgscarinic antagonist (LAMA) in development for theatment of COPD. We believe that TD-
4208 may become a valuable addition to the COP#@rtrent regimen and that it represents a significantmercial opportunity. Our market
research indicates approximately 9% of the tre@®@¢&D patients in the U.S. either need or prefeulidd delivery for maintenance therapy.
LAMAs are a cornerstone of maintenance therapyCIoPD, but existing LAMAs are only available in haettl devices that may not be
suitable for every patient. TD-4208 has the po&di be a best-in-class once-daily single-ageodpet for COPD patients who require, or
prefer, nebulized therapy. The therapeutic praffl& D-4208, together with its physical characteristicggest that this LAMA could serve a
foundation for combination products and for delwv&r metered dose inhaler and dry powder inhaledgpcts.

Phase 3 Registrational Study in COI

In December 2014, following the announcenoépositive top-line results of our Phase 2b pang, we conducted an end-of-Phase 2
meeting with the FDA to discuss the design of thade 3 registrational program. We are progressing 08 into a Phase 3 registrational
program that will include two replicate three-moaefficacy studies and a single twelve-month sadétgly. Based on our discussion with the
FDA, the studies will include approximately 2,20&tipnts. The studies will test two doses: 88 mat) Bfb mcg administered once-daily. We
expect to initiate the Phase 3 program in 2015.

Mylan Collaboration

In January 2015, Mylan Inc., which is nowudosidiary of Mylan N.V. ("Mylan"), and we estalfled a strategic collaboration for the
development and, subject to FDA approval, commEzeition of TD-4208. Partnering with a world leademebulized respiratory therapies
enables us to expand the breadth of our TD-4208ldpment program and extend our commercial reaghrizbthe acute care setting where
we currently market VIBATIV. Funding of the Phaseegjistrational program by Mylan strengthens oyniteposition and enhances our
financial flexibility to advance other high-valuggpline assets alongside TD-4208.

Under the terms of the agreement, Mylanwadvill co-develop nebulized TD-4208 for COPD aniller respiratory diseases. We will
lead the U.S. registrational development prograchMylan will be responsible for reimbursement of oasts for that program up until the
approval of the first new drug application, aftdrigh costs will be shared. If a product developeder the collaboration
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is approved in the U.S., Mylan will lead commenaation and we will retain the right to co-promaie product in the U.S. under a profit-
sharing arrangement (65% Mylan/35% Theravance Bioph). Outside the U.S. (excluding China), Mylati & responsible for development
and commercialization and will pay us a tiered ftyyan net sales at percentage royalty rates rgngom low double-digits to mid-teens.
Although China is not included in the ex-US temytoutright, Mylan does have a right of first neigtibn with respect to the development and
commercialization of nebulized TD-4208 in China.

Under the agreement, Mylan will pay usmitidl payment of $15.0 million in cash in the sedajuarter of 2015. Also, pursuant to an
ordinary share purchase agreement entered intararady 30, 2015, Mylan made a $30.0 million eqintgestment in us, buying 1,585,790
ordinary shares from us in early February 2015 @nigate placement transaction at a price of appnately $18.918 per share, which
represented a 10% premium over the volume weigiedage price per share of our ordinary sharethéfive trading days ending on
January 30, 2015. We are eligible to receive frogiad potential development and sales milestone paystotaling $220.0 million in the
aggregate, with $175.0 million associated with TE& monotherapy and $45.0 million for future poi@mtombination products.

We retain worldwide rights to TD-4208 delied through other dosage forms, such as a malessdinhaler or dry powder inhaler
(MDI/DPI), while Mylan has certain rights of firsiegotiation with respect to our development androencialization of TD-4208 delivered
other than via a nebulized inhalation product.

Oral Peripherally-Acting Mu Opioid Receptor Antagist—Axelopran (TD-1211)

Axelopran is an investigational, once-dailyal peripherally active mu opioid receptor amigigt for opioid-induced constipation (OIC).
The axelopran Phase 2 program demonstrated aallinmoeaningful treatment effect in OIC patientsngared to placebo. The goal for this
program is to demonstrate the ability to normalimevel function without impacting analgesia and ioyar a variety of GI symptoms associatec
with constipation, which could provide axeloprarimé competitive advantage in the OIC market if destrated in Phase 3 studies and
approved by regulatory authorities. We have deaag patient reported outcomes tool designed teunegatient symptoms which would be
used in a Phase 3 registrational program and paligrgenerate data that could differentiate thedpict from the competition. We are currently
refining our development and commercial strategyafelopran.

Oral Peripherally-Acting Mu Opioid Receptor Antagist—Axelopran Fixed Dose Combination (TD-1211)

In December 2014, we completed a Phasedy $0 determine the relative bioavailability of y{ontin® (oxycodone) and axelopran after
oral administration as a fixed dose combination@yelative to the individual components administetogether. The study examined a spray
coat application of axelopran to an opioid, OxyQuontb determine the effect of axelopran on Oxy@oekposure. The study compared
exposure of OxyContin alone, axelopran alone, Oxyidand axelopran administered as two separatetsaland OxyContin sprageated witl
axelopran in a FDC. Study results demonstratedatkelbpran does not significantly alter systemipasure to OxyContin when delivered as a
FDC relative to when co-administered as individahlets. A FDC of axelopran and an opioid couldspre an important market opportunity,
as it has the potential to provide pain relief withconstipation in a single abuse-deterrent pilldatients using opioids on a chronic basis.

Velusetrag

Velusetrag is an oral, investigational ncedd developed for gastrointestinal motility disersl It is a highly selective agonist with high
intrinsic activity at the human 5-HT4 receptor. Wa&ttrag is being
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developed in collaboration with Alfa Wassermann&.[§"'Alfa Wassermann") in a two-part Phase 2 pamgto test the efficacy, safety and
tolerability of velusetrag in the treatment of pats with gastroparesis. Positive top-line reduttsn the initial Phase 2 proof-of-concept study
under this partnership, which evaluated gastrictgimg, safety and tolerability of multiple dosesvaflusetrag, were announced in April 2014.
Based on these results, we have agreed with Alfeséfanann to advance velusetrag into a Phase 2 Stursuant to our agreement with Alfa
Wassermann, the first Phase 2 study was, and tkeobthe Phase 2b study will be, funded by Alfad&@rmann.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our management's discussion and analysisrdinancial condition and results of operatismbased on our financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with U.S. gepaedlepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). The pmggion of these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets and ligsliind the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial sta¢ents, as well as the reported revenue generatedxqmhses incurred during the reporting
periods. Our estimates are based on our histaiqadrience and on various other factors that wievehkre reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about the carrying value skts and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results maerdifom these estimates under different assumsgtimrconditions. We believe that the
accounting policies discussed below are criticalriderstanding our historical and future perforneas these policies relate to the more
significant areas involving management's judgmantsestimates.

Product Sales

In 2013, we reintroduced VIBATIV into the&l market by making the drug product availableulgh a limited number of distributors
who sell VIBATIV to healthcare providers. Title andk of loss transfer upon receipt by these distars.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2014, agsuit of VIBATIV's limited sales history, we coutibt reliably estimate expected returns, rebates
and chargebacks of the product at the time theystagas sold to the distributors. Therefore, weettefd the recognition of revenue on sales t
the VIBATIV distributors, and instead, recognizedenue at the time the product was sold throudteédthcare providers, the end customers,
or the right of return no longer existed, whichewecurred earlier.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014, nal developed sufficient historical experience @daic to reasonably estimate future returns,
rebates and chargebacks of VIBATIV and as a resfilictive October 1, 2014, we began recognizinBAMIV product sales and related cost
of product sales at the time title transfers towthelesalers, otherwise known as a sell-in bagis. impact of this change resulted in additional
product sales recognition of $0.3 million in 20h4our consolidated statements of operations.

Product sales are recorded net of estingagdrnment-mandated rebates and chargebackshuligtn fees, estimated product returns anc
other deductions. We reflect such reductions iemnere as either an allowance to the related aceeaaivable from the distributor, or as an
accrued liability, depending on the nature of thies deduction. Sales deductions are based on er@eags estimates that consider payer mix
in target markets, industry benchmarks and expeei¢m date. We monitor inventory levels in theritisttion channel, as well as sales of
VIBATIV by distributors to healthcare providers,ing product-specific data provided by the distrdyst Product return allowances are based
on amounts owed or to be claimed on related salesse estimates take into consideration the tefroarcagreements with customers,
historical product returns of VIBATIV experiencey bheravance's former collaborative partner, AsgeRPharma Inc. ("Astellas"), rebates or
discounts taken, estimated levels of inventonhandistribution channel, the shelf life of the pwot and specific known market
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events, such as competitive pricing and new promfticiductions. We update our estimates and assangpeach quarter and if actual future
results vary from our estimates, we may adjustehessimates, which could have an effect on prosiiets and earnings in the period of
adjustment.

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, workprocess and finished goods related to the prosluof VIBATIV. Raw materials include
VIBATIV active pharmaceutical ingredient (API) anther raw materials. Work-in-process and finishedds include third-party
manufacturing costs and labor and indirect costinaar in the production process. Included in irtegies are raw materials and work-in-
process that may be used as clinical products,indie charged to R&D expense when consumed. Iniaaldiinder certain commercialization
agreements, we may sell VIBATIV packaged in unlafelials that are recorded in work-in-process. htwdes are stated at the lower of cost
or market value. We determine the cost of inventming the average-cost method for validation betckive analyze our inventory levels
quarterly and write down inventory that is expedtetiecome obsolete, that has a cost basis in xéés expected net realizable value and
inventory quantities in excess of expected requineis When we recognize a loss on such inventoegtablishes a new, lower cost basis for
that inventory, and subsequent changes in factgiatuimstances will not result in the restoratiorincrease in that newly established cost
basis. If inventory with a lower cost basis is digently sold, it will result in higher gross mardor the products making up that inventory. In
2014, we recognized a charge of $2.9 million tdevdown inventory to net realizable value. RefeNtde 4, "Inventories," to the consolidated
financial statements appearing in this Annual Repor=orm 10-K for further information. As of Decbar 31, 2014, the carrying value of our
inventory is $12.5 million. In order to realize thalue of our recorded inventory, we will be depemtdupon continued increases in the sales
volumes of VIBATIV.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2014 result of operating in multiple jurisdictions agenerating taxable income in our U.S.
operations, although we incur operating losses conaolidated basis.

We recognize income taxes under the asskligbility method. This approach requires theomgition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
for the expected future tax consequences of termpdifierences between the carrying amounts andathéases of assets and liabilities. A
valuation allowance is provided when it is moreljkthan not that some portion or all of a defe@dasset will not be realized.

Realization of deferred tax assets requieeto make estimates regarding the timing and atnafufuture taxable income. We continue to
maintain a full valuation allowance against ouretiefd tax assets. We reassess our valuation altmifan deferred income taxes at each
reporting period. If we determine that it is makely than not that the benefit of those assetbbeilrealized, a reversal of a portion or all &
valuation allowance would occur and result in aegponding benefit to earnings.

The provision for income taxes, includihg effective tax rates, the determination of defittex assets and liabilities and related valu
allowance evaluation, and the analysis of potetddalexposure items, if any, requires significarigment and expertise in federal and state
income tax laws, regulations and strategies. Qing8, including the positions taken therein, vl subject to audit by various taxing
authorities. While we believe we have provided adégly for our income tax liabilities in our conisigted financial statements, adverse
determinations by these taxing authorities coukehmmaterial adverse effect on the consolidateghfiial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

For periods prior to June 2, 2014, our apiens have been included in Theravance's consetidd.S. federal and state income tax rett
Our effective tax rate in future years are expetbedary from Theravance's historical effective tates and will depend on our future
operations, profitability, legal structure and tethtax elections. The historical net operating lasd research and development tax credit
carryforwards generated by us prior to the Spint®&ffiained with Theravance. Tax attributes genedayads following the Spin-Off remain
with us.
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Results of Operations
Product Sales and Revenue from Collaborative Arramgents

Product sales and revenues from collabaairangements, as compared to the prior years, agefollows:

Change
Year Ended December 31 2014 2013
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012 $ % $ %
Product sale $ 4418 $ — $ — $ 441¢ NM $ — —
Revenue from collaborative
arrangement 7,27( 22€ 130,14! 7,04¢ NM (129,919 NM
Total revenue $11,68¢ $ 22€ $130,14' $11,46: NM $(129,919) NM

NM: Not Meaningful

Commencing in 2014, we recognized reveno® Sales of VIBATIV. Revenue from collaborativeaargements increased in 2014 from
2013 primarily due to the recognition of previoudbferred revenue from the Clinigen Group plc dmiative arrangement of $5.0 million and
R-Pharm collaborative arrangement of $2.1 milli@ecognition of both resulted from the completiontw technical transfer of the license in
2014.

Revenue from collaborative arrangementsedesed in 2013 from 2012 primarily due to the amedéd recognition of deferred revenue of
$125.8 million resulting from the termination okthollaboration arrangement with Astellas in 204& the recognition of the upfront payment
of $4.4 million in 2012 under the collaborationaargement with Merck, which was terminated in 2013.

Cost of Goods Sold

In 2014 cost of goods sold was $4.1 milliwhich resulted from recognizing revenue from preidsales of VIBATIV and includes a
charge of $2.9 million for the write-down of VIBAVIinventory due to the dating of the product. Wetawe to hold this inventory for sale as
of December 31, 2014. There was no cost of gooldsfepthe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Research & Developmet

Our research and development (R&D) expeasasist primarily of employee-related costs, exdérosts, and various allocable expenses
We budget total R&D expenses on an internal degartievel basis, we do not have program level tampcapabilities. We manage and
report our R&D activities across the following farost categories:

1) Employee-related costs, which include salaries,esamd benefits;
2) Share-based compensation, which includes expessesiated with our equity plans;

3) External costs, which include clinical trial reldtexpenses, other contract research fees, corgstdis, and contract
manufacturing fees; and

4) Facilities and other, which include laboratand office supplies, depreciation and other alled&xpenses, which include
general and administrative support functions, iasae and general supplies.
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The following table summarizes our R&D empes incurred during the periods presented:

Change
Year Ended December 31 2014 2013

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012 $ % $ %
Employecrelated $ 57,427 $ 36917 $ 36,390 $ 20,51( 56% $ 52€ 1%
Share-based

compensatiol 21,191 15,44 13,19: 5747 37 2,25; 17
Externa-related 62,97t 45,92¢ 42,98( 17,04¢ 37 2,94¢ 7
Facilities, depreciation

and other allocate 26,92¢ 22,29: 21,43: 4,631 21 86C 4

$ 168,52: $ 120,57¢ $ 113,99' $ 47,94! 40 $ 6584/ 6

R&D expenses increased in 2014 compar@®1@ primarily due to progression of clinical seslin our key programs. The expenditures
for clinical trials in 2014 were primarily relateéd the initiation of our telavancin Phase 3 registmal study in bacteremia and Phase 4 registr
study for VIBATIV, completion of Phase 2 studiesoar LAMA program with TD-4208 and Phase 1 studinesur earlier stage programs. In
2013, our key clinical trials primarily consistefiRhase 2 clinical studies in our MARIN programtwitD-9855 for ADHD and fibromyalgia,
Phase 2 study in our LAMA program with TD-4208 dtthse 1 studies in our earlier stage programs. &yeetrelated expenses, including
share-based compensation, increased primarilyatieetachievement of performance conditions unpecial long-term retention and

incentive awards granted to certain employees irl 2frior to the Spin-Off. In 2013, employee-rethéxpenses were partially offset by R&D
reimbursements received from our collaborativerpag.

R&D expenses increased in 2013 compar@®1@ primarily due to higher external costs of $RiBion and an increase of $2.3 million in
share-based compensation expense. The key Phésial trials we were conducting in 2012 were &lrase 2b program in our opioid-
induced constipation program with TD-1211 and ohage 2 study in our MARIN program with TD-9855.

Under certain of our collaborative arrangets we receive partial reimbursement of exterosiscand employee-related costs, which hav
been reflected as a reduction of R&D expenses ¢ $illlion, $6.5 million and $0.9 million for 2012013 and 2012.

Selling, General & Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenas compared to the prior years, were as follows:

Change
Year Ended December 31 2014 2013
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012 $ % $ %
Selling, general and
administrative $ 71,647 $ 3593. $ 2572t $ 35,71¢ 9% $ 10,20¢ 40%

Selling, general and administrative expsenigereased in 2014 compared to 2013 primarilytdumsts associated with VIBATIV
commercialization activities and incremental sHaseed compensation expense, including incentivedsya

Selling, general and administration expsrsereased in 2013 compared to 2012 primarilytdusen increase in external legal and

accounting fees in connection with the separatimategyy, selling costs resulting from our reintrotion of VIBATIV into the U.S. wholesaler
channel in August 2013 and employee-related exgense

Selling, general and administrative experiselude share-based compensation expenses @ $@#fion, $7.0 million and $8.1 million in
2014, 2013 and 2012.

51




Table of Contents
Interest and Other Incomt

In 2014, interest and other income of $hiBion primarily consisted of interest income d.8 million and reimbursement for transition
services rendered to Theravance of $1.6 milliorer&lwas no interest and other income in 2013 ad@.20

Provision for Income Taxe:!

The 2014, provision for income taxes o#%@illion resulted from operating in multiple judistions and generating taxable income in oul
U.S. operations, although we incurred operatingden a consolidated basis. There was no provisiancome taxes in 2013 and 2012.

At December 31, 2014, we had no net opegdtiss carryforwards for federal income taxesamfiederal research and development tax
credit carryforwards. We had state operating lessyforwards of $3.2 million expiring in 2034 antdte research and development credit
carryforwards of $1.5 million to be carried forwandiefinitely. We had unrecognized tax benefit$dfl million as of December 31, 2014. (
unrecognized tax benefits would reduce our effedticome tax rate if recognized, due to the vaduagillowance that currently offsets our
deferred tax assets.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

At the closing of the Spin-Off, Theravamevided to us cash, cash equivalents and marleesatiurities of $393.0 million. In addition,
Theravance was obligated to fund all current liibg, with the exception of deferred rent, defdrevenue, accrued vacation and accrued
discretionary cash bonuses that were incurred liiresigh the Spin-Off date in accordance with thpa8ation and Distribution Agreement
between the two companies. For ease of administratid in connection with the assignment of centigints and obligations under the
Separation and Distribution Agreement, certainenfrtiabilities, which were transferred to us oa 8pin-Off date, were paid by us and
reimbursed by Theravance. As such, Theravancegeduis with an additional $17.0 million in July 20tb reimburse us for these liabilities
that were incurred before the Spin-Off and tramsfitto us on the Spin-Off date.

In 2011, Theravance granted special longrtetention and incentive cash bonus awards taiceemployees. The awards have dual
triggers of vesting based upon the achievemen¢dhim performance conditions over a six-year tiange from 2011 through December 31,
2016 and continued employment. In May 2014, Tharees Compensation Committee determined that thegiée performance conditions
the first tranche of the awards were achieved as@, result, $9.5 million was paid by Theravance.

In May 2014, Theravance's Compensation Citteenapproved the modification of the remainiraptthes related to these awards
contingent upon the Spin-Off. The modification acktedged the Spin-Off and permitted recognitioractiievement of the original
performance conditions that were met prior to thm<Off, triggering 12-month service-based vestfioga portion of the cash awards. The
maximum amount payable by us under these modifisti bonus awards is $10.4 million. The remainiagdhes of the cash awards were
forfeited.

We expect to continue to incur net losses the next several years as we continue our disapvery efforts and incur significant
preclinical and clinical development costs relatedur current product candidates and commerctadizand development costs relating to
VIBATIV. In particular, to the extent we advancerquoduct candidates into and through later stéigecal studies without a partner, such as
axelopran (TD-1211) in our Peripheral Mu Opioid Bgtor Antagonist program for opioid-induced corestiipn, we will incur substantial
expenses. We are also making additional investnieriédavancin, our approved antibiotic. In Febyu2015, we announced initiation of a
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Phase 3 registrational study for bacteremia aniiitn of a patient registry study. In additiore Wave increased, and may continue to
increase, the number of sales representatives adital science liaisons in the U.S. supporting ffigs education on the proper usage of
VIBATIV. We are incurring all of the costs and exyges associated with the commercialization of VIBATh the U.S., including the creation
of an independent sales and marketing organizatithappropriate technical expertise, supportirfgaistructure and distribution capabilities,
expansion of medical affairs presence, manufaajuaird third party vendor logistics and consultapp®rt, and post-marketing studies.

Adequacy of cash resources to meet future n

We expect our cash, cash equivalents amklatable securities will fund our operations fotesst the next 12 months based on current
operating plans and financial forecasts.

If our current operating plans or finand@ecasts change, we may require additional fupdooner in the form of public or private eqt
offerings, debt financings or additional collabayas and licensing arrangements. Furthermore, dlinview favorable financing opportunities
arise, we may seek additional funding at any tid@wever, future financing may not be availableimoants or on terms acceptable to us, if a
all. This could leave us without adequate finangaburces to fund our operations as presentlywstiad.

Cash Flows

Cash flows, as compared to the prior yeaese as follows:

Year ended December 31 Change

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013
Net cash used in operati

activities $ (175,15) $ (120,959 $ (119,10) $ (54,19¢ $ (1,857
Net cash used in investi

activities (106,25) (2,639 (2,430 (103,61 (209
Net cash provided by financir

activities 370,62: 123,59¢ 121,53 247,02¢ 2,05¢

Net cash used in our operating activiti@s %175.2 million, $121.0 million and $119.1 miflilor 2014, 2013 and 2012. Operating
activities in 2014 include an increase in costateal to progression of clinical studies in our kégical programs and costs related to VIBAT
commercialization.

Net cash used in investing activities wa863 million, $2.6 million and $2.4 million for 2@, 2013 and 2012. Investing activities in 2!
include $103.3 million in purchases of available$ale securities, net of maturities. Investingwvéties include capital expenditures for
property acquisitions.

Net cash provided by financing activitieasA$370.6 million, $123.6 million and $121.5 miflifor 2014, 2013 and 2012. In 2014,
$277.5 million of cash and cash equivalents wergrfuted to us from Theravance as a result oSpia-Off.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our equity interest in TRC constitutes #irbalance sheet arrangement. Under the agreenoeetiging TRC, the manager of TRC may
request quarterly capital contributions from u$uad the operating costs of TRC; however, we ateobbligated to make such contributions.
Our equity interest in TRC entitles us to an 85%neenic interest in any future payments, which idelsiroyalties and milestone payments,
made by GSK under the strategic alliance agreearshtnder the portion of the collaboration agredgrassigned to TRC by Theravance (the
"GSK Agreements"). We have determined TRC to bar&ble interest entity that is not consolidatedun financial statements. See Note 10,
"Contractual Agreements with Theravance, Inc.'hi@ hotes to our consolidated financial statementfufther information regarding our
interest in TRC. The potential importance of TRM@tw future financial condition and results of at@ns is dependent upon the progressic
drug candidates covered by the GSK Agreements girdevelopment to commercialization. We rely on
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publicly available information about those drug diglates as we do not have access to confidenf@hiation regarding their progression or
status.

Commitments and Contingencies

We indemnify our officers and directors fartain events or occurrences, subject to celitaits. We may be subject to contingencies tha
may arise from matters such as product liabiligirok, legal proceedings, shareholder suits andchttters, as such, we are unable to estimate
the potential exposure related to these indemuiéinaagreements. We have not recognized any lisdslrelating to these agreements as of
December 31, 2014.

In 2011, Theravance granted special longrtetention and incentive restricted stock awandwmembers of senior management and
special long-term retention and incentive cash bawards to certain employees. The awards havenfygérs of vesting based upon the
achievement of certain performance conditions aveix-year time frame from 2011 through Decembe”2B16 and continued employment.

In May 2014, Theravance's Compensation Citieenapproved the modification of the remainiranthes related to these awards
contingent upon the Spin-Off. The modification aoktedged the Spin-Off and permitted recognitiomdfievement of the original
performance conditions that were met prior to thm<Off, triggering 12-month service-based vesfioga portion of the equity and cash
awards. The share-based compensation expensedainibon associated with a portion of these awafier the modification is expected to be
recognized by us during the 12-month service per@mdmencing in June 2014.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we detigred that it was probable that the performancelitimms associated with the remaining
417,000 RSAs outstanding under these awards wauthieved. In addition, the remaining RSAs outiitemunder these awards are entitled
to the pro rata dividend distribution made by Tharece on June 2, 2014 of one ordinary share ofaMagice Biopharma for every three and
one half shares of Theravance common stock. Asudty&1.4 million of the total share-based compéna expense of $9.5 million related to
these remaining RSAs and the pro rata dividendre@sgnized by us in 2014. The RSAs and pro ratialeind remain subject to a twelve-
month service period, which commenced in Febru@ds2

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

In the table below, we set forth our enéadale and legally binding, significant obligaticared future commitments, as well as obligations
related to all contracts that we are likely to dome, regardless of the fact that they were cabtelas of December 31, 2014. Some of the
figures that we include in this table are basedhanagement's estimate and assumptions about thiégations, including their duration, the
possibility of renewal, anticipated actions by dhirarties, and other
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factors. Because these estimates and assumpt®ngegssarily subjective, the obligations we vatlally pay in future periods may vary frc
those reflected in the table.

Years

(In thousands) Total Within 1 Over1to 3 Over 3to 5 After 5

Facility operating leases( $ 3339 $ 577 $ 12,060 $ 12,79¢ $ 2,75¢

Purchase obligatior 78,02: 51,71: 26,06 242 6
Total $ 11141 $ 57,48: $ 38,127 $ 13,04. $ 2,76¢

(1)  As security for performance of certain obligatiemsler the operating leases for our principal plalgicoperties, we
issued a letter of credit in the amount of $0.8iam| collateralized by an equal amount of restédctash

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks in the @mgicourse of our business. These risks primanmitjude risk related to interest rate sensitivit

Interest Rate Sensitivity

We have invested primarily in money marfkeitds, federal agency notes, corporate debt sexsjrdommercial papers and U.S. treasury
notes. To reduce the volatility relating to thegpasures, we have put investment and risk managepmoéinies and procedures in place. The

securities in our investment portfolio are not leged and are classified as available-for-saletaltieeir short-term nature. We currently do no
engage in hedging activities.

We performed a sensitivity analysis to datae the impact a change in interest rates woaidcton the value of our investment portfolio.
Based on our investment positions as of Decembge2@l4, a hypothetical 100 basis point increasstarest rates would result in a
$1.4 million decline in the fair market value o&tportfolio. Such losses would only be realizedéfsold the investments prior to maturity. A
hypothetical decrease in market interest ratesd8% Would not have a material impact to our inter@sdme from our investment portfolio.
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except per share data)

December 31

2014 2013
(Note 1)
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 8921 $ —
Shor-term marketable securitit 165,39¢ —
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $87 a8fl& December 31
2014 and 201 28¢ 19¢
Receivables from collaborative arrangeme 1,84( 934
Prepaid and other current ass 6,08¢ 2,56
Inventories 12,54¢ 10,40¢
Total current asse 275,37( 14,10¢
Marketable securitie 51,39¢ —
Restricted cas 833 83:c
Property and equipment, r 9,66: 10,23¢
Other asset 50€ —
Total asset $ 337,77 $ 25,17:
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 9,921 $ 6,94(
Accrued personn-related expense 18,15¢ 9,87(
Accrued clinical and development expen 7,871 9,71¢
Other accrued liabilitie 5,21¢ 2,12z
Deferred revenu 89 8,20
Total current liabilities 41,25¢ 36,85
Deferred ren 5,15( 4,774
Other lon¢-term liabilities 1,57¢ 58t
Commitments and contingencies (Note 2, 6 an
Shareholders' Equity and Parent Company Deficit (Nte 1):
Preferred shares, $0.00001 par value: 230 shatesraaed, no shares
issued or outstanding at December 31, 2014; neslauthorized,
issued or outstanding at December 31, 2 — —
Ordinary shares, $0.00001 par value: 200,000 slzatt®rized at
December 31, 2014; 32,221 shares issued and oditsgaat
December 31, 2014; no shares authorized, issuedtstanding at
December 31, 201 — —
Additional paic-in capital 429,20t
Accumulated other comprehensive | (82 —
Accumulated defici (139,33) —
Parent company defic — (17,035
Total shareholders' equity and parent company it 289,78 (17,03¢)
Total liabilities, shareholders' equity and pamsrpany defici $ 337,77. $ 2517

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Note 1) (Note 1)
Revenue
Product sale $ 4,41t $ — $ —
Revenue from collaborative arrangeme 7,27( 22€ 130,14!
Total revenu 11,68¢ 22¢ 130,14!
Costs and expense
Cost of goods sol 4,05¢ — —
Research and developm 168,52: 120,57¢ 113,99!
Selling, general and administrati 71,64 35,93: 25,72t
Total costs and expens 244,22 156,51( 139,72(
Loss from operation (232,539 (156,289 (9,57
Interest and other incon 1,86¢ — —
Loss before income taxi (230,679 (156,28 (9,579
Provision for income taxe 6,364 o o
Net loss $ (237,03) $ (156,289 $ (9,575
Net loss per shar
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (7.46) $ (492 $ (0.30
Shares used to compute basic and diluted net &ss p
share 31,75¢ 31,74: 31,74:

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Note 1) (Note 1)
Net loss $ (237,039 $ (156,289 $ (9,57%)
Other comprehensive los
Net unrealized loss on marketable secur (179 — —
Comprehensive los $ (237,21) $ (156,289) $ (9,579

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsdistents.
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity anBarent Company Deficit

(In thousands, except share data)

Total
Shareholders'
Accumulated Equity and
Ordinary Shares Additional Other Parent Parent
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Company Company
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Deficit Deficit

Balances at
December 31,
2011 (Note 1 — % — 9 — % — % — $(140,72)$ (140,729
Net loss — — — — — (9,57 (9,57%)
Employee share
based
compensatior
expense — — — — — 21,70: 21,70¢
Net transfers
from pareni — — — — — 121,60t 121,60t
Balances at
December 31,
2012 (Note 1 — — — — — (6,990 (6,990
Net loss — — — — — (156,289 (156,289
Employee share
based
compensatior
expense — — — — — 22,64¢ 22,64¢
Net transfers
from pareni — — — — — 123,59: 123,59:
Balances at
December 31,
2013 (Note 1 — — — — — (17,03H (17,03Y
Contribution of
net assets fro
Theravance, | 32,260,10 — 402,78’ 91 — (402,879 —
Cash
contribution
from
Theravance, | — — — — — 277,54 277,54
Net transfers
from pareni — — — — — 222,93 222,93
Employee share
based
compensatior
expense — —  26,31¢ — — 17,13¢ 43,45¢
Cancellation of
shares
distributed (31,289 — — — — — —
Repurchase of
shares to
satisfy tax
withholding (7,73%) — (17¢) — — — (17¢)
Excess tax
benefit of
share-based
compensatiol — — 282 — — — 282
Net unrealized
loss on
marketable
securities — — — (179 — — a73)
Net loss — — — —  (139,33) (97,70) (237,039

Balances at
December 31




2014 32,221,08 $§ — $429,20¢ $ (82)$ (139,33)$ — $ 28978

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(Note 1) (Note 1)

Operating activities

Net loss $(237,03¢) $(156,289 $ (9,57

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating

activities:

Depreciatior 2,66% 2,65: 3,251

Amortization of premium on marketable securi 612 — —

Shar+based compensati 43,23¢ 22,47¢ 21,32

Charge to writ-down inventory to net realizable val 2,88 — —

Excess tax benefit of shi-based compensatic (282) — —

Other noi-cash item: — 2C 19¢

Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accounts receivabl (90 (299) —
Receivables from collaborative arrangeme (90€) 7 (617)
Receivable from Theravance, In 14,63: — —
Prepaid and other current ass (2,879 19 (388
Inventories (6,629 (3,109 (4,827
Other asset (217) — —
Accounts payabl 3,917 2,11: (1,539
Accrued personnel-related expenses, accrued dleich
development expenses, and other accrued liabi 11,68( 4,17( (1,709
Deferred ren 37€ (300) (747)
Deferred revenu (7,999 7,467 (124,499
Other lon¢-term liabilities 86€ — —
Net cash used in operating activit (175,155 (120,959 (119,10)
Investing activities
Changes in restricted ca (839 — 60
Purchases of property and equipm (3,109 (2,739 (2,590
Purchases of marketable securi (168,89) — —
Maturities of marketable securiti 65,56+ — —
Sale of sho-term investments and marketable secur 87¢ — —
Payments received on notes receivable, net ofrises 14C 10C 10C
Net cash used in investing activiti (106,25) (2,639 (2,430
Financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents contributed from Theradnc.

(Note 9) 277,54. — —
Excess tax benefit of shi-based compensatic 282 — —
Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax withholc (17¢) — —
Payments on notes payable and capital le — — (69)
Transfers from Theravance, In 92,97¢ 123,59. 121,60¢

Net cash provided by financing activiti 370,62 123,59: 121,53
Net increase in cash and cash equivalen 89,21 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of peric — — —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric $ 89,21t $ — $ —
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatiot
Cash paid for income tax $ 455 $ — $ —
Supplemental disclosure of noncash information
Contribution of net assets, excluding cash and egsiivalents

from Theravance, Inc. (Note $ 12533 $ — $ —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies
Description of Operation:

The mission of Theravance Biopharma, ItiEthéravance Biopharma", the "Company", or "we" atiter similar pronouns) is to create
value from a unique and diverse set of assetspproged product; a development pipeline of mid- kte-stage assets; and a productive
research platform designed for long-term growth.

Our pipeline of internally discovered protloandidates includes potential best-in-class dppiies in underserved markets in the acute
care setting, representing multiple opportunit@svialue creation. VIBATIV® (telavancin), our firsommercial product, is a once-daily dual-
mechanism antibiotic approved in the United States Europe for certain difficult-to-treat infectmrirD-4208 is an investigational logting
muscarinic antagonist (LAMA) being developed a®teptial once-daily, nebulized treatment for cheotbstructive pulmonary disease
(COPD). Axelopran (TD-1211) is an investigationatgntial once-daily, oral treatment for opioid-imed constipation (OIC). Our earlier-stage
clinical assets represent novel approaches fongiatly treating diseases of the lung and gastesitihal tract and infectious disease. In
addition, we have an economic interest in futungnpents that may be made by GlaxoSmithKline plc (KG$ursuant to its agreements with
Theravance, Inc. ("Theravance") relating to certhiing development programs, including the combamatif fluticasone furoate, umeclidiniu
and vilanterol (or the "Closed Triple").

On June 1, 2014, Theravance separategté@sstage respiratory assets partnered with GSK fiwbiopharmaceutical operations by
transferring its discovery, development ammsnmercialization operations (the "Biopharmacelssiness") and contributing $393.0 million
cash, cash equivalents and marketable securitiestsnthen wholly-owned subsidiary Theravance Biepna. On June 2, 2014 Theravance
made a pro rata dividend distribution to its staillers of record on May 15, 2014 of one ordinargretof Theravance Biopharma for every
three and one half shares of Theravance commok stdstanding on the record date (the "Spin-Offhe Spin-Off resulted in Theravance
Biopharma operating as an independent, publicigeldacompany. Prior to June 2, 2014, Theravanceatgzbthe Biopharmaceutical Business.

The Spin-Off was effected pursuant to ag®agion and Distribution Agreement between Theragand Theravance Biopharma (the
"Separation and Distribution Agreement"), which\pdes, among other things, for the principal cogtertransactions required to effect the
Spin-Off and certain other agreements governingaance's relationship with Theravance Biopharner #ifie Spin-Off. These agreements
are discussed further in Note 10, "Contractual Agrents with Theravance, Inc.".

Basis of Presentatiol

The consolidated financial statements Hmean prepared using Theravance's historical cest bhthe assets and liabilities of the various
activities that comprised the BiopharmaceuticaliBess of Theravance and reflect the consolidatealtseof operations, financial condition
and cash flows of Theravance Biopharma as a wivlged subsidiary of Theravance prior to the Spih-Tfie various assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses associated with Theravanedaan allocated to the historical consolidatedrftial statements of Theravance
Biopharma in a manner consistent with the Separatia Distribution Agreement, discussed in Note"Q@ntractual Agreements with
Theravance, Inc.". Changes in parent company deéipresent Theravance's net investment in
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Theravance Biopharma, after giving effect to Tharae Biopharma's net loss, parent company expdosatans, and net cash transfers to
and from Theravance.

For purposes of preparing the consolidéitehcial statements, the Biopharmaceutical Business derived from Theravance's historical
consolidated financial statements, allocationseg€nues, research and development ("R&D") expeasglsnon-operating income and
expenses to Theravance Biopharma were made orciisjmentification basis. For purposes of allangtgeneral and administrative expenses
from Theravance's historical consolidated finansiatements, costs directly related to the Bioplaaeutical Business were allocated to
Theravance Biopharma on a specific identificatiasi® or based on the estimated underlying efférérdvance Biopharma's general and
administrative expenses also include allocatioriBhafravance's general corporate overhead expenskesling finance, legal, human
resources, information technology and other adrmatise functions. These allocations of generapooaite overhead expenses were primarily
based on the estimated underlying effort or amegéd number of full-time employees that workedhtlite Biopharmaceutical Business. The
consolidated balance sheets of Theravance Biophiachale assets and liabilities that were allocatetiheravance Biopharma principally ¢
specific identification basis.

Management believes that the consolidatgements of operations and comprehensive lossdach reasonable allocation of costs
incurred by Theravance which benefited Theravarioptl&arma. However, such expenses may not be inicat the actual level of expense
that would have been incurred by Theravance Biophaf it had operated as an independent, publielged company or of the costs expectec
to be incurred in the future. As such, the finahicitormation herein for periods prior to the Sgf may not necessarily reflect the financial
position, results of operations, and cash flow$hdravance Biopharma in the future or what it wchdste been had Theravance Biopharma
been an independent, publicly traded company dwiredy periods.

As Theravance Biopharma was a wholly owsidasidiary of Theravance until June 2, 2014, naussp cash accounts for the
Biopharmaceutical Business were historically mai&d prior to the Spin-Off and, therefore, Therasais presumed to have funded
Theravance Biopharma's operating, investing arahfimg activities as necessary. For purposes diilterical consolidated financial
statements prior to the Spin-Off, funding of Thenase Biopharma's expenditures is reflected in dmsalidated financial statements as a
component of parent company investment. In conoeatith the assets transfer and Spin-Off discuasede, Theravance contributed to
Theravance Biopharma cash, cash equivalents arkktahte securities of $393.0 million.

We describe the Biopharmaceutical Busitiesssferred to us by Theravance in connection thighSpin-Off as though the
Biopharmaceutical Business were our business ftnistbrical periods described. However, TheravaBiopharma did not conduct any
operations prior to the Spin-Off.

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of Theravance Biopharma and itdlywnaned subsidiaries, all of which are
denominated in U.S. dollars. All intercompany baksand transactions have been eliminated in ddasoh.

Use of Management's Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financiatements in conformity with U.S. Generally Accapfeccounting Principles ("GAAP") requir
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenztt a
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THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)

the amounts reported in the consolidated finarst&tements and accompanying notes. Actual resuligl cliffer materially from those
estimates. On an ongoing basis, management evalitmsignificant accounting policies or estimai#® base our estimates on historical
experience and other relevant assumptions thatelievie to be reasonable under the circumstanceselstimates also form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of asmad liabilities when these values are not reafilyarent from other sources.

Segment Reportin

We have determined that we operate ingleisegment, which is the discovery (research)eldgment and commercialization of human
therapeutics. We operate in one segment becaudmusimess offerings have similar economics andratharacteristics, including the nature
products and manufacturing processes, types obiess, distribution methods and regulatory envireninWe are comprehensively managec
as one business segment by our Chief Executive®féind his management team. Product sales alritgtt to regions based on ship-to
location and revenue from collaborative arrangesiéntluding royalty revenue, are attributed tadoaeg based on the location of the
collaboration partner. Revenues are generated plynfilam our collaborative arrangements with AssIPharma Inc. ("Astellas”) (which
agreement terminated in January 2012), locatedpan, Merck (which agreement terminated in Decer@b&B), located in the United States,
Clinigen Group plc ("Clinigen") located in Englari®sPharm CSJC ("R-Pharm") located in Russia and Atassermann S.p.A. ("Alfa
Wassermann") located in Italy.

All property and equipment is maintainedhia United States.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investmentsghased with a maturity of three months or lestherdate of purchase to be cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are carried at fair value.

Restricted Casl

Under certain lease agreements and laifansedit, we have pledged cash and cash equiaéentollateral. As of December 31, 2014,
restricted cash related to such agreements was@ién.

Investments in Marketable Securitie

We invest in marketable securities, prilgazorporate notes, government, government agearay municipal bonds. We classify our
marketable securities as available-$ale securities and report them at fair value shaquivalents or marketable securities on theditaec
balance sheets with related unrealized gains as$oincluded as a component of shareholdersyddeifiicit). The amortized cost of debt
securities is adjusted for amortization of premiwand accretion of discounts to maturity, whichnislided in interest income on the
consolidated statements of operations. Realizetsgaid losses and declines in value judged toher-than-temporary, if any, on available-
for-sale securities are included in interest incoffee cost of securities sold is based on the fipédéntification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availablesle are included in interest income.

We regularly review all of our investmefds other-than-temporary declines in estimatedvalue. Our review includes the consideratior
of the cause of the impairment, including the
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)

creditworthiness of the security issuers, the nurobsecurities in an unrealized loss position,sbeerity and duration of the unrealized losse:
whether we have the intent to sell the securitiebwahether it is more likely than not that we voi# required to sell the securities before the
recovery of their amortized cost basis. When wereine that the decline in estimated fair valuaminvestment is below the amortized cost
basis and the decline is other-than-temporary,aslece the carrying value of the security and reedabs for the amount of such decline.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We define fair value as the exchange pgheg¢ would be received for an asset or paid tosfeara liability (an exit price) in the principal o
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipan the measurement date.

Our valuation techniques are based on wbbér and unobservable inputs. Observable inpiiecteeadily obtainable data from
independent sources, while unobservable inputsaieflur market assumptions. We classify these sniptd the following hierarchy:

Level 1—Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instruments in activerkess; quoted prices for identical or similar insirents in markets that are
not active; and model-derived valuations whose tigpwe observable or whose significant value dsiege observable.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs and little, if any, marketiatt for the assets.

Financial instruments include cash equiv@lemarketable securities, accounts receivabtejrables from Theravance, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities. Our cash equivalents aadketable securities are carried at estimated/édire and remeasured on a recurring basis.
The carrying value of accounts receivable, recdasafsom collaborative arrangements, accounts dayabhd accrued liabilities approximate
their estimated fair value due to the relativelgrstterm nature of these instruments.

Accounts Receivabl

Trade accounts receivable are recordedfratowances for wholesaler chargebacks relategbt@rnment rebate programs, cash disct
for prompt payment and sales returns. Estimatewli@mlesaler chargebacks for government rebateh,diasounts and sales returns are basec
on contractual terms, historical trends and oueetqtions regarding the utilization rates for thesmrams. When appropriate, we provide for
an allowance for doubtful accounts by reservingsfwecifically identified doubtful accounts. For theriods presented, we did not have any
write-offs of accounts receivable. We perform omgoéredit evaluations of our customers and genedalinot require collateral.

Concentration of Credit Risks

We invest in a variety of financial instrams and, by our policy, limit the amount of cremiposure with any one issuer, industry or
geographic area for investments other than instnisrigacked by the U.S. federal government.

We depend on a single-source supplier@gittive pharmaceutical ingredient ("API") in VIBAK® (telavancin) and one supplier to
provide fill-finish services related to the manutaing of
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)

VIBATIV. If any of our suppliers were to limit oetminate production or otherwise fail to meet thealdy or delivery requirements needed to
supply VIBATIV at levels to meet market demand, @eeild experience a loss of revenue, which coulcenadly and adversely impact our
results of operations.

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, workprocess and finished goods related to the prioluof VIBATIV. Raw materials include
VIBATIV API. Work-in-process includes third-partyanufacturing and associated labor costs relatirmytgersonnel directly involved in the
production process. Included in inventories are maaterials and work-in-process that may be useatimsal products, which are charged to
research and development ("R&D") expense when ¢oaduln addition, under certain commercializatigneements, we may sell VIBATIV
packaged in unlabeled vials that are recorded ifkswreprocess. Inventories are stated at the laf@ost or market value. We determine the
cost of inventory using the average-cost method/&tidation batches.

We analyze our inventory levels quarterig avrite down inventory that is expected to becaisolete, that has a cost basis in excess of
its expected net realizable value or for inventguntities in excess of expected requirements. Wieerecognize a loss on such inventory, it
establishes a new, lower-cost basis for that irargnand subsequent changes in facts and circuoestamill not result in the restoration or
increase in that newly established cost basiswktory with a lowecost basis is subsequently sold, it will resulbigher gross margin for ti
products making up that inventory. In 2014, we ggiped a charge of $2.9 million to write-down inteny to net realizable value. Refer to
Note 4, "Inventories," for further informatio

Property and Equipmen

Property, equipment and leasehold improvesare stated at cost and depreciated usingriigtgtline method as follows:

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of remaining lease terms or useful
Equipment, furniture and fixture 5-7 years
Software and computer equipmt 3 years

Capitalized Software

We capitalize certain costs related todineaterial and service costs for software obtafeedhternal use. Capitalized software costs are
depreciated over three years.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets include property and popgnt. The carrying value of long-lived asset®isawed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the assenntee recoverable. An impairment loss is recogghiwhen the total of estimated future
cash flows expected to result from the use of #seand its eventual disposition is less thagaitsying amount.

66




Table of Contents

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Bonus Accruals

We have shoterm bonus programs for eligible employees. Bonasesletermined based on various criteria, inclyitie achievement
corporate, departmental and individual goals. Baugsuals are estimated based on various factanisiding target bonus percentages per |
of employee and probability of achieving the gagien which bonuses are based. We periodically wethe progress made towards the goals
under the bonus programs.

Deferred Rent

Deferred rent consists of the differenceveen cash payments and the recognition of rerdgresgpon a straight-line basis for the buildings
we occupy. Rent expense is being recognized ratatdy the life of the leases. Because our fadilfigrating leases provide for rent increases
over the terms of the leases, average annual xpehse during the first 1.5 years of the leaseeeded our actual cash rent payments. Also
included in deferred rent are lease incentiveslo $nillion as of December 31, 2014, which is baiegpgnized ratably over the life of the
leases.

Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenue is recognized when the four battieria of revenue recognition are met: (1) persigasvidence of an arrangement exists;
(2) delivery has occurred or services have beedered; (3) the fee is fixed or determinable; arjdc@llectability is reasonably assured. Where
the revenue recognition criteria are not met, wierdide recognition of revenue by recording defémevenue until such time that all criteria
met.

Product Sale:

In 2013, we reintroduced VIBATIV into the®l market by making the drug product availableulgh a limited number of distributors,
who sell VIBATIV to healthcare providers. Title andk of loss transfer upon receipt by these disitiors.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2014, agsult of VIBATIV's limited sales history, we coutabt reliably estimate expected returns, rebates
and chargebacks of the product at the time theyataglas sold to the distributors. Therefore, weedefd the recognition of revenue on sales tc
the VIBATIV distributors, and instead, recognizedenue at the time the product was sold throudtesdthcare providers, the end customers,
or the right of return no longer existed, whichevecurred earlier.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014, naxl developed sufficient historical experience @daic to reasonably estimate future returns,
rebates and chargebacks of VIBATIV and as a resfitctive October 1, 2014, we began recognizinBATIV product sales and related cost
of product sales at the time title transfers tovttelesalers. The impact of this change resulteatliitional product sales recognition of
$0.3 million in 2014 in our consolidated statemenfteperations.

Product sales are recorded net of estimggdrnment-mandated rebates and chargebackshdiigtn fees, estimated product returns anc
other deductions. We reflect such reductions ienee as either an allowance to the related aceeaeivable from the distributor, or as an
accrued liability, depending on the nature of thies deduction. Sales deductions are based on er@eads estimates that consider payer mix
in target markets, industry benchmarks and expeei¢m date. We monitor inventory levels in theritisition channel, as well as sales of
VIBATIV by distributors to healthcare providers,ing product-specific data provided by the distrdyst Product return allowances are based
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1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)

on amounts owed or to be claimed on related s@ilesse estimates take into consideration the tefrogreagreements with customers,
historical product returns of VIBATIV experiencey bheravance's former collaborative partner, AsgeRPharma Inc. ("Astellas"), rebates or
discounts taken, estimated levels of inventonhadistribution channel, the shelf life of the pwot] and specific known market events, such a
competitive pricing and new product introductiovge update our estimates and assumptions each gaadéf actual future results vary from
our estimates, we may adjust these estimates, vebigll have an effect on product sales and earnintpe period of adjustment.

Sales Discounts: We offer cash discounts to our customers, @giye2% of the sales price, as an incentive fongesbpayment. We
expect our customers to comply with the prompt parytihterms to earn the cash discount. We accoumiafr discounts by reducing accounts
receivable by the full amount and recognizing ttseaunt as a reduction of revenue in the same gé¢hio related revenue is recognized.

Chargebacks and Government RebateBor VIBATIV sales in the U.S., we estimate retions to product sales for qualifying federal
and state government programs including discouptiethg offered to Public Health Service (PHS) adlvas government-managed Medicaid
programs. Our reduction for PHS is based on actuaigebacks that distributors have claimed for cedupricing offered to such healthcare
providers. Our accrual for Medicaid is based upatusorily-defined discounts, estimated payer re#pected sales to qualified healthcare
providers, and our expectation about future utilora The Medicaid accrual and government rebdtasdre invoiced directly to us are
recorded in other accrued liabilities on the coidstéd balance sheets. For qualified programscmaipurchase our products through
distributors at a lower contractual governmentertbe distributors charge back to us the diffeedmetween their acquisition cost and the Ic
contractual government price, which we record aallvance against accounts receivable.

Distribution Fees and Product ReturnsWe have written contracts with our distributtivat include terms for distribution-related fees.
We record distribution-related fees based on agueage of the product sales price. We offer ouritigtors a right to return product purchasec
directly from us, which is principally based upt fproduct's expiration date. Additionally, we hgvanted more expansive return rights to
distributors following our product launch of VIBAVI Our policy is to accept product returns durihg six months prior to and twelve months
after the product expiration date on product ttzat been sold to our distributors. We have devel@gstichates for VIBATIV product returns
based upon historical VIBATIV sales. We record rilisttion fees and product returns as an allowageénat accounts receivable.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: We maintain a policy to record allowances fotgmtially doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers tokeaequired payments. As of December 31, 2014 8i48,2here was no allowance for
doubtful accounts as we have not had any writetafforically.

Collaborative Arrangements and Multiple-Elementargements

Revenue from nonrefundable, up-front lieastechnology access payments under licensedlatarative arrangements that are not
dependent on any future performance by us is rezedmwhen such amounts are earned. If we havereongj obligations to perform under the
arrangement, such fees are recognized over theatstil period of continuing performance obligation.
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We account for multiple element arrangemesuich as license and development agreementsi¢h wltustomer may purchase several
deliverables, in accordance with Financial AccauptStandards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standarddif@mtion ("ASC") Subtopic 6025,
"Multiple Element Arrangements.” For new or matdlyiamended multiple element arrangements, we iffetite deliverables at the inception
of the arrangement and each deliverable within Hipheideliverable revenue arrangement is accoufteds a separate unit of accounting if
both of the following criteria are met: (1) the igeled item or items have value to the customea standalone basis and (2) for an arrange
that includes a general right of return relativéh®e delivered item(s), delivery or performancéhaf undelivered item(s) is considered probable
and substantially in our control. We allocate rexeto each non-contingent element based on thiéveekelling price of each element. When
applying the relative selling price method, we daiee the selling price for each deliverable usmegdor-specific objective evidence
("VSOE") of selling price, if it exists, or thirdapty evidence ("TPE") of selling price, if it exgstf neither VSOE nor TPE of selling price exist
for a deliverable, we use the best estimated ggfiice for that deliverable. Revenue allocateddoh element is then recognized based on
when the basic four revenue recognition criterearaet for each element.

For multiple-element arrangements enteméal prior to January 1, 2011, we determined th&veledd items under our collaborative
arrangements did not meet the criteria to be censitlseparate accounting units for the purposesvehue recognition. As a result, we
recognized revenue from non-refundable, upfrons el development contingent payments in the saammen as the final deliverable, which
is ratably over the expected term of our perforneamicR&D services under the agreements. These nipdrocontingent payments received,
pending recognition as revenue, are recorded @&srddfrevenue and are classified as a currentrecaoent liability on the consolidated
balance sheets and recognized over the estimatiedi pd performance. We periodically review theimstted performance periods of our
contracts based on the progress of our programs.

Where a portion of non-refundable upfrared or other payments received are allocated tiincdmg performance obligations under the
terms of a collaborative arrangement, they arerdstbas deferred revenue and recognized as rewerasean accrued liability and recognized
as a reduction of R&D expenses ratably over tha @rour estimated performance period under theeagent. We determine the estimated
performance periods, and they are periodicallyaweid based on the progress of the related prograeneffect of any change made to an
estimated performance period and, therefore revesragnized, would occur on a prospective basibarperiod that the change was made.

Under certain collaborative arrangementshave been reimbursed for a portion of our R&Desmges. These reimbursements have beer
reflected as a reduction of R&D expense in our obdated statements of operations, as we do natidenperforming research and
development services to be a part of our ongoirgcamtral operations. Therefore, the reimbursermerdsearch and development services
any amounts allocated to our research and develapseevices are recorded as a reduction of R&D espe

69




Table of Contents

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. Description of Operations and Summary of Signifiant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Amounts deferred under a collaborativerageament in which the performance obligations amaiteated will result in an immediate
recognition of any remaining deferred revenue armiuged liability in the period that termination aced, provided that there are no remaining
performance obligations.

We recognize revenue from milestone paymeshien (i) the milestone event is substantive tmddhievability was not reasonably ass:
at the inception of the agreement and (ii) we dibhawe ongoing performance obligations relatedéoachievement of the milestone. Milest
payments are considered substantive if all of tiewing conditions are met: the milestone paym@pis commensurate with either our
performance to achieve the milestone or the enlmaectof the value of the delivered item or items assult of a specific outcome resulting
from our performance to achieve the milestonerglgtes solely to past performance, and (c) isoreasle relative to all of the deliverables and
payment terms (including other potential milestonasideration) within the arrangement.

Research and Development Co

Research and development costs are expénteelperiod that services are rendered or gaoelseceived. Research and development
costs consist of salaries and benefits, laboratopplies and facility costs, as well as fees paithird parties that conduct certain research anc
development activities on behalf of us, net of@arexternal research and development costs resabdunder our collaborative arrangements

Preclinical Study and Clinical Study Expens:

A substantial portion of our preclinicalidtes and all of our clinical studies have beeriguered by third-party contract research
organizations ("CROs"). Some CROs bill monthly $ervices performed, while others bill based updestines achieved. We review the
activities performed under the significant contsegaich quarter. For preclinical studies, the sicanift factors used in estimating accruals
include the percentage of work completed to datecamtract milestones achieved. For clinical stedyenses, the significant factors used in
estimating accruals include the number of patientslled and percentage of work completed to d&edor confirmations are obtained for
contracts with longer duration when necessary lidage our estimate of expenses. Our estimatehighty dependent upon the timeliness and
accuracy of the data provided by our CROs regarttiagstatus of each program and total program spgrachd adjustments are made when
deemed necessary.

Advertising Expense

We expense the costs of advertising, inolygromotional expenses, as incurred. Advertigkgenses were $1.1 million, $1.4 million ¢
none in 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Fair Value of Share-Based Compensation Awards

We use the Black-Scholes-Merton optionipganodel to estimate the fair value of optionsnged under our equity incentive plans and
rights to acquire shares granted under our emplslgase purchase plan ("ESPP"). The Black-Scholegev®ption valuation model requires
the use of assumptions, including the expected tériine award and the expected share price vdjatiVe use the "simplified" method as
described in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, &é&-Based Payment,"” for
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the expected option term since our share staréeling on June 3, 2014 after the Spin-Off. We uss pempany price volatility to estimate
expected share price volatility due to our limitestorical ordinary share price volatility sinceralare started trading on June 3, 2014 after tt
Spin-Off.

Share-based compensation expense wasa@idldased on awards ultimately expected to vestvas reduced for estimated forfeitures a
the time of grant and revised, if necessary, irsegbent periods if actual forfeitures differed frirose estimates. Our estimated annual
forfeiture rates for options are based on histbfideiture experience of peer companies.

Compensation expense for purchases unddt 3PP is recognized based on the fair value dfrtieary share on the date of offering, |
the purchase discount percentage provided forarptan.

Net Loss per Shar

Basic net loss per share is computed bigidig net loss by the weighted-average number afeshof outstanding, less ordinary shares
subject to forfeiture. Diluted net loss per shareamputed by dividing net loss by the weightedrage number of shares outstanding, less
ordinary shares subject to forfeiture, plus alliaddal ordinary shares that would have been onttay, assuming dilutive potential common
shares had been issued for other dilutive secsiritie

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 26d32012, diluted and basic net loss per sharaédeasical since potential common shares
were excluded from the calculation, as their effeas anti-dilutive. Prior to the Spin-Off in Jun@12, we operated as part of Theravance and
not as a separate entity. As a result, the calonlaf basic and diluted net loss per share asstna¢she 32,260,105 ordinary shares issued to
Theravance stockholders in connection with the €jfinless the number of ordinary shares subjeéoti@iture, were outstanding from the
beginning of all periods presented.

Anti-dilutive Securities

The following common equivalent shares wektincluded in the computation of diluted netslger share because their effect was anti-
dilutive:

Year Ended
December 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Share issuances under equity incentive plan andP! 3,47¢ — —
Forfeitable share 424 — —
3,89¢ — —

Other Income, net

Other income includes $1.6 million relatedransition services rendered to Theravance.Refdote 10, "Contractual Agreements with
Theravance, Inc." for further information on trdisi services.
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Income Taxes

We utilize the asset and liability methddhocounting for income taxes. Under this methadeded tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between finanggirting and tax basis of assets and liabilitiasame measured using enacted tax rates anc
laws that are anticipated to be in effect whendifferences are expected to reverse. A valuatimwaince is provided when it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of a deferredasset will not be realized.

Our unrecognized tax benefits would redugeeffective income tax rate if recognized. Wendb anticipate the total amount of
unrecognized income tax benefits relating to urdetax positions existing at December 31, 2014 siginificantly increase or decrease in the
next 12 months.

We assess all material positions takemijniacome tax return, including all significant @ntain positions, in all tax years that are still
subject to assessment or challenge by relevamgauthorities. Assessing an uncertain tax poshigins with the initial determination of the
position's sustainability and is measured at thgelst amount of benefit that is greater than 50&yito be realized upon ultimate settlement.
As of each balance sheet date, unresolved uncéatajpositions must be reassessed, and we wilfrdate whether: the factors underlying the
sustainability assertion have changed and whellgeanount of the recognized tax benefit is stifirapriate.

The recognition and measurement of tax fitsmequires significant judgment. Judgments comicg the recognition and measurement of
a tax benefit might change as new information bexoavailable.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of netémsschanges in unrealized gains and losses omaiketable securities.
Related Partie:

GSK owned 25.8% of our shares outstandingf @ecember 31, 2014.

Robert V. Gunderson, Jr. is a directothef Company. We have engaged Gunderson DettmeriSuiligneuve Franklin &
Hachigian, LLP, of which Mr. Gunderson is a partrees our primary legal counsel. Fees incurred énattdinary course of business were
$1.1 million in 2014, $1.4 million in 2013 and $0vllion in 2012.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yebated

In May 2014, the FASB issued AccountingnBtrds Update 2014-0Bevenue from Contracts with Custom@sSU 2014-09"), which
converges the FASB and the International Accounfitandards Board standards on revenue recognitreas of revenue recognition that will
be affected include, but are not limited to, transff control, variable consideration, allocatidriransfer pricing, licenses, time value of mot
contract costs and disclosures. This guidanceeéstafe for the fiscal years and interim reportperiods beginning after December 15, 2016, ¢
which time we may adopt the new standard undefuthestrospective method or the modified retrogpecmethod. Early adoption is not
permitted. We are currently evaluating the impdadopting ASU 2014-09 on our consolidated finahsiatements and related disclosures.
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Revenues from Collaborative Arrangemer
We recognized revenue from our collabostivangements as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(n thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Clinigen $ 5011 $ — $ —
R-Pharm 2,25¢ — —
Astellas — — 125,78t
Merck — 22¢€ 4,357

Total revenue from collaborative arrangeme  $ 7,27C $ 22€¢ $ 130,14!

Alfa Wassermanr
Development and Collaboration Arrangem

In October 2012, Theravance entered irdeveelopment and collaboration arrangement with ¥fassermann for velusetrag under which
the parties agreed to collaborate in the executf@atwo-part Phase 2 program to test the efficaafgty and tolerability of velusetrag in the
treatment of patients with gastroparesis (a medioatiition consisting of a paresis (partial paralyef the stomach, resulting in food remair
in the stomach for a longer time than normal). Afassermann has an exclusive option to develogamercialize velusetrag in the
European Union, Russia, China, Mexico and certtirrocountries, while Theravance retains full rigtt velusetrag in the United States,
Canada, Japan and certain other countries. Theravamrntitled to receive funding for the PhasstBdy and most of the Phase 2b study. If
Alfa Wassermann exercises its license option attmepletion of the Phase 2 program, then Theravanestitled to receive a $10.0 million
option fee. If velusetrag is successfully developed commercialized, Theravance is entitled toivegeotential future contingent payments
totaling up to $53.5 million, and royalties on sates by Alfa Wassermann ranging from the low teer20%.

This agreement was assigned to us in tire Gff, and we will be eligible to receive any potial future option fee, contingent payments
and royalties on net sales.

Clinigen
Commercialization Agreement

In March 2013, Theravance entered intoraroercialization agreement (the "Clinigen Commeiz#ion Agreement”) with Clinigen to
commercialize VIBATIV for the treatment of hospitedquired nosocomial pneumonia, including ventit@ssociated pneumonia, known or
suspected to be caused by methicillin resistaaphylococcus aureMRSA) when other alternatives are not suitabledéfrthe agreement,
Theravance granted Clinigen exclusive commerciadinaights in the European Union and certain otBgropean countries, including
Switzerland and Norway. Theravance received a 8llbn upfront payment in March 2013. This agreemneas assigned to us in the Spin-
Off, and we are now eligible to receive tiered dbypayments on net sales of VIBATIV in these caigs, ranging from 20% to 30%. We are
responsible, either directly or through our vendursontractors, for supplying at Clinigen's expehsth API and finished drug product for
Clinigen's
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commercialization activities. The agreement hara tof at least 15 years, with an option to extexercisable by Clinigen. However, Clinigen
may terminate the agreement at any time afterstimiéiated commercialization upon 12 months' adeamotice.

Under the Clinigen Commercialization Agresmy the significant deliverables were determireeble the license, committee participation
and manufacturing supply. Theravance determinedltiedicense represents a separate unit of acoguas the license, which includes rights
to Theravance's underlying technologies for VIBATRas standalone value because the rights conyyredt Clinigen to perform all efforts
necessary to use Theravance's technologies to téngpmpound through commercialization and basedést estimate of selling price for-
license based on potential future cash flows utfteearrangement over the estimated commercializgigoiod. Theravance determined the
estimate of selling price for the manufacturing@yased on a fully burdened cost to purchaser@amdfer the underlying API and finished
goods from Theravance's third party contract martufar. The license and supply obligations underCGhinigen Commercialization
Agreement are now our obligations.

The $5.0 million upfront payment receivgdtheravance was recognized by us as revenue ihitldequarter of 2014 due to the
completion of technical transfer for the underlylimgnse. Amounts received under a future separgiply agreement for API, which will be
manufactured by our third party contract manufatsrwill be recognized as revenue to the extefutofe API and finished goods inventory
sales.

R-Pharm
Development and Commercialization Agreements w-Pharm

In October 2012, Theravance entered intodevelopment and commercialization agreements RiBtharm: one to develop and
commercialize VIBATIV (the "VIBATIV Development an@ommercialization Agreement") and the other toeli@gy and commercialize TD-
1792 (the "TD-1792 Development and Commercializaf\greement"), one of Theravance's investigatighatopeptide-cephalosporin
heterodimer antibiotics for the treatment of Gransipive infections. Under each agreement, Therazgnanted R-Pharm exclusive
development and commercialization rights in Rudslaaine, other member countries of the Commonweziiindependent States, and
Georgia. Theravance received $1.1 million in upfieeyments for each agreement. These agreemeresnaasferred to us as a result of the
Spin-Off. We are now eligible to receive potenfiglire contingent payments totaling up to $10.0iarilfor both agreements and royalties on
net sales by R-Pharm of 15% from TD-1792 and 25 f/IBATIV. The contingent payments are not deersgstantive milestones due to
the fact that the achievement of the event undwglythe payment predominantly relates to R-Phararfopmance of future development and
commercialization activities.

TD-1792

Under the TD-1792 Development and Comméreiton Agreement, the significant deliverablesgvdetermined to be the license,
committee participation and a contingent obligatoisupply R-Pharm with API at R-Pharm's expenileedirectly or through Theravance's
contract manufacturer. Theravance determined ligalicense represents a separate unit of accousitige license, which includes rights to
Theravance's underlying technologies for TD-17%, standalone value because the rights conveyadtgeiPharm to perform all efforts
necessary to use Theravance's
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technologies to bring the compounds through devatog and, upon regulatory approval, commerciabiratAlso, Theravance determined that
the committee participation represents a separat@fiaccounting as R-Pharm could negotiate fal/anacquire these services from other
third parties, and Theravance based the best dstwhaelling price on the nature and timing of seevices to be performed. In March 2013,
Theravance entered into a supply agreement for TE#2 AP| under which Theravance sold its existing #&PFR-Pharm. Upon execution of this
supply agreement, Theravance determined that fhysagreement represents a separate unit of atagumder the development and
commercialization arrangement and based the beistags of selling price for the supply agreementterfully burdened cost to manufacture
the API.

The $1.1 million upfront payment received the TD-1792 agreement was allocated to two wfiteccounting based on the relative
selling price method as follows: $0.9 million teetlicense and $0.1 million to the committee pgptition. The amount allocated to the license
was recognized by us as revenue in the secondequdir2014 due to the completion of technical tfanfor the underlying license. The amo
allocated to committee participation was deferned ia being recognized as revenue over the estihpgtformance period.

Amounts to be received under the supple@ment described above will be recognized by us\enue to the extent R-Pharm purchases
API from us.

VIBATIV

Under the VIBATIV Development and Commeligi@tion Agreement, the significant deliverablesrevdetermined to be the license,
committee participation and a contingent obligatosupply R-Pharm with APl at R-Pharm's expenskjest to entering into a future supply
agreement. Theravance determined that the licemsegents a separate unit of accounting as thesk¢evhich includes rights to Theravance's
underlying technologies for VIBATIV, has standalor&ue because the rights conveyed permit R-Phanpmeitform all efforts necessary to use
Theravance's technologies to bring the compoundsi¢ih development and, upon regulatory approvahmaercialization and Theravance
based the best estimate of selling price for tenlse based on potential future cash flows und@eattangement over the estimated perform
period. Theravance determined that the committeticyation represents a separate unit of accogramR-Pharm could negotiate for and/or
acquire these services from other third partiesTretavance based the best estimate of selling priche nature and timing of the services tc
be performed.

The $1.1 million upfront payment received the VIBATIV agreement was allocated to two umfsiccounting based on the relative
selling price method as follows: $1.0 million tetlicense and $33,000 to the committee participafithe amount allocated to the license was
recognized by us as revenue in the second qudrg&ld due to the completion of technical transfére amount allocated to committee
participation was deferred and will be recognizedevenue over the estimated performance period.

Former Collaboration Arrangement with Astellas
License, Development and Commercialization Agreé

In November 2005, Theravance entered irglmbal collaboration arrangement with Astellastfue license, development and
commercialization of VIBATIV. Under this agreemeAstellas paid
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Theravance non-refundable cash payments totalifg.®Imillion. In January 2012, Astellas exercigsdight to terminate the collaboration
agreement. The rights previously granted to Astetased upon termination of the agreement andla#ssttopped all promotional sales effc
As such, $125.8 million of deferred revenue reldtedstellas was recognized in the first quartee@f2, and no further milestone payments
remain from Astellas. This agreement was assigoer in the Spin-Off, and we are now obligatedayp Astellas royalties on future net sales
of VIBATIV. Pursuant to the terms of the agreemedtellas is entitled to a ten-year, 2% royaltyfoture net sales of VIBATIV.

Former Collaboration Arrangement with Merck
Research Collaboration and License Agreen

In October 2012, Theravance entered imesaarch collaboration and license agreement Reséarch Collaboration and License
Agreement”) with Merck, known as MSD outside thetekh States and Canada, to discover, develop amdheocialize novel small molecule
therapeutics directed towards a target being iigeetd for the treatment of hypertension and Hedrre. Under the agreement, Theravance
granted Merck a worldwide, exclusive license torBlvance's therapeutic candidates. Theravance egtai$5.0 million upfront payment in
November 2012. Also, Theravance received fundimgdeearch and was eligible for potential futurattment payments totaling up
$148.0 million for the first indication and roy&$ on worldwide annual net sales of any produatsettfrom the collaboration. The initial
research term was twelve months, with optionalresitsns by mutual agreement. Merck had the righetminate the agreement at any time,
and provided Theravance with notice of terminatioBeptember 2013. The agreement was terminatBéédember 2013.

Under the Research Collaboration and Liegkgreement, the significant deliverables were reiteed to be the license, research service:
and committee participation. Theravance determthatlithe license represents a separate unit obiatiog because the license has standalone
value. The license, which included rights to Tharae's underlying technologies for its therapetditdidates, permitted Merck to perform all
efforts necessary to use Theravance's technoltgigsng a therapeutic candidate through developraed upon regulatory approval,
commercialization. Theravance based the best estiaiaelling price on potential future cash flowsler the arrangement over the estimated
development period. Theravance determined thatetbearch services represent a separate unit ofileiieg and based the best estimate of
selling price on the nature and timing of the segsito be performed. Theravance determined thaioimenittee participation represents a
separate unit of accounting as Merck could negofmt and/or acquire these services from othed tharties and Theravance based the best
estimate of selling price on the nature and tinohthe services to be performed.

The $5.0 million upfront payment receivadTheravance in November 2012 was allocated tehtee units of accounting based on the
relative selling price method as follows: $4.4 ioill to the license, $0.4 million to the researctvises and $0.2 million to the committee
participation. Theravance recognized revenue of #llion from the license in 2012 as the technicahsfer activities were complete and the
associated unit of accounting was deemed delivaileel amount of the upfront payment allocated toréisearch services was deferred and is
being recognized as a reduction of research anelaf@went expense as the underlying services aferperd, since the
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nature of the research services is more approfyrielaracterized as research and development exmemsistent with the research
reimbursements being received. The amount of tfr@nippayment allocated to the committee partiégratvas deferred and recognized as
revenue over the estimated performance period.

The amounts under this agreement wereragigp us in the Spin-Off.

Reimbursement of R&D Cosi

Under certain collaborative arrangementsave entitled to reimbursement of certain R&D €08&ur policy is to account for the
reimbursement payments by our collaboration pastasrreductions to R&D expense.

The following table summarizes the redudtito R&D expenses related to the reimbursementpais:

Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Alfa Wassermani $ 1,76¢ $ 1,50C $ 18t
Merck — 4,937 75€
Other 12C 86 —

Total reduction to R&D expen: $ 1,882 $ 6,52: $ 941

3. Available-for-Sale Securities and Fair Value Mesurements
Available-for-Sale Securities
The following table summarizes the clasatiion of the available-for-sale securities in consolidated balance sheets:

December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Cash equivalent $ 69,866 $ —
Shor-term marketable securitit 165,39¢ —
Marketable securitie 51,39¢ —
Restricted cas 83¢ 83:<
Total $ 287,49: $ 83:
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The estimated fair value of available-fates securities is based on quoted market pricabése or similar investments that were based
on prices obtained from a commercial pricing sexvithe fair value of our marketable securitiessifeesd within Level 2 is based upon
observable inputs that may include benchmark yjelfsorted trades, broker/dealer quotes, issueasgr two-sided markets, benchmark
securities, bids, offers and reference data inolydnarket research publications. Available-for-saeurities are summarized below:

December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

(In thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
Money market fund Levell $ 70,69¢ $ — $ — $ 70,69¢
U.S. government securitit Level 1 32,51t 26 — 32,54
U.S. government agenci Level 2 39,59¢ 4 (14) 39,58¢
U.S. corporate note Level 2 97,77¢ 12 (110 97,68:
U.S. commercial pape¢ Level 2 46,98¢ — — 46,98¢
Total $ 287,57t $ 42 $ (124) $ 287,49

December 31, 201

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

(In thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
Money market fund Level1 $ 83 $ — $ — $ 83:

At December 31, 2014, all of the availaflesale securities had contractual maturities iitivo years and the average duration of
marketable securities was approximately eight menffie do not intend to sell the investments thatiman unrealized loss position, and it is
unlikely that we will be required to sell the int®nts before recovery of their amortized costdyaghich may be maturity. We have
determined that the gross unrealized losses omauketable securities at December 31, 2014 werpdgary in nature. All marketable
securities with unrealized losses at December @14 have been in a loss position for less thanvevelonths. There were no transfers betv
Level 1 and Level 2 during the periods presented.

During 2014, we sold available-for-salewsdies totaling $0.9 million, and the related ieadl gains and losses were not material. There
were no sales during 2013 and 2012.

4. Inventories

Inventories are as follows:

December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Raw material $ 6,83 $ 5,13¢
Work-in-process 14t 36(
Finished good 5,571 4,90¢
Total inventories $ 12,54¢ $ 10,40¢
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In 2014, we recorded within costs of gosalsl on the consolidated statement of operatiaismege of $2.9 million for the write-down of
VIBATIV inventory due to the dating of the produi¥e continue to hold this inventory for sale a®etember 31, 2014.

5. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of thewuilhg:

December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Computer equipmer $ 3152 $ 3,08/
Software 5,43¢ 5,391
Furniture and fixture 3,891 3,89(
Laboratory equipmer 33,79( 31,91(
Leasehold improvemen 17,857 17,76¢
Subtotal 64,13 62,04
Less: accumulated depreciati (54,469 (51,806
Property and equipment, r $ 9,665 $ 10,23¢

For the years ended December 31, 2014, a6d2012, depreciation expense for property angetent was $2.7 million, $2.7 million
and $3.3 million. The change in accumulated deptixti is net of asset retirements.

6. Share-Based Compensation
Theravance Biopharma Equity Plans

Upon the completion of the Spin-Off, we lad equity compensation plans—our 2013 Equity iniee Plan (the "2013 EIP") and our
2013 Employee Share Purchase Plan (the "2013 ESBRder the 2013 EIP and 2013 ESPP, we are autitbtizissue 5,428,571 ordinary
shares and 857,142 ordinary shares. In October, 204 4dopted the 2014 New Employee Equity Incerfileam (the "2014 NEEIP"). We are
authorized to issue 750,000 ordinary shares utde?2®14 NEEIP.

The 2013 EIP provides for the issuancehafa-based awards, including restricted sharesiates share units, options, share appreciatio
rights ("SARs") and other equity-based awards,uioemployees, officers, directors and consultakssof January 1 of each year, commencing
on January 1, 2015 and ending on (and includingdaiy 1, 2023, the aggregate number of ordinaryeshthat may be issued under the 2013
EIP shall automatically increase by a number etjutiie least of 5% of the total number of ordinsinares outstanding on December 31 of the
prior year, 3,428,571 ordinary shares, or a nurnberdinary shares determined by our board of dirsc Options may be granted with an
exercise price not less than the fair market vafube ordinary shares on the grant date. Undetettms of our 2013 EIP, options granted to
employees generally have a maximum term of 10 yaadsvest over a four-year period from the datgraht; 25% vest at the end of one year,
and 75% vest monthly over the remaining three yadesmay grant options with different vesting terfinegn time to time. Unless an
employee's termination of service is due to
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disability or death, upon termination of servicey anexercised vested options will generally béeited at the end of three months or the
expiration of the option, whichever is earlier.

Under the 2013 ESPP, our officers and eygie may purchase ordinary shares through paydlictions at a price equal to 85% of the
lower of the fair market value of the ordinary shat the beginning of the offering period or at¢imel of each applicable purchase period. /
January 1 of each year, commencing on Januarylh 20d ending on (and including) January 1, 2083 aggregate number of ordinary sh.
that may be issued under the 2013 ESPP shall atitathaincrease by a number equal to the leadi%fof the total number of ordinary shares
outstanding on December 31 of the prior year, 28 g¥dinary shares or a number of ordinary shaeésrchined by our board of directors. The
ESPP generally provides for consecutive and ovpitepoffering periods of 24 months in duration,wéach offering period generally
composed of four consecutive six-month purchasegerThe purchase periods end on either May T¥oeember 15. ESPP contributions are
limited to a maximum of 15% of an employee's eligibompensation.

Our 2013 ESPP also includes a featureptttatides for the existing offering period to teriai@ and for participants in that offering period
to automatically be enrolled in a new offering pdrivhen the fair market value of an ordinary slerhe beginning of a subsequent offering
period falls below the fair market value of an oatly share on the first day of such offering period

The 2014 NEEIP provides for the issuancehaire-based awards, including restricted shassjated share units, non-qualified options
and SARs, to our employees. Options may be gramitbdan exercise price not less than the fair maviéue of the ordinary shares on the
grant date. Under the terms of our 2014 NEEIP omgtigranted to employees generally have a maxireum of 10 years and vest over a four-
year period from the date of grant; 25% vest aethe of one year, and 75% vest monthly over theaneimg three years. We may grant opti
with different vesting terms from time to time. l@ak an employee's termination of service is dulstbility or death, upon termination of
service, any unexercised vested options will gdiyelba forfeited at the end of three months orékpiration of the option, whichever is earli

Theravance's Equity Plans

Many of our employees have in the pastiveceTheravance stock-based compensation awardstterefore, the following disclosures
include information regarding share-based comp@rsakpense allocated to Theravance Biopharmadaied to Theravance stock-based
equity awards. Accordingly, the amounts presentechat necessarily indicative of future performaand do not necessarily reflect the results
that we would have experienced as an independeblicly-traded company for the periods presented.

At the time of the Spin-Off, Theravance lwe@ active stock-based incentive plan under wiighanted stockzased awards to employe
officers and consultants, the 2012 Equity Incenken. All outstanding stock options and RSUs lgid1) Theravance employees who
became our employees, and (2) members of the lndalidectors of Theravance who became membersoboard of directors, in connection
with the Spin-Off were adjusted for the Spin-OfficB awards, along with outstanding RSAs held byrabvence employees who became our
employees in connection with the Spin-Off, will tiome to vest and remain outstanding based onmainty employment or service with us.
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The 2012 Equity Incentive Plan providestfar grant of incentive stock options, nonstatugiock options, restricted stock awards, stock
unit awards and SARs to employees, romployee directors and consultants. Stock opticgregranted with an exercise price not less tha
fair market value of the common stock on the gdaté. Stock options granted to employees gendrnallg a maximum term of 10 years and
vest over a four year period from the date of gra% vest at the end of one year, and 75% vesthtyoover the remaining three years.
However, Theravance granted options with differergting terms from time to time. Unless an empl&s/esrmination of service is due to
disability or death, upon termination of servicay anexercised vested options will be forfeitethatend of three months or the expiration of
the option, whichever is earlier.

On June 2, 2014, Theravance made a praliétiend distribution to its stockholders of red@n May 15, 2014 of one ordinary share of
Theravance Biopharma for every three and one halfes of Theravance common stock outstanding oretterd date. Theravance's
outstanding stock options and RSUs, which wereentitled to the dividend distribution were adjustedthe Spin-Off. Specifically, the
number of shares and exercise price for Theravaocoestanding stock options were adjusted anduheber of shares underlying Theravance"
outstanding RSUs was adjusted. All other term$e$¢ options and RSUs remained the same; providegver, that the vesting and
expiration of these grants are based on the heldentinuing employment or service with Theravaoicas, as applicable.

Although the anti-dilution adjustments weequired pursuant to the terms of each equity, gtenanti-dilution adjustments were
calculated using a volume-weighted average stoicke prather than the stock price as of the datbeflividend distribution, which resulted in
incremental compensation expense. The accountipgdtof the adjustment to the outstanding Therawatmck options and RSUs that
occurred in connection with the Spin-Off of Thenasa Biopharma was measured by comparing the fhiesaf the modified stock options
and RSUs to our employees and directors immediaiigre and after the adjustment. As a result, Wle@cognize total incremental share-
based compensation expense of $0.7 million assacisith this adjustment over the remaining serpiegod as it pertains to unvested stock
options and RSUs held by individuals now in servigth us. The incremental expense recognized i 2@ds not material.

Theravance Performance-Contingent Restricted SAockrds

Over the past three years, the Compens@&tonmittee of Theravance's board of directors (f@&hance's Compensation Committee") has
approved grants of performance-contingent RSAsstednior management and a non-executive officene@lly, these awards have dual
triggers of vesting based upon the achievemene&in performance goals by a pre-specified dateyedl as a requirement for continued
employment. When the performance goals are deeptaeevad for these types of awards, time-basedngestid, as a result, recognition of
stock-based compensation expense commence. Indludeelse performance-contingent RSAs is the grah{290,000 special long-term
retention and incentive performance-contingent R&/Asenior management in 2011. The awards hadtdggérs of vesting based upon the
achievement of certain performance conditions aveix-year timeframe from 2011 through December2B16 and require continued
employment.

In May 2014, Theravance's Compensation Citteendetermined that the requisite performancelitioms for the first tranche of the
awards were achieved and, as a result, $7.0 milliehare-based compensation expense was recodniaesiduring the year ended
December 31, 2014.
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In May 2014, Theravance's Compensation Citieenapproved the modification of the remainiranthes related to these awards,
contingent upon the Spin-Off. The modification aoktedged the Spin-Off and permitted recognitiomdfievement of the original
performance conditions that were met prior to thm<Off, triggering twelve-month service-based wagtfor a portion of the equity awards.
Share-based compensation expense of $6.9 millesceged with this portion of the awards afteradification is expected to be recognized
by us during the twelve-month service period comeienin June 2014.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, we detigred that it was probable that the performancelitimms associated with the vesting of the
remaining 417,000 RSAs outstanding under thesedswmould be achieved. In addition, the remainind\RSutstanding under these awards
were entitled to the pro rata dividend distributrnade by Theravance on June 2, 2014 of one ordsteme of Theravance Biopharma for e
three and one half shares of Theravance commoh. $isc result, $1.4 million of the total sharedsompensation expense of $9.5 million
related to these remaining RSAs and the pro raidetid was recognized by us in 2014. The RSAs andgta dividend remain subject to a
twelve-month service period, which commenced inr&aty 2015.

Director Compensation Prograr

Each member of our board of directors wshodt an employee is paid an annual retainer dsawel fee for each board and committee
meeting attended. In addition, the chairpersorte@frarious committees of our board of directors l@ad independent director of our board of
directors receive a fixed annual retainer.

Each of our non-employee directors is alsmpensated with periodic automatic grants of gcquitards under a program implemented
under our 2013 EIP. These grants are non-disceatyoand only our non-employee directors are dliglib receive these automatic grants.

Under our automatic grant program, eackviddal who first becomes a non-employee directdk, wn the date such individual joins our
board, automatically be granted a one-time nonsiatishare option grant covering 12,000 ordinargrel. These initial option grants vest
monthly over the director's first two years of seev In addition, on the date of joining our boafdirectors, a new non-employee director will
also receive the standard annual equity awarai(iffjg on the date of our annual meeting of shdohe) or a praated annual equity award
joining on any other date), as described below. ra-ration will be based upon the number of monthsastice the new board member will
provide during the 12-month period ending on the-pear anniversary of the most recent annual ngefishareholders.

Annually, upon his or her re-election ta board at the annual meeting of shareholders, rackemployee director automatically will be
granted restricted share units ("RSUs") coverii@@,ordinary shares. This standard annual RSU griintest in full on the earlier of the one-
year anniversary of the date of grant or the narual meeting of shareholde

In connection with the Spin-Off and in c@rst to our automatic grant program, however, @icur non-employee directors that was
serving as a member of our board of directorsatithe of the Spin-Off, as well as each of our eomployee directors that became a member
of our board of directors in connection with tharS@ff, received the initial option grant describalgove (with vesting occurring monthly over
the director’s first three years of service, rathan two years) as well as an
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annual equity award provided in the form of an @pttovering 12,000 of our ordinary shares thatsvexinthly over the twelve month period
following the date of grant.

Share-Based Compensation Expense
The allocation of share-based compensatipense included in the consolidated statemerdperiations was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Research and developme $ 21,19 $ 1544 $ 13,19:

Selling, general and administrati 22,04 7,032 8,131
Total shar-based compensation expel $ 43,23¢ $ 22,47¢ $ 21,32

Share-based compensation expense includbe iconsolidated statements of operations bydtyge was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Transferred from parel $ 17,047 $ 22,47¢ $ 21,32
Theravance equity
Options 4,37¢ — —
RSUs 3,16¢ — —
RSAs 3,79¢ — —
Performance RSA 4,49( — —
Theravance Biopharma equi
Options 9,40¢ — —
ESPF 954 — —

Total shar-based compensation exper  $ 43,23« $ 22,47¢ $ 21,32!

Total share-based compensation expenstabiapd to inventory was not material for any of {eriods presented.

As of December 31, 2014, the unrecognitedesbased compensation cost, net of expectedtiods, and the estimated weightakerag
amortization period, using the straight-line atttibn method, was as follows:

Unrecognized Weighted-Average

Compensation Amortization
(In thousands, except amortization period Cost Period
Theravance equit
Options $ 15,957 2.6
RSUs 7,092 1.¢
RSAs 12,16( 1.
Performance RSA 12,21¢ 1.4
Theravance Biopharma equi
Options 49,47¢ 38
$ 96,90¢
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Compensation Awards

The following table summarizes equity awactivity under the 2013 EIP and 2014 NEEIP, anated information since the Company
began trading on the NASDAQ Global Market on Jun2(3.4:

Number of Weighted-Average
Shares Subject Exercise Price of

to Outstanding Outstanding

Options Options

Balance at June 2, 20: — $ —
Granted 4,235,05! 24.7¢
Forfeited (272,63) 25.01
Balance at December 31, 2C 3,962,421 $ 24.7:

As of December 31, 2014, the aggregatsitr value of the options outstanding and the egape intrinsic value of the options
exercisable was not material. The total estimag@dvilue of options vested was $1.0 million in 201

Valuation Assumptions

The range of assumptions we used to estithatfair value of options granted under the 2BIE 2014 NEEIP and rights granted under
the 2013 ESPP was as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 2014

Options Under the 2013 EIP and 2014 NEE

Risk-free interest rat 1.7%- 2.0%
Expected term (in year 5-6
Volatility 64%- 70%
Dividend yield —
Weightec-average estimated fair val $15.55
2013 ESPP

Risk-free interest rat 0%-0.7%
Expected term (in year 0.6-2.2
Volatility 58%- 66%
Dividend yield —
Weightec-average estimated fair val $10.95
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The range of assumptions Theravance usestitmate the fair value of stock options grantedrgo the Spin-Off was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Options under the 2012 Equity Incentive Pl

Risk-free interest rat 1.6%-2.1% 0.7%-2.0% 0.7%-1.2%
Expected term (in year 5-6 5-6 5-6
Volatility 52%-61%  58%-60%  55%- 60%
Dividend yield — — —
Weighte-average estimated fair val $16.14 $19.96 $11.50
Employee stock purchase plan issuant

Risk-free interest rat — 0.1%-0.3% 0.1%-0.3%
Expected term (in year — 0.5-2 0.5-2
Volatility — 56%-61%  51%- 64%
Dividend yield — — —
Weightec-average estimated fair val $— $16.44 $8.07

7. Income Taxes

Theravance Biopharma was incorporatedénGayman Islands in July 2013 under the name Thar@/Biopharma, Inc. as a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Theravance and began operadigsequent to the Spin-Off with wholly-owned sdizsies in the Cayman Islands, U.S.
and United Kingdom. The provision for income take2014 is a result of operating in multiple juiitstbns and generating taxable income in

our U.S. operations, although we incur operatirsgés on a consolidated basis.
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The components of the provision for incdanees are as follows:

December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Income (loss) before provision for incon

taxes:
Cayman Island $ (235,300 $ — $ —
Other 4,63 (156,289 (9,575
Total $ (230,67) $ (156,289 $ (9,57
Provision for income taxe
Current
Cayman Island — — —
United State! 6,22: — —
United Kingdom 141 — —
Subtotal 6,36¢ — —
Deferred
Cayman Island — — —
United State: — — —
United Kingdom — — —
Subtotal — — —
Total 6,36¢ — —

Effective tax rate (2.76% 0% 0%

The provision for income taxes of $6.4 ioill for the year ended December 31, 2014 is prigndrie to timing differences between the
book and tax treatment of certain income and exg®enss the realization of our deferred tax assetmcertain, we currently record a full
valuation allowance against all deferred tax as3dtsrefore, any timing differences between boak t@x treatment of certain income and
expenses will be reflected as current tax expense.

No provision for income taxes has beengated on undistributed earnings of our foreignsédilaries because we consider such earnin
to be indefinitely reinvested. In the event of stidbution of these earnings in the form of divideror otherwise, we may be liable for income
taxes, subject to an adjustment, if any, for fanex credits and foreign withholdings taxes pagdblcertain foreign tax authorities. As of
December 31, 2014, it is not practicable to deteentihe amount of the income tax liability relatedie undistributed earnings due to a variety
of factors.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cagy@mounts of assets and liabilities for finan
reporting purposes and the amounts used for indarmpurposes. Significant components of our defetag assets and liabilities are as
follows:

December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 181 $ 140,85:
Deferred revenue — 3,01¢
Capitalized research and development
expenditure: — 20z
Research and development tax credit
carryforwards 821 11,01¢
Fixed assets and acquired intangit 8,08¢ 3,82(
Deferred compensatic 7,48¢ 18,831
Accruals 2,56: 4,944
Other 29 —
Subtotal 19,17: 182,68t
Valuation allowanct (18,787 (182,689
Total deferred tax asse 384 —
Deferred tax liabilities
Prepaic (389) —
Total deferred tax liabilitie (389) —
Net deferred tax assets/liabiliti $ — $ —

The deferred income taxes correspondirtgeggeriod ending December 31, 2013 are carve-aahbes and are representative of amoun
assuming the business began in 2011. However, sgquaration from Theravance, the balances corregppimnet operating losses and
research credits were not transferred. As such;tibages in such balances do not reflect the attitin of such amounts.
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The differences between the Cayman Islandsthe U.S. federal statutory income tax ratecancdeffective tax rate are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Provision at statutory income tax ri 0% 34.0% 34.0%
Foreign rate differentie (0.99 — —
State income taxes, net of federal ber — — (0.09)
Share-based compensatic — 0.31 (2.69)
Non-deductible executive compensat — (0.06) (10.09
United States federal and state research tax si 1.0C 2.87 —
Meals & entertainmer — (0.09 (0.60)
Change in valuation allowan: (2.42) (35.89 (20.6¢)
Other (0.35) (1.19) 0.04
Effective tax rate (2.760% —% —%

Realization of deferred tax assets is ddprtupon future taxable income in the respectivisdiction, if any, the timing and the amount
of which are uncertain. Accordingly, the deferrad assets have been fully offset by a valuatiamalhce. The valuation allowance as of
December 31, 2014 increased by $5.8 million froen$h3.0 million valuation allowance establishedfthe June 2, 2014 Spin-Off date.
Valuation allowances require an assessment of foaghive and negative evidence when determiningtindrét is more likely than not deferred
tax assets are recoverable. Such assessmentiieceqn a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis.

As of December 31, 2014, we had no fedeeabperating loss carryforwards and no federaaeh and development tax credit
carryforwards. We had state net operating losyfmmwards of $3.2 million expiring in 2034 and gtaksearch and development credit
carryforwards of $1.5 million to be carried forwandiefinitely.

The net operating loss deferred tax assanibes as of December 31, 2014 does not incluckssxax benefits from option exercises.
Shareholders' equity and parent company deficltheilcredited if and when such excess tax berafitsultimately realized.

Utilization of net operating loss and tagdit carryforwards may be subject to an annuaitédition due to ownership change limitations
provided by the Internal Revenue Code and simiktegprovisions. Annual limitations may result kp&ation of net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards before some or all of such ants have been utilized.

Our policy is to recognize interest angienalties related to income tax matters in incaameskpense. As of December 31, 2014, the
amount of accrued tax expense related to intergstmalties was not material.
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Uncertain Tax Positions

A reconciliation of the beginning and ergllralances of the total amounts of unrecognizedb¢sefits are as follows:

(In thousands)

Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, . $ 41
Gross decrease in tax positions for prior yt —
Gross increase in tax positions for current y 1,01¢
Unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, . $ 1,05¢

If we eventually are able to recognize ¢éhescertain positions, the $1.1 million of the wagnized benefit would reduce the effective tax
rate. We currently have a full valuation allowamgginst our deferred tax assets, which would imiectiming of the effective tax rate benefit
should any of these uncertain positions be favgrabttled in the future. We do not believe it iagenably possible that our unrecognized tax
benefits will significantly change within the nemtelve months.

We are subject to taxation in the Uniteddtdom, United States, and various state jurisdistid@ he tax years 2013 and forward remain
open to examination in the U.S. while the tax y@&r$2 and forward remain open to examination inlthgged Kingdom.

8. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases and Subleases

We lease approximately 150,000 squaredietfice and laboratory space in two buildingsSiouth San Francisco, California, under a
non-cancelable operating lease that ends in Ma@.20/2 may extend the terms of this lease for twditemhal five-year periods. Future
minimum lease payments under this lease, excludiegecutory costs, at December 31, 2014, werelbsis:

(In thousands)
Years ending December &
2015 $ 5,77(
2016 5,94:
2017 6,121
2018 6,30¢
2019 6,49¢
Thereaftel 2,75¢
Total $ 33,39

Expenses and income associated with opgrigases were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Rent expens $ 6,61€ $ 5761 $ 5,46¢
Sublease income, n $ —$ — $ (160
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Special Lon-Term Retention and Incentive Cash Awards Program

In 2011, Theravance granted special longrtetention and incentive cash bonus awards taiceemployees. The awards had dual
triggers of vesting based upon the achievemen¢dhimn performance conditions over a six-year tiange from 2011 through December 31,
2016 and continued employment.

In May 2014, Theravance's Compensation Citteendetermined that the requisite performancelitioms for the first tranche of the
awards were achieved and, as a result, we recaboash bonus expense of $9.5 million during the mimnths ended September 30, 2014. In
May 2014, the total cash bonus of $9.5 milliontfae first tranche was paid.

In May 2014, Theravance's Compensation Citteenapproved the modification of the remainiranthes related to these awards
contingent upon the Spin-Off. The modification aoktedged the Spin-Off and permitted recognitiomdfievement of the original
performance conditions that were met prior to thm<ff, triggering a 12-month service-based vesfior a portion of the cash awards. The
maximum amount payable by us under these modifisti bonus awards is $10.4 million. The remainiagdhes of the cash awards were
forfeited.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

We indemnify our officers and directors éartain events or occurrences, subject to celitaits. We believe the fair value of these
indemnification agreements is minimal. Accordinghg have not recognized any liabilities relatinghtese agreements as of December 31,
2014.

9. Spin-Off from Theravance, Inc.

On June 1, 2014, Theravance separategté@sstage respiratory assets partnered with GSK fiwbiopharmaceutical operations by
transferring its discovery, development and comiabzation operations (the "Biopharmaceutical Besisi') into its then wholly-owned
subsidiary Theravance Biopharma. Theravance alstiibated certain assets and liabilities from theddarmaceutical Business and
$393.0 million of cash, cash equivalents and matKetsecurities to us. In connection with the Spffi-on June 2, 2014, Theravance made a
pro rata dividend distribution to its stockholdefsecord on May 15, 2014 of one ordinary shar&lravance Biopharma for every three and
one half shares of Theravance common stock outsiguodh the record date. The Spin-Off resulted ierBlrance Biopharma operating as an
independent, publicly traded company.

On June 1, 2014, we entered into the Séparand Distribution Agreement with Theravancet &t forth the terms and conditions of our
separation from Theravance. In addition, we enteredother definitive agreements in connectiorhviite Spin-Off, including (1) a Transition
Services Agreement, (2) a Tax Matters AgreemeptaifEmployee Matters Agreement, and (4) the Tlaree Respiratory Company, LLC
Limited Liability Company Agreement. See Note 10phtractual Agreements with Theravance, Inc.,féiother discussion.

90




Table of Contents

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
9. Spin-Off from Theravance, Inc. (Continued)

The net book value of the net assets tlaéwransferred to us in connection with the Spihi€as follows:

(In thousands) June 2, 201<
Cash and cash equivale $ 277,54
Marketable investment securiti 115,12¢
Accounts receivabl 12t
Reimbursement of certain liabilitit 16,98:
Prepaid and other current ass 3,17
Inventories 14,32¢
Property and equipment, r 9,58(
Accrued liabilities (22,349
Deferred revenu (6,699
Other liabilities (4,949
Net book value of assets transfer $ 402,87t

10. Contractual Agreements with Theravance, Inc.
Separation and Distribution Agreemel

In connection with the Spin-Off, on Jun€Q14, Theravance and Theravance Biopharma entaethe Separation and Distribution
Agreement which set forth the principal transactiorcessary to separate the companies. The Sepaaat Distribution Agreement identifies
the assets transferred, liabilities assumed anttade assigned to us as part of the Spin-Off,destribes when and how these transfers,
assumptions and assignments occurred. In partjallaf the assets and liabilities associatedromarily used in connection with the
Biopharmaceutical Business operations were traresféo us.

In addition, in connection with the SpinfQfie were capitalized with $393.0 million in cashsh equivalents and marketable securities.
Except as expressly set forth in the SeparatiorDasidibution Agreement or any ancillary agreemaifitassets were transferred to us on an "a
is," "where is" basis. Under the terms of the Safian and Distribution Agreement, we will indemnifperavance, and Theravance will
indemnify us from and after the Spin-Off with resp® all debts, liabilities and obligations tragiséd to Theravance in connection with the
Spin-Off (including failure to pay, perform or otisdse promptly discharge any such debts, liabsitie obligations after the Spin-Off) and any
breach by us of the Separation and Distributioneggrent, the Transition Services Agreement, the Byegl Matters Agreement and the Tax
Matters Agreement.

Transition Services Agreement

On June 2, 2014, we also entered into asitian Services Agreement with Theravance purstawhich Theravance and we will provi
each other with a variety of administrative sergjdacluding financial, tax, accounting, informatitechnology, legal and human resources
services, for a period of time of up to two yeaofving the SpinOff. Certain services were terminated as of Felyr@8; 2015, and we expe
the remaining services will end on or before May &115. In connection with the services performedar the Transition Services Agreement,
each party shall pay a monthly fee to the
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performing party. For the year ended December 314 2we billed Theravance $1.6 million, and Therebebilled us $0.5 million under the
Transition Services Agreement. As of December B142we had a receivable from Theravance of $1liomi

Tax Matters Agreement

On June 2, 2014, we also entered into aMatters Agreement with Theravance that governgaance's and our respective rights,
responsibilities and obligations after the Spin-With respect to taxes. Under the Tax Matters Agrext, all tax liabilities (including tax
refunds and credits) (i) attributable to TheravéBéopharmaceutical Business for any and all grior portions thereof ending prior to or on,
the date of the Spin-Off, (ii) resulting or arisifigm the contribution of Theravance's BiopharmaicaliBusiness to us, the distribution of our
ordinary shares and the other separation transecéiod (iii) otherwise attributable to Theravaneid,be borne solely by Theravance. As a
result, we should generally expect to be liabley doi tax liabilities attributable to, or incurredth respect to, the biopharmaceutical business
after the date of the Spin-Off.

Employee Matters Agreeme

On June 1, 2014, we also entered into apl&ee Matters Agreement with Theravance, whichegos the employee benefit obligations
of Theravance and us as they relate to currenfanter employees. The Employee Matters Agreemdataties liabilities and responsibilities
relating to employee benefit matters, including @&Pplan matters that are subject to ERISA in catioa with the separation, as well as other
employee benefit programs. The Employee Matteredmeent also provides the mechanics for the adjugtafeequity awards (including stor
options, restricted stock, and restricted stocksyigiranted under Theravance's equity compensptamgrams in connection with the Spin-Off.

Theravance Respiratory Company, LLC Limited LialyiCompany Agreement

Prior to the Spin-Off, Theravance assigtie@heravance Respiratory Company, LLC ("TRC"),eddware limited liability company
formed by Theravance, its strategic alliance agesgwith GSK and all of its rights and obligatiangder its collaboration agreement with
GSK other than with respect to RELVAR® ELLIPTA®/BR® ELLIPTA®, ANORO® ELLIPTA® and vilanterol monothapy. Our equity
interest in TRC entitles us to an 85% economic@dkein any future payments made by GSK underttlagegjic alliance agreement and under
the portion of the collaboration agreement assignetRC. The drug programs assigned to TRC incthdeClosed Triple or FF/JUMEC/VI and
the MABA program, as monotherapy and in combinatidth other therapeutically active components, saglan inhaled corticosteroid (ICS),
and any other product or combination of producés thay be discovered and developed in the futudemthe GSK Agreements. Our econo
interest will not include any payments associatéti RELVAR® ELLIPTA®/BREO® ELLIPTA®, ANORO® ELLIPTA® or vilanterol
monotherapy.

On May 31, 2014, we entered into the TRECLAgreement with Theravance that governs the ojperaf TRC. Under the TRC LLC
Agreement, Theravance is the manager of TRC, amfldkiness and affairs of TRC are managed exclysiyethe manager, including (i) day
to day management of the drug programs in accoedaitt the existing GSK Agreements, (ii) prepararg
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annual operating plan for TRC and (iii) taking @ttions necessary to ensure that the formationctsire and operation of TRC complies with
applicable law and partner agreements.

We analyzed our ownership, contractual @her interests in TRC to determine if it is a shfeinterest entity ("VIE"), whether we haw
variable interest in TRC and the nature and exdéthiat interest. We determined that TRC is a VIIRe party with the controlling financial
interest, the primary beneficiary, is required ¢msolidate the entity determined to be a VIE. Tfeere we also assessed whether we are the
primary beneficiary of TRC based on the power tedtiits activities that most significantly impatst economic performance and our obliga
to absorb its losses or the right to receive b&n&m it that could potentially be significantT®RC and determined we are not the primary
beneficiary of TRC. As a result, we do not consaédTRC.

11. Subsequent Events

In January 2015, Mylan Inc., which is nowudsidiary of Mylan N.V. ("Mylan"), and we estalied a strategic collaboration for the
development and, subject to FDA approval, commEzeition of TD-4208. Partnering with a world leademebulized respiratory therapies
enables us to expand the breadth of our TD-4208ldpment program and extend our commercial reaghrizbthe acute care setting where
we currently market VIBATIV. Funding of the Phasecgistrational program by Mylan strengthens ougited position and enhances our
financial flexibility to advance other high-valuggpline assets alongside TD-4208.

Under the terms of the agreement, Mylanwadvill co-develop nebulized TD-4208 for COPD antber respiratory diseases. We will
lead the U.S. registrational development prograthMplan will be responsible for reimbursement of oasts for that program up until the
approval of the first new drug application, aftdrigh costs will be shared. If a product developedar the collaboration is approved in the
U.S., Mylan will lead commercialization and we widitain the right to co-promote the product inth&. under a profit-sharing arrangement
(65% Mylan/35% Theravance Biopharma). Outside tt (excluding China), Mylan will be responsible &®velopment and
commercialization and will pay us a tiered royaitynet sales at percentage royalty rates rangam fow double-digits to mideens. Althoug
China is not included in the ex-US territory oultigMylan does have a right of first negotiatiorttwiespect to the development and
commercialization of nebulized TD-4208 in China.

Under the agreement, Mylan will pay usmitidl payment of $15.0 million in cash in the sedauarter of 2015. Also, pursuant to an
ordinary share purchase agreement entered intararady 30, 2015, Mylan made a $30.0 million eqintgestment in us, buying 1,585,790
ordinary shares from us in early February 2015 @nigate placement transaction at a price of appnately $18.918 per share, which
represented a 10% premium over the volume weigintedage price per share of our ordinary sharethéofive trading days ending on
January 30, 2015. We are eligible to receive frogiad potential development and sales milestone paystotaling $220.0 million in the
aggregate, with $175.0 million associated with TE& monotherapy and $45.0 million for future poi@rtombination products.

We retain worldwide rights to TD-4208 delied through other dosage forms, such as a malessdinhaler or dry powder inhaler
(MDI/DPI), while Mylan has certain rights of firsiegotiation with respect to our development androencialization of TD-4208 delivered
other than via a nebulized inhalation product.
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

(In thousands, except per share data)

The following table presents certain untadiconsolidated quarterly financial informatiom floe eight quarters in the period ended
December 31, 2014. This information has been pezban the same basis as the audited consolidaalcfal statements and includes all
adjustments (consisting only of normal recurringuatinents) necessary to present fairly the unadidjterterly results of operations set forth
herein. Prior to the Spi@ff in June 2014, we operated as part of Theravandenot as a separate entity. As a result, tlealedion of basic ar
diluted net loss per share assumes that the 32@%0yrdinary shares issued to Theravance stockimideonnection with the Spin-Off, less
the number of ordinary shares subject to forfejtuere outstanding from the beginning of all pesipdesented.

For the Quarters Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31

2014

Total revenue(1 $ 94t § 2974 $ 6,33¢ $ 1,43¢
Costs and expens 60,96: 59,68( 56,39¢ 67,18¢
Loss from operation (60,019 (56,70¢6) (50,067) (65,757
Net loss (60,01¢)  (58,21% (54,49Y (64,310
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (189 3% (189 % 1.72) $ (2.09)
2013

Total revenus $ 22 $ 5 8% 24 $ 17t
Operating expenst 32,19¢ 38,957 41,10: 44,25t
Loss from operation (32,179 (38,957 (41,079 (44,080)
Net loss (32,179 (38,959 (41,079 (44,08()
Basic and diluted net loss per sh $ (10D $ (@129 % .29 $ (1.39

Q) Commencing in the first quarter of 2014, weognized revenue from sales of VIBATIV. In the sed@uarter of 2014,
previously deferred revenue from the R-Pharm collative arrangement of $2.1 million was recognizadhe third
quarter of 2014, previously deferred revenue from@linigen collaborative arrangement of $5.0 miillivas recognize:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Theravace Biopharma, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitialance sheets of Theravance Biopharma, Iraf.Becember 31, 2014 and 2013, and th
related consolidated statements of operations, celmepsive loss, shareholders' equity and parenpanyndeficit and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 3%.2hese financial statements are the resporigibilithe Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an @fuithe Company's internal control over finangigorting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company's internal contr@rdinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theuss and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementgaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementened to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Theravance Biopharma, Inc. at December 31, 201426t68, and the consolidated results of its opematand its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20 dnformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogiprinciples.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

San Jose, California
March 13, 2015
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedul

We conducted an evaluation required bygragzh (d) of Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act aBefember 31, 2014, under the supervisio
and with the participation of our management, idiig our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finaricficer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls@dedures (as defined under Rule 13a-15(e) dEstmhange Act), which are controls and
other procedures of a company that are designedsore that information required to be disclosed bpmpany in the reports that it files
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchakdgis recorded, processed, summarized and regbavithin required time periods. Bas
upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive OfficadaChief Financial Officer concluded that, as affsdate, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective at the reasonable assutawvel.

Management's Report on Internal Control over FinahReporting

This annual report does not include a repbmanagement's assessment regarding internabtoner financial reporting or an attestat
report of our registered public accounting firm doe transition period established by rules ofSB for newly public companies.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Contr

Our management, including our Chief Exeai®fficer and Chief Financial Officer, does nopegt that our disclosure controls and
procedures or our internal control over financedarting will prevent all error and all fraud. Artool system, no matter how well conceived
and operated, can provide only reasonable, notlaties@ssurance that the objectives of the cosysiem are met. Further, the design of a
control system must reflect the fact that thereraseurce constraints, and the benefit of contralst be considered relative to their costs.
Because of the inherent limitations in all consgétems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@ssurance that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within Theravance Biapha have been detected. Also, projections of aajuation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls megome inadequate because of changes in conditiotisat the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

There was no change in our internal cordvelr financial reporting (as defined in Rule 1Zfllof the Exchange Act) identified in
connection with the evaluation required by paragr@) of Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act, whichuwyoed during the fourth fiscal quarter of
the year ended December 31, 2014 which has madyeafédcted, or is reasonably likely to materiadlffect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE

For the information required by this Itesee "Questions and Answers About Procedural Matt4etection of Directors”, "Nominees",
"Audit Committee”, "Meetings of the Board of Direcs", "Code of Conduct", "Executive Officers" arfettion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance" in the Proxy Statement tdiled with the SEC, which sections are incorpordtedein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the information required by this Itesee "Director Compensation", "Executive Compensatimd "Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Pr@&tatement to be filed with the SEC, which sectiarsincorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

For the information required by this Itesee "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Overeand Management” and "Equity
Compensation Plan Information" in the Proxy Stateinte be filed with the SEC, which sections areomporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

For the information required by this Itesee "Director Independence" and "Policies and Phaes for Related Party Transactions” in the
Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC, whichises are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

For the information required by this Itesee "Ratification of the Appointment of Independ@egistered Public Accounting Firm" and
"Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services" imet Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC, wisiebtions are incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

(&  The following documents are filed as part of thisndial Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements:

The following financial statements and siiles of the Registrant are contained in Partdml8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" of this Annual Report on Fofi¥Kl

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&01201: 57
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheoftiree years in the period ended
December 31, 201 58
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Lossaidt ef the three years in the period et
December 31, 201 59
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquityPamdnt Company Deficit for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 60
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheottiree years in the period ended
December 31, 201 61
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 62
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimg 95
2. Financial Statement Schedules:

All schedules have been omitted becauskeofbsence of conditions under which they areiredjor because the required information,
where material, is shown in the financial statersgeiiancial notes or supplementary financial infation.

(b)  Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K
The information required by this Item i &&th on the exhibit index that follows the siguwa page of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report to b
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

THERAVANCE BIOPHARMA, INC.

Date: March 13, 2015 By: /s/ RICK E WINNINGHAM

Rick E Winningham
Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatleperson whose signature appears below constanttappoints Rick E
Winningham and Renee D. Gala, each of whom mawilaebut joinder of the other, as their true andfisvattorneys-in-fact and agents, each
with full power of substitution and resubstitutidar such person and in his or her name, placesteatl, in any and all capacities, to sign any
and all amendments to the annual report on Fornq,18kd to file the same, with all exhibits theratwd other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comigrisgranting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agéuit power and authority to do and
perform each and every act and thing requisitereegssary to be done in and about the premisés)ya® all intents and purposes as he or
she could do in person, hereby ratifying and carmifig all that said attorneys-fiact and agents, or their substitutes, may lawfddyor cause t
be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenresidoelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ RICK E WINNINGHAM Chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer (Principal Executive March 13, 2015

Rick E Winninghan Officer)

/sl RENEE D. GALA Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial ~ March 13, 2015

Renee D. Gal Officer)
/sl MICHAEL G. ATIEH
Director March 13, 2015
Michael G. Atieh

/sl ERAN BROSHY

Director March 13, 2015

Eran Broshy
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Signature

/s/ ROBERT V. GUNDERSON, JR.

Robert V. Gunderson, .

/sl HENRIETTA H. FORE

Henrietta H. Fort

/sl BURTON G. MALKIEL, PH.D.

Burton G. Malkiel, Ph.D

/s/ DEAN J. MITCHELL

Dean J. Mitchel

/sl PETER S. RINGROSE, PH.D.

Peter S. Ringrose, Ph.

/sl GEORGE M. WHITESIDES, PH.I

George M. Whitesides, Ph.|

/s/ WILLIAM D. YOUNG

William D. Young

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Title
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March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015
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Exhibits

Incorporated by

Reference

Filing
Exhibit Date/Period
Number Description Form End Date
2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement by and betw 8-K June 3, 2014
Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Theravance, Intedda
June 1, 2014
3.1 Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of 10-12B  April 30, 2014
Association
4.1 Specimen Share Certifica 10-12B  April 30, 2014
4.z Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 3, Z 10-12B April 8, 2014
4.2 Form of Rights Agreement by and between Theravanc 10-12B April 8, 2014
Biopharma, Inc. and Computershare |
10.1 Transition Services Agreement by and betweenavsrce 8-K June 3, 2014
Biopharma, Inc. and Theravance, Inc., dated JuR&24.
10.z Tax Matters Agreement by and between Theravance 8-K June 3, 2014
Biopharma, Inc. and Theravance, Inc., dated Ju2@™4.
10.2 Employee Matters Agreement by and between Ther/a 8-K June 3, 2014
Biopharma, Inc. and Theravance, Inc., dated JuRé14.
10.4+ 2013 Equity Incentive Plan and form of award agrent S-8 Aug. 18, 201
thereunde
10.5+ UK Addendum to the 2013 Equity Incentive P 10-K Aug. 14, 201
10.€+ 2014 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan and fafm S-8 Nov. 14, 201
option agreement thereunc
10.&+ Theravance Biopharma, Inc. 2013 Employee SharehBese S-8 Aug. 18, 201
Plan, as amende
10.¢+ Theravance Biopharma, Inc. Change in Control Baee 10-12B April 8, 2014
Plan
10.¢+ Theravance Biopharma, Inc. Cash Bonus Prog 10-12B  Nov. 22, 201:
10.1(+ Form of Indemnity Agreemel 10-12B  April 30, 2014
10.11 Amended and Restated Lease Agreement, 951 Gateway  10-12B Aug. 8, 2013
Boulevard, between Theravance, Inc. and HMS Gateway
Office L.P., dated January 1, 20
10.1z First Amendment to Lease for 951 Gateway Boulkdvar 10-12B Aug. 8, 2013
effective as of June 1, 2010 between Theravanceahd
ARE-901/951 Gateway Boulevard, LL
10.1: Lease Agreement, 901 Gateway Boulevard, between 10-12B Aug. 8, 2013
Theravance, Inc. and HMS Gateway Office L.P., dated
January 1, 200
10.1¢ First Amendment to Lease for 901 Gateway Bouldvar 10-12B Aug. 8, 2013

effective as of June 1, 2010 between Theravanceahd
ARE-901/951 Gateway Boulevard, LL
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Exhibit
Number

Description

Incorporated by
Reference

Filing
Date/Period
Form End Date

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

Consent to Assignment by and among ARE-901/95&vGsy
Boulevard, LLC, Theravance, Inc. and Theravance
Biopharma, Inc. and Assignment and Assumption afslesfor
901 Gateway Blvd

Consent to Assignment by and among ARE-901/95&vGEsy
Boulevard, LLC, Theravance, Inc. and Theravance
Biopharma, Inc. and Assignment and Assumption @afsesfor
951 Gateway Blvd

Theravance Respiratory Company, LLC Limited Lliapi
Company Agreement, dated May 31, 2C

10.1& Technology Transfer and Supply Agreement, datedfa

May 22, 2012 between Theravance, Inc. and Hospira
Worldwide, Inc.

10.1¢* Commercialization Agreement between Theravamee, and

10.2¢

10.21

10.2Z

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

Clinigen Group plc, dated March 8, 20

License Agreement with Janssen Pharmaceutiocagl dat of
May 14, 200z

Collaboration Agreement between Theravance, Ind.@axo
Group Limited, dated November 14, 2002

Strategic Alliance Agreement by and between
Theravance, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, datedd &0,
2004(2)

Amendment to Strategic Alliance Agreement by bativeen
Theravance, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, datecb@et 3,
2011(3)

Collaboration Agreement Amendment by and between
Theravance, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited dated,di&,
2014(4)

Strategic Alliance Agreement Amendment by andvieen
Theravance, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited dated,ai&,
2014(4)

Master Agreement by and between Theravance, Inc.,
Theravance Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limitded
March 3, 2014(4

Extension Agreement by and between the CompanyGdan
Group Limited, dated March 3, 20.

Governance Agreement by and between Theravance
Biopharma, Inc. and Glaxo Group Limited, dated MaB¢
2014

10.2¢+ Amended Offer Letter with Rick E Winningham dated

August 6, 201«

10.3(+ Offer Letter with Frank Pasqualone May 12, 2

10.3+ Offer Letter with Brett K. Haumann dated May 1212t

10.3z+ Offer Letter with Renee D. Gala dated May 12, 2

10-Q Aug. 14, 201+

10-Q Aug. 14, 201

8-K June 3, 2014

10-12B May 7, 2014

10-12B May 7, 2014

10-Q  Aug. 14, 201«

10-12B April 8, 2014

10-12B  April 8, 2014

10-Q Sept. 30, 201

10-Q  Aug. 14, 201«
16-Q  Aug. 14, 201«

16-Q Sept. 30, 201
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Incorporated by

Reference
Filing

Exhibit Date/Period
Number Description Form End Date

10.3:+ Offer Letter with Junning Lee dated August 20, 2 1C-Q Sept. 30, 201

10.34+ Offer Letter with Brad Shafer dated August 20, 2 106-Q Sept. 30, 201

10.3t+ Offer Letter with Leonard Blum dated September2(8,4 106-Q Sept. 30, 201

10.3¢+ Offer Letter with Mathai Mammen dated September208,4 1C¢-Q Sept. 30, 201

10.3%+ Forms of Equity Award Amendme 10-12B May 7, 2014

10.3¢+ Form of TFIO Cash Award Amendme 10-12B May 7, 2014

10.3¢ Consulting Agreement with Jeff Jonker, effectageof

21.1

23.1

24.]

31.1

31.z

32

101

November 14, 201
Subsidiaries of Theravance Biopharma,
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

Power of Attorney (see signature page to this AhRegort or
Form 1(-K)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer PursudatRule 13a-
14(a) and 15-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1

Certification of Chief Financial Officer PursuantRule 13a-14
(a) and 15-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1

Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1

The following materials from Registrant's Ann&aport on
Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2014, formati
Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL) ideki

(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolid@&tements
of Income, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Compreive
Loss, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Shareholdsysity and
Parent Company Deficit, (v) Consolidated StatemehtSash
Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financiat&tents

1)

)

®3)

(4)

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraegerequired to be filed pursuant to Item 15(blFofm 10-K.

Confidential treatment has been requested foriogptartions which are omitted in the copy of théibit electronically
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissidre omitted information has been filed separatétih the Securities
and Exchange Commission pursuant to TheravancehBiaga, Inc.'s application for confidential treatmen

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit fikeith the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Theravgnac., filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 84201

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed witie annual report on Form 10-K of Theravance, filed with the
Commission on March 3, 2014.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit fikeith the annual report on Form 10-K of Theravanne,, filed with the
Commission on February 27, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit fikeith the current report on Form 8-K/A of Theravaniee., filed with the
Commission on March 6, 201







Exhibit 10.39
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

Effective as of November 14, 2014 (the “Effectivat®’), Jeffrey D. Jonker (“Consultant”) and Thenag Biopharma US, Inc. (“Theravance
Biopharma”) agree as follows:

1. Services and Paymen€Consultant agrees to consult with and advise atarce Biopharma from time to time, at
Theravance Biopharma’s request, for the primarppse of assisting with the transition of, and pdowj strategic advice related to, corporate
and business development operations (“Service$i@ravance agrees to pay Consultant $300.00 perftioBervices, payable monthly within
thirty (30) days of Theravance Biopharma’s receiptasonably detailed invoices that meet the ¥ahg standards: All invoices shall include
a brief description of the services rendered as age{1) Invoice Number, (2) Invoice Date, (3) Pajdame, (4) Payee Address, (5) Remit-to
Address, (6) P.O. Number (to be supplied by Theregd@iopharma following execution of this Agreemeantd (7) product candidate /
protocol to which each segment of work was dedétaB®nsultant shall send all invoices to AP@thenaeacom. Consultant shall also be
entitled to reimbursement for reasonable expenses as costs for hotel, transportation and mealsied in connection with the Services and
for which Consultant has received prior approvahfrTheravance Biopharma within thirty (30) daysCohsultant’s submission of receipts
thereof.

2. Ownership of Inventions Theravance Biopharma shall own all right, téthed interest (including patent rights,
copyrights, trade secret rights, trademark rights @l other rights of any sort throughout the wprielating to any and all inventions (whether
or not patentable), including without limitatiorisdoveries, compositions of matter, pharmaceufaahulations, methods of use, methods of
making, techniques, processes, formulas, improvéesmerorks of authorship, designations, designswkhow, ideas and information made or
conceived or reduced to practice, in whole or irt,g®y Consultant (solely or jointly with othersrihg the term of this Agreement that arise
out of or relate to the Services or any Proprietafgrmation (as defined below) (collectively, “lemtions”). Consultant agrees to assign and
does hereby assign all Inventions to Theravancptzioma and agrees to promptly disclose and pralldeich Inventions to Theravance
Biopharma. Consultant shall further assist ThemagaBiopharma, at Theravance Biopharma’s expeadarther evidence, record and perfect
such assignments, and to perfect, obtain, maintaifmrce, and defend any rights assigned througtheutvorld. Such assistance may include,
but is not limited to, execution of documents assistance or cooperation in legal proceedings.s@tant hereby irrevocably designates and
appoints Theravance Biopharma as Consultant’'s agehattorney-in-fact to act for and on Consultabghalf to execute and file any
document and to do all other lawfully permittedsatct further the foregoing with the same legal édoaad effect as if executed by Consultant.
When requested by Theravance Biopharma, Conswiiimhake available to Theravance Biopharma allesotdata and other information
relating to any Invention.

3. Proprietary Information Consultant agrees that all Inventions and dblisiness, technical and financial
information concerning Theravance Biopharma (intclgdwithout limitation, the identity of and inforation relating to Theravance
Biopharma’s employees, vendors and service prosjdbat Consultant develops, learns or obtainsaduthie term of this Agreement or while
Consultant is providing Services constitute “Prefary




Information.” Consultant will hold in confidenca@not disclose or make available to third pariemake use of any Proprietary Information
except with the prior written consent of TheravaBagharma or to the extent necessary in perforriiagyices for Theravance Biopharma.
However, Consultant shall not be obligated undisrgharagraph with respect to information Consultam document (i) is or becomes readily
publicly available without restriction through nautt of Consultant, or (ii) that Consultant knewthiut restriction prior to its disclosure by
Theravance Biopharma. Upon termination of thiselgment or as otherwise requested by Theravancé&im@, Consultant will promptly
return to Theravance Biopharma all documents, n@dseaind copies containing or embodying Proprietafgrmation, except that Consultant
may keep a personal copy of (i) compensation recm@dting to the Services and (ii) this Agreement.

4. Solicitation. As additional protection for Proprietary Infortizen, Consultant agrees that during the term of thi
Agreement and for one year thereafter, Consultdlhtat encourage or solicit any employee of or saltant to Theravance Biopharma to le
Theravance Biopharma for any reason. For the anoiel of doubt, this provision does not apply towinstances in which an employee of or
consultant to Theravance Biopharma applies forisdfered a position with Consultant or at Coresntts future employer, so long as
Consultant did not contact such employee or coastltirectly or indirectly, about leaving TheragarBiopharma for an opportunity with
Consultant or at Consultant’s future employer.

5. Term and Termination This Agreement shall become effective on the&ffe Date and remain in force until
April 30, 2015 unless earlier terminated by eitharty. Either party may terminate this Agreemerdrat time, for any reason, by giving the
other party 10 days written notice. All provisiasfsthis Agreement and any remedies for breachisfAgreement shall survive any
termination or expiration.

6. Relationship of the PartiesNotwithstanding any provision hereof, for allfpases of this Agreement each party
shall be and act as an independent contractor @inasra partner, joint venturer, or agent of theeoand shall not bind nor attempt to bind the
other to any contract. Consultant is an independemtractor and is solely responsible for all &xithholdings, and other statutory or
contractual obligations of any sort, including, bot limited to, Workers’ Compensation Insurancensliltant recognizes and agrees that
Consultant has no expectation of privacy with respe Theravance Biopharma’s telecommunicationsyorking or information processing
systems (including, without limitation, computde§, email messages and attachments, and voicages3sand that Consultant’s activity, and
any files or messages, on or using any of thosesgsmay be monitored at any time without notice.

7. Assignment This Agreement and the Services performed heieruare personal to Consultant and Consultant shi
not have the right or ability to assign, transtersubcontract any obligations under this Agreemeétitout the written consent of Theravance
Biopharma. Any attempt to do so shall be void efBlvance Biopharma shall be free to assign orfeattsis Agreement to a third party.
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8. RepresentationsConsultant represents and warrants that:

8.1 Consultant has never been: (1) debarred, excludedrwvicted of a crime for which a person can be
debarred under 21 U.S.C. § 335a; (2) excluded &y2dG or other government entity as listed on Hegclusions.oig.hhs.gov/ or
www.sam.gov; or (3) threatened to be debarreduebetl or indicted for a crime or otherwise engagecbinduct for which a person can be
debarred, excluded or indicted. Consultant agi@estify Theravance Biopharma in writing immedlgtia the event of any such debarment,
exclusion, conviction, threat or indictment occogriduring the term of this Agreement, or the tH@eyear period following the termination or
expiration of this Agreement;

8.2 If at any time during the term of this AgreemendnGultant becomes the subject of any proceedings fo
disqualification, debarment, delisting, exclusiondenial or revocation of licensure, as descrifleove, Theravance Biopharma shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement effective upoa tlate of such notice by Consultant.

8.3 (i) Consultant’s performance hereunder will notadmie any agreement or obligation to keep in confiden
proprietary information acquired by Consultant @mfidence or trust prior to or during Consultargigyagement with Theravance Biopharma,
and (ii) all work under this Agreement will be Caitant’s original work and none of the Servicedmwentions or any development, use,
production, distribution or exploitation thereofiMmfringe, misappropriate or violate any intelleal property or other right of any person or
entity. Consultant represents and warrants thas@tant has not entered into, and agrees thatultanswill not enter into, any agreement
whether written or oral in conflict with this Agneent or with Consultant’s obligations as a consitlta Theravance Biopharma.

9. Company Policies Consultant represents Consultant has read theVance Biopharma, Inc. Insider Trading
Policy provided herewith and shall abide by suclcgaluring the term of this Agreement. Consulteefiresents that Consultant has read the
Theravance Biopharma, Inc. Code of Business Corlduoated at:

http://files.shareholder.com/downloads/AMDA-2C8PBII8443864x0x758872/32af8d53-9e0c-491¢c-93cd-
445f06416d6f/TBPH_Code_of Business_Conduct_with_ekhdidim.pdf

and shall abide by the applicable portions of thdein performing the Services.

10. Remedies Any breach of Section 2, 3, 4, 8 or 9 will caurseparable harm to Theravance Biopharma for which
damages would not be an adequate remedy, andfdresréheravance Biopharma will be entitled to imgtive relief with respect thereto in
addition to any other remedies. The failure di@itparty to enforce its rights under this Agreenatrany time for any period shall not be
construed as a waiver of such rights.

11. Entire Agreement This Agreement supersedes all prior agreemezitgden the parties and constitutes the entire
agreement between the parties as to the subjetgamhateof, except that the Proprietary Informatiod Inventions Assignment Agreement
between Consultant and Theravance Biopharma daggd2®, 2014 shall remain in full force and effect.
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12. Notices. All notices, requests and other communicatiaiied for by this Agreement shall be deemed to Hmeen
given if made in writing and mailed, postage prdpto the address of each party set forth abovim such other addresses as either party she

specify to the other.

13. Amendments No changes or modifications or waivers to thiggement will be effective unless in writing and
signed by both parties.

14. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreetrghall be determined to be illegal or unenforceabl
that provision will be limited or eliminated to th@&nimum extent necessary so that this Agreemeait stherwise remain in full force and

effect and enforceable.

15. Counterparts and Facsimile SignatureBhis Agreement, and any subsequent amendmemi&s)be executed in
counterparts and the counterparts, together, wilktitute a single agreement. A facsimile transioisor a Portable Document Format (PDF)
sent by email of this signed Agreement bearingyaature on behalf of a party will be legal and igdon such party.

16. Arbitration. Subject to the exceptions set forth below, Ciastiunderstands and agrees that any disagreement
regarding this Agreement will be determined by sisision to arbitration as provided by Section 1288eg. of the California Code of Civil
Procedure, and not by a lawsuit or resort to cpratess proceedings. The only claims or disputésavered by this paragraph are claims or
disputes related to issues affecting the validitiringement or enforceability of any trade searepatent rights held or sought by Theravance
Biopharma or which Theravance Biopharma could etfser seek; in which case such claims or disputall sbt be subject to arbitration and

will be resolved pursuant to applicable law.

17. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and condtii@ccordance with the laws of the State of
California without regard to conflicts of law preions thereof. In any action or proceeding to ergaights under this Agreement, the
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover castd attorneys’ fees.

Theravance Biopharma US, Ir

Consultan

/sl Jeffrey D. Jonke By: /s/ Renee D. Gal

Jeffrey D. Jonke Name: Renee D. Ga
Title: SVP, Financt

Date: 11/14/201. Date: 11/14/201
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Subsidiaries

Theravance Biopharma US, Inc. (Delaware)

Theravance Biopharma Antibiotics, Inc. (Caymanridig)
Theravance Biopharma R&D, Inc. (Cayman Islands)
Theravance Biopharma UK Limited (England and Wales)
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (B83:198206 and 333-200225) pertaining to
the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, the 2013 Employkar§& Purchase Plan, and the 2014 New EmployeeyHquaientive Plan of our report dated
March 13, 2015, with respect to the consolidatadrftial statements of Theravance Biopharma, Inclyded in this Annual Report (Form 10-
K) for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP
San Jose, California
March 13, 2015







Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Rick E Winningham, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fR heravance Biopharma, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrare responsible for establishing and maintaimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

C) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 13, 2015 /s/ RICK E WINNINGHAM
(Date)

Rick E Winningham
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Off

(Principal Executive Officer







Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Renee D. Gala, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fR heravance Biopharma, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(sdrare responsible for establishing and maintaimisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

C) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent

functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 13, 2015 /sl RENEE D. GALA
(Date)

Renee D. Gala
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Rick E Winningham, certify, pursuanti® U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that the Annual Report of Theravance Biopharma, dncForm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemtgr2®14 fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SdesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended and thatrimdtion contained in such Annual
Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all matergdpects the financial condition and results @rafions of Theravance Biopharma, Inc. for
the periods covered by such Annual Report on Fdifi.1

March 13, 2015 By: /s/ RICK E WINNINGHAM

(Date) Name: Rick E Winninghan
Title: Chairman of the Board and Chief Execu
Officer (Principal Executive Officel

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Renee D. Gala, certify, pursuant to 18.8. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report of Theravance Biopharma, Ind=orm 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 314201ly complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SdesrExchange Act of 1934, as amended and thatrimdtion contained in such Annual
Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all matergdpects the financial condition and results @rafions of Theravance Biopharma, Inc. for
the periods covered by such Annual Report on FdifK.1

March 13, 2015 By: /s/ RENEE D. GALA

(Date) Name: Renee D. Gal
Title:  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to TheravanoghBrma, Inc. and will be retained by it
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosiom®r its staff upon request.
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